ORATION

A

d liability)

2017 =

ANNUAL REPORT

)




Contents H &%

2 Company Information

Financial Summary

Operating Summary
M Chairman’s Statement
15 Directors and Senior Management
21 Corporate Governance Report
50 Report of the Directors
78 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
96 Management Discussion and Analysis
124 Independent Auditor's Report
137  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
139  Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
142 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
144 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

146 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AZBEN RS
AFR BRI R
Bt A lRER
BitEaZHER
BHAESRER
BT B RR T




Company Information
NAIE R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
(resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)
Mr. Tian Hongtao
(resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Xie Na
Mr. Jiao Qisen
(appointed with effect from January 29, 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mei Jianping

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller

Mr. Guo Yanjun

REGISTERED ADDRESS
Maples Corporate Services Limited
P. O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’ s Road East

Hong Kong

BEIJING OFFICE
Suite 1501, Block C
Grand Place

5 Hui Zhong Road
Chaoyang District
Beijing 100101

China

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EExe

HITES

R E (EE)

LS

Andrew Sherwood Harper %t 4
(RZZF—EFNNA=1HEH)

HAELE
(RZZF—EFNNA=1HEH)

FHTES
ik e

(RZFE-NF-—A-1T/EEZE)

BY¥HTES
wETEE

Jeffrey Willard Miller 7 4
BHEE 4

ot i 3t 31k

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P. O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

ERATEESEME
BE

EERER 1835
AR B4 HE

EEPEQAE
PRI R ERfS R
EHRE55R

IR AL CPE 1501 &
45100101



Company Information (Continued)

~NEIER(E)

LISTING INFORMATION

Stock Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01555

Senior Notes Listing

The Company's 6.875%, 5 years senior notes due 2018

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(repaid in full on February 6, 2018)

The Company's 7.5%, 5 years senior notes due 2019

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

WEBSITE ADDRESS

WwWw.mienergy.com.cn

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Wong Sau Mei (ACS, ACIS)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tian Hongtao (resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)
Mr. Zhang Ruilin (appointed with effect from June 30, 2017)
Ms. Wong Sau Mei (ACS, ACIS)

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller (Chairman)

Mr. Mei Jianping

Mr. Guo Yanjun

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Mei Jianping (Chairman)

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller

Mr. Guo Yanjun

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Mei Jianping (Chairman)

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller

Mr. Guo Yanjun

tHER

B&HES
BERBERZHIBERAR]
f& 5% © 015655

BREE L™
RAFERB.875%  M_T— \FHHAHF
MEEEERIINEELSRZAERAR LT
(BERZ-ZZFE—-NFEZHANBZEEE)
KATEETS% RZE—NEDHE A&
MEEEBERINEELFRIZERAR LT

NCIEE

WWWwW.mienergy.com.cn

REME
EHELL(ACS, ACIS)

RERR
BREEE (R —FE—LFNA=THEHE)
KR ELE (R -_F—tFNNA=+HEZHE)
\AREX L (ACS, ACIS)

BEREEEHKE

Jeffrey Willard Miller 254 (/&)
BREFEE

PHELRE

FMEEENE
WETRE(EE)
Jeffrey Willard Miller 5& 4=
FRF LA

REZEEHE
WETRE(ERE)
Jeffrey Willard Miller 5 4=
PIE LA

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k



Company Information (Continued)

~NEIER (E)

INDEPENDENT TECHNICAL CONSULTANT

Ryder Scott Company, L.P.
Sproule Associates Limited
Gaffney, Cline & Associates Limited
GLJ Petroleum Consultants Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY
Dechert (As to Hong Kong law)

Jingtian & Gongcheng Law Firm (As to PRC law)
Maples and Calder (As to Cayman Islands law)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Citibank, N.A.

China Construction Bank Corporation Limited
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce

VALUER
Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited
Asia-Pacific Consulting and Appraisal Limited

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Maples FS Limited

P. O. Box 1093, Queensgate House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

& 3 F 9 R

Ryder Scott Company, L.P.

Sproule Associates Limited
Gaffney, Cline & Associates Limited
GLJ Petroleum Consultants Limited

BB
RN SER-R Y

R B)EEER
ERNEREBR (BEER)
BMAABERMBISAT (P REAR)
Maples and Calder (F 2B EA2)

FEERRIT

TEREIRTT
PEERRITRMD AR AF]
MERFEEERT

H{EED
IR ERHITEPIERA T
A EHAER AT

HMEFREFERH
BERLE

Maples FS Limited

P. O. Box 1093, Queensgate House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

5ER®G
BEERDTE

BEBAEELABRAR

BB

EFRER 1835

B 22



Financial Summary

M5 mE

(Amounts expressed in thousands of RMB)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (AUDITED)

Year ended December 31

(FBESBEOUARE T TREMN)
B GRERER (BER)

BEFT=A=+—AUFE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
=% —T-MF —T-HF T F ZF—+F
Total revenue Bl 3,256,061 2,982,909 722,185 534,974 1,125,982
Finance costs, net HSER  FE (345,553)  (481,327)  (421,774)  (386,461)  (138,749)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRETISHATRE,/(E518) 454,867 236,712 (1,467,259)  (457,981) (1,012,296)
Income tax (expensel/credit s (BR), e (175,083)  (214,163) 121,118  (147,166)  (87,180)
Loss for the year from discontinued AFR|HEEFRER
operations - - (179,147)  (717,086) -
Profit/(loss) for the year REFE/(B8) 279,784 22,549  (1,525,288) (1,322,233) (1,099,476)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL SO BEAR R R (REXR)
POSITION (AUDITED)
As at December 31 R+—A=+—H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F —ZT-NFE —ZT-HF T E —B—+F
Current assets REEE 1,186,639 1,650,635 1,033,667 2,260,010 1,833,381
Property, plant and equipment TEE  ITHRHRE 7,160,160 6,629,673 5633576 2,407,958 7,719,859
Intangible assets BYEE 544,469 494,552 359,595 8,849 708,193
Investments in associates HePERE - - - 246,667 182,541
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 50,422 75,541 27,105 63,330 67,132
Prepayments, deposits and other AR REEREM
receivables U 34,941 210,389 497,878 820,224 721,966
Restricted cash XRHRE 11,884 12,955 8495 = 43,285
Total assets EERE 9,302,546 9,593,567 8,090,105 5,847,628 11,308,343
Current liabilities REAE 1,555,604 1,345,118 1,191,754 479,915 2,747,026
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 4,042,512 4,683,938 4,687,355 4,727,926 8,829,778
Total liabilities BEBEE 5,598,116 6,029,066 5,879,109 5,207,841 11,576,804
Equity B 3,704,430 3,564,511 2,210,996 639,787  (268,461)
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE-ZF ZET-pmF ZZ-hF T RF ZB—tF
Properties Held by Subsidiaries WEARMGEE
Sales volume HE
Crude oil (millions of barrels) Eh(BER) 5.38 5.58 3.55 3.24 2.38
China oilfields F ) E 3.77 3.67 2.44 2.12 1.98
Kazakhstan oilfields PafE R e 1.56 1.88 1.09 1.10 =
Export sales HOHE 1.28 1.44 0.96 0.95 -
Domestic sales BINHE 0.28 0.44 0.13 0.15 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.01
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) - = = = 0.39
NGL (Note) (millions of barrels) RARFBRITER (M) (BER) - - - - 0.16
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = = = 0.16
Gas (MMscf) AAR (BEEETHER) 169850 201434 202127 171770  25,315.39
Kazakhstan oilfields g R AnE 166158 195438  2,001.15  1,703.72 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 36.92 59.96 20.12 13.98 1.43
Canada oilfields 2K (Canlin) - = = - 25313.96
Net annual production volume FEEE
Crude oil (millions of barrels) BEm(EER) 5.36 5.59 3.7 3.27 2.38
China oilfields B 3.73 3.66 2.44 2.15 1.98
Kazakhstan oilfields MR AA 1.58 1.90 1.25 1.11 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.01
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) - = = = 0.39
NGL (millions of barrels) AARBNR(EER) - - - = 0.16
Canada oilfields X (Canlin) = = = = 0.16
Gas (MMscf) AAR (BEEETHER) 192972 222290 219061  1,899.18  25,320.56
Kazakhstan oilfields g R AnE 181244 214648 215078  1,875.30 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 117.28 76.42 39.83 23.88 6.6
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) - = = - 25313.96
Average daily net crude oil production B FRHEE
Crude oil (barrels) [ () 14,673 15,326 10,153 9,241 9,745
China oilfields " Bt 10,208 10,033 6,687 5,872 5,454
Kazakhstan oilfields g R AnE 4,320 5,201 3412 3,328 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 145 92 54 41 29
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = = = 4,262
NGL (barrels) KAR R (1) - - - - 1,690
Canada oilfields NE K (Canlin) = = = = 1,690
Gas (MMscf) AAR(BBBEYFHER) 5.30 6.09 6.00 5.67 275.17
Kazakhstan oilfields MR AA 5.00 5.88 5.89 5.60 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 0.30 0.21 0.11 0.07 0.02
Canada oilfields 2K (Canlin) = = = = 275.15

Note: Natural Gas Liquid
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Operating Summary (Continued)
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE-ZF ZT-pmF ZZ-hF ZT-RF ZB—tF
Average realized price FHELRER
Crude oil (US$ per barrel of crude oil)  Eh (£, SHEM) 97.06 86.15 4579 36.74 48.96
China oilfields (Note 1) B E (M) 104.35 97.89 46.65 36.73 48.89
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiER AR 79.64 63.34 43.95 34.85 -
Export sales HOEE 87.80 70.63 48.41 38.39 -
Domestic sales BANHEE 4157 39.68 12.02 13.25 -
USA oilfields 2B (Condor) 90.30 83.11 40.68 37.77 47.44
Canada oilfields (Note 2) NE X (Canlin) (#152) = = = = 49.32
NGL (US$ per barrel) ARRBNR (X BR) - - - - 26.64
Canada oilfields JNZ X (Canlin) - - = = 26.64
Gas (US$ per MMscf) KRR (Ex/TRE
YHER) 1.44 1.27 1.03 0.83 1.50
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA 1.34 1.14 0.95 0.78 -
USA oilfields % (Condor) 6.10 6.44 2.61 2.30 4.47
Canada oilfields JZ K (Canlin) = = = = 1.50
Lifting costs (US$ per barrel of EEFBRE
oil equivalent) (Xn/BREE) 9.34 9.46 7.52 831 7.95
China oilfields (Note 3) HEDHE (fi23) 11.08 11.83 9.49 8.31 848
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE=HTA 5.18 4.85 3.66 2.25 -
Canada oilfields JNZ K (Canlin) = = = = 7.73
Cash net-back (US$ per barrel B&EEE
of oil equivalent) (X%/BREE)
China oilfields Bl A 74.22 69.62 35.56 26.94 38.87
Kazakhstan oilfields MBiE= A 41.37 29.14 10.94 14.26 -
Export sales HOHE 43.42 28.52 12.40 14.80 -
Domestic sales BINHE 31.97 31.81 5.11 9.25 =
Canada oilfields ANEX (Canlin) - - - = 5,55
Wells drilled during the year (Gross) ~ FRAEHH (BR) 114 157 3 = 15
China oilfields HE A 102 157 - = 15
Successtul Bk IhiE iR 102 151 - - 15
Dry it - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields WMERER 10 6 3 2 =
Successful PRI E R 10 6 3 2 =
Dry it : - - - -
USA oilfields %El(Condor) 2 - - - -
Successful IR 2 - - - -
Dry & - - - - -
Canada oilfields £ K (Canlin) - - - - -
Successful IR - - = - =
Dry it 2 - - - -
Note 1:  The data on the China oilfields does not include the last 16 days in 2017 as Ktar1: HEOERITESERSHEESEI6ANER
the Group has disposed of the Molging project with effect from December AAEER -_ZT—+F+_A+HBEE T IHE
15, 2017. g o
Note 2:  The data on the Canada oilfields only includes the 4th quarter of 2017 since Kta2z: MEANBRROEREENBENINEERN
the acquisition was completed in September 2017. BE o
Note 3:  Lifting costs include directly controllable costs to produce a barrel of oil. KtiE3: EBEEEOAKABEEE—RARZEETIESIR

Other production costs such as safety fee, environment expenses,
technical & research expenses and overhead have not been included since

they are not directly attributable to the production of a barrel of oil.

Ko BMAERANLZEE - REEM KTk
MAMAREE L ERSETTREERN - RE
BRI IE— RO EREKA
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Operating Summary (Continued)
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE-ZF ZET-pmF ZZ-0F ZT-RF ZB—tF

Crude Oil Reserves (thousands BhtE (TH7)
of barrels)

Subsidiaries HBAAFEEE

Total proved RARELE 54,177 48,742 45,163 10,668 19,366
China oilfields " B 20,409 14,495 12,440 10552 8,475
Canada oilfields JNZ K (Canlin) = = - - 10,844
Kazakhstan oilfields PRE R AnE 32,497 33,799 32,525 = =
USA oilfields %[ (Condor) 1,271 448 198 116 47

Total proved+probable RAESEREAR 126,107 124,725 120,975 19,557 27,453
China oilfields " Bt 35,998 25,832 24,416 18,893 12,489
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = - - 14,893
Kazakhstan oilfields PRiE R AnE 87,374 97,864 96,150 = =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 2,735 1,029 409 664 Al

Total proved + probable + possible e MERTRKHEELR 183,991 171,189 160,404 28,319 32,274
China oilfields " B 51,617 36,248 34,088 26,487 17,281
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = - - 14,893
Kazakhstan oilfields PRiE R AnE 128,647 130,203 124,952 = =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 3,827 4,738 1,364 1,832 100

Equity-accounted entities BREZARNERIR
(MIE share) BE(FREBELSS)

Total proved RAmENE - - - 17,749 11,618
Kazakhstan oilfields RiER AN - = = 12,611 7,540
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 5,138 4,078
Sino Gas & Energy FEIFL (=340 R E) = = = = =
White Hawk B (White Hawk) - - = = -

Total proved+probable R BERELE - - - 41,549 32,568
Kazakhstan oilfields RiER AN - - = 32,457 24,984
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 9,092 7,584
Sino Gas & Energy PRI (=540 REGE) = = = = =
White Hawk B (White Hawk) - - = = -

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHEREAR - - - 49,546 53,836
Kazakhstan oilfields PRiE R ANE - = = 40,454 46,252
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 9,092 7,584
Sino Gas & Energy B (=540 R EGE) = = = = =
White Hawk B (White Hawk) - - = = -

Total proved RURELE 54,177 48,742 45,163 28,417 30,983

Total proved+probable RSB EFERE 126,107 124,725 120,975 61,106 60,021

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTERELH 183,991 171,189 160,404 77,865 86,110
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2= M —T-1F ZTF ZE—t%

NGL Reserves (thousands of barrels)  NGL#&Z (T4)

Subsidiaries WEBAGEEE

Total proved RARELE - = = = 13,069
China oilfields L = = = = =
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = - - 13,069
Kazakhstan oilfields iR A7A = = = = -
USA oilfields %P (Condor) - - - - -

Total proved+probable RAESEHEAR - - - - 19,408
China oilfields L = = = = =
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = - - 19,408
Kazakhstan oilfields MR AA = = = = -
USA oilfields 2 (Condor) = = - - -

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHFHEAE - - = = 19,408
China oilfields L = = = = =
Canada oilfields INEAX (Canlin) = = - - 19,408
Kazakhstan oilfields iR dTA = = = = -
USA oilfields %P (Condor) - - - - -

Equity-accounted entities BRBARNERFFEE
(MIE share) (FEEELHS)

Total proved RARELE - - - 730 2,143
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA - - - - 856
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B = = - 730 1,287
Sino Gas & Energy REIFE (=3 R ) = = = = -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) = = = = -

Total proved+probable R BERELE - - - 994 4,462
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA = = = = 2,588
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 994 1,874
Sino Gas & Energy REIFE (=3 R ) = = = & -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) = = = = -

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHFEEAE - - - 994 6,534
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA = - - - 4,660
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 994 1,874
Sino Gas & Energy REIFE (=3 KR E) = = = - -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) = = = = -

Total proved Ry REAE - - - 730 15,211

Total proved+probable RSB EREAE = - = 994 23,870

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHFHELE & - = 994 25,942
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F —EF-MF —T-HF T F ZB-—t&
Gas Reserves (millions of SCF) AARHE
(ABEEYFHER)

Subsidiaries HBARFEEE

Total proved RARELE 40,178 44,147 36,262 155 1,210,712
China oilfields A B = 65 43 62 =
Canada oilfields JNZ K (Canlin) = = = - 1,210,705
Kazakhstan oilfields MaiE R 478 37,541 43,232 36,006 = =
USA oilfields ZH (Condor) 2,637 850 213 93 7

Total proved+probable RAESEREAR 96,090 97,249 93,050 1,356 1,801,464
China oilfields A B = 125 129 187 =
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = = - 1,801,455
Kazakhstan oilfields MR A8 90,416 95,111 92,380 = =
USA oilfields ZH (Condor) 5,674 2,013 541 1169 9

Total proved+probable+possible e MERTRKHEELR 140,592 131,880 122,081 3,829 1,801,471
China oilfields " B = 226 237 352 =
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = = - 1,801,455
Kazakhstan oilfields MaiE R 478 132,653 122,219 120,438 = =
USA oilfields ZH (Condor) 7,939 9,435 1,406 3477 16

Equity-accounted entities BRZARNERFEEE
(MIE share) (FEEELSS)

Total proved REREHE 134,069 364,140 375,870 46,696 47,989
Kazakhstan oilfields MR R A1E = = = 14,373 8,708
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 32,323 39,281
Sino Gas & Energy FREIFIL (=500 REGE) 134,069 364,140 375,870 = =
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) - - = = =

Total proved+probable R HERELE 302,582 466,650 574,260 76,408 87,431
Kazakhstan oilfields iR A8 = = = 29,773 28880
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 46,635 58,551
Sino Gas & Energy FEIFL (=340 R ) 302,582 466,650 574,260 - -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) - - = = =

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTRREELAE 499,321 579,870 781,830 84,016 113,099
Kazakhstan oilfields iR 418 - = = 37,381 54,548
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 46,635 58,551
Sino Gas & Energy BT (=330 k) 499,321 579,870 781,830 3 =
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) - - = = =

Total proved REREHE 174,247 408,287 412,132 46,851 1,258,701

Total proved+probable RAESEREAR 398,672 563,899 667,310 77,764 1,888,895

Total proved+probable+possible R MERTHHEAR 639,914 711,750 903,911 87,845 1,914,571
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Chairman’s Statement
TEREE

iz

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of MIE Holdings
Corporation (“MIE"” or the “Company”, together with the
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 (“FY2017").

During FY2017, the oil and gas industry showed modest recovery
and oil price was increasing, the Group’s average realized crude oil
price was US $48.96/barrel (“bbl”), which was 33.3% higher than
that in FY2016. The Group executed its Mergers and Acquisitions
(M&A) strategy and made a transformational overseas acquisition,
leading to a significant increase in reserves. Based on the year-end
2017 oil and gas reserves estimate prepared by independent
consultants, the Group’s Proved (“1P") oil and gas reserves were
256 million Barrel Oil Equivalent (“BOE", where 1 BOE = 6,000
standard cubic feet natural gas), representing 593% increase from
year-end 2016. The Group's Proved +Probable (“2P") oil and gas
reserves were 399 million BOE ("MMBOE"), representing 431%
increase from year-end 2016. The Group's Proved +Probable +
Possible (“3P") oil and gas reserves were 431 MMBOE,
representing 361% increase from year-end 2016. Based on the
discount rate of 10%, the net present value of the Group’s 2P oil
and gas reserves at the end of 2017 (NPV10) was approximately
US$1.965 billion, an increase of 123% compared to the US$881
million at the end of 2016.

HEMEMAR -

AAZRERMIBERIER AR AR AT BHE M
BERIER ] FE AR BETARLME &
BEFe((EF ) REAKEEE_F
—tEF T A=+ HALERFERE -

ZE—EFERRITEZRLOR - RREREH
B AEBFHERRBERF48.96F
T BT NELAHTIB3I% —F
—EFEAREBEN B R E SBITETEI
IiEE - HREEREABER o ENIB X Hl
BERE - T—+tE+ - A=1+—HHAREEFN
WS -t FEFHFEA(P) BRH
ER2016FEMN593% £2.56EHE £ (6T
ZETHRERRRAAG=1RES)  FHFE+H
H([2P))hMRMBER - — /NFIEIN431% =
SOEREE: MANFER+BLE + 7] 8
([P HABER - —/NFHEMN361%E
ABNEBWEE - IWBI10% BB RFE » A&
BER-—ZT—tFR2PHRBEFRAFRAE
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRHEE(E)

During FY2017, the top theme for the Group remained liquidity
while we optimized the asset portfolio and improved the
productivity of existing assets.

On the one hand, the Group strategically acquired overseas oil and
gas projects and achieved the integration of valuable assets. The
Group successfully acquired the all the partnership interest of CQ
Energy Partnership (“CQ Energy”) at the end of September 2017.
The successful acquisition of CQ Energy contributed towards a
significant increase in the Group's sale scale, production, reserves
and benefits and its 2P reserves were 334.5 MMBOE, accounting
for 83.9% of the Group’s total reserves and nearly 5.21 times the
reserves of other projects in the Group, as of the end of 2017. The
strategic acquisition of CQ Energy has greatly enhanced the scale
of the Group and achieved the Group’s transformation, making the
Group an international oil and gas company and enhancing the
financial stability and strength of the Group, as well as expanding
the geographic coverage into North America natural gas market.

On the other hand, the Group actively communicated with the
capital market. Using a combination of our own resources and
external support, the Group successfully repaid the senior notes
issued in 2013 in principal amount of US$200 million in February
2018.In the current market environment, we also tried our best to
dispose of some projects to generate liquidity for the Group needs.
In alignment with the Group’s strategy, we sold the entire issued
share capital of Riyadh Energy Limited (“Riyadh Energy”) for
US$45 million in December 2017. We will continue to focus on
adjusting and optimizing the Group's capital structure, especially
the Group’s debt structure to protect the long-term and healthy
development of the Group.

In the same period, we have implemented a cost leadership
strategy for mature projects of the Group, such as the Daan and
Moliging projects in China, engaged our employees to reduce costs
and increase efficiency. We were able to stabilize the production of
old wells and delay the declining trend so as to create strong
operating cash flow for the Group. In 2017, the all-in cash cost for
the Daan project was US$14.51 per barrel, the overall production
declining rate was controlled at 9.22% and the lifting cost and
production declining levels were significantly optimized over the
previous year, reflecting our disciplined operational management.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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On the Group's performance, as a result of the successful
acquisition of the CQ Energy (incorporated into the group's financial
statements starting from the 2017 Q4), the Group's FY2017 annual
oil and gas gross production increased by 43.0% to 9.44 million
barrels of equivalent, and net production increased by 87.8% to
6.76 MMBOE. Benefitting from the increased production and oil
prices, sales revenue of the Group increased by 110.5% to
RMB1.126 billion in FY2017. The adjusted EBITDA increased by
22.9%to RMB348 million.

Despite the recent recovery in oil prices, natural gas prices in
Canada remain low. The Group is positive about price recovery of
oil and gas but remains cautious of the challenges we are facing.
The Group will continue to focus on its core areas, diligently
improving cost control and productivity and maximizing strategic
value and financial returns. We will continue to work hard to
balance the company’s business development with improving its
capital structure. With the joint efforts of all the staff, we are full of
confidence in the future of our Group.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
thanks to our Board and staff for riding through these trying times
with us and to our shareholders, bondholders and business
partners for your continued trust and support.

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
Chairman
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREIEE

Executive Directors

Zhang Ruilin, aged 47, has been the Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 20, 2008.
Mr. Zhang is one of the controlling shareholders of the Company.
Mr. Zhang has over 27 years of experience in the oil and gas
business. Following the takeover of the Company by Far East
Energy Limited (“FEEL") in August 2003, Mr. Zhang joined us in
September 2003 and has been a Director of the Company. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing our overall strategies, planning
and day-to-day management and operations. Mr. Zhang is also a
director for the various subsidiaries of the Group.

Zhao Jiangwei, aged 46, has been the Executive Director and
senior vice president of the Company since December 19, 2008.
He is one of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Zhao
has over 25 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
Following the takeover of the Company by Far East Energy Limited
(“FEEL") in August 2003, Mr. Zhao joined the Company in
September 2003 and has since been a director of the Company. He
is and will continue to be primarily responsible for assisting the
Chairman in overseeing the operations at oilfields in the PRC. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Daging Petroleum
College in 1999.

Andrew Sherwood Harper, aged 66, has been our Executive
Director since his appointment on July 19, 2013 and has resigned
as an Executive Director and the Chief Geologist of the Company
with effect from June 30, 2017. Mr. Harper has been the
Company's chief geologist and president of the Company’s
international operations from 2001 to 2008 and rejoined the
Company in April 2010 as the chief geologist. Mr. Harper is also
the Chief Executive Officer and a director of MIE Jurassic Energy
Corporation, overseeing the group’s operations in the United
States. Mr. Harper was appointed as a director of Canlin Energy
Corporation in 2017. Mr. Harper has over 37 years of experience in
the oil and gas industry, during which he acquired his experience
working in the exploration and production team of ARCO
International Qil & Gas Company prior to joining the Company in
2001. During his time with ARCO, Mr. Harper worked extensively
overseas, including assignments in Chile, Dubai, Norway, the
United Kingdom and Indonesia, and as ARCQO's resident manager
in Bogota, Colombia. Mr. Harper also worked as a basin studies
director, Latin America exploration director and exploration project
director at the headquarters of ARCO International in the United
States from 1990 to 1996 and as an exploration manager at the
Andean Basins in ARCO Latin America Inc. from 1999 to 2000. Mr.
Harper received a bachelor’'s degree in Geology from Williams
College and a master’s degree in Geology from the University of
Southern California. Mr. Harper is certified as a Professional
Geologist by the Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists and a
Certified Petroleum Geologist of American Association of
Petroleum Geologists.

HITES

REF A7 BEZEZEN\F=-H-THEE
HERRBRITES - TEFREFEWNTE ° ®
BARRMIERRERE 2 — c REEEHRITE
% B #8127 F & % o Far East Energy Limited
([FEELHRZ=ZZE=F NAWBEAR QA%
RAEERZZZ=FNAMALRF] - Elﬁt*
HEFTRARES - FEFrEBEEETALAIEE
BES - RBAIREHEERELS - @E?EE?TZ%$
EEZRMBRABINES -

BIH 46 BT N\F+_A+NAARE
HERDRARITEERREAER - WARLD
ARERR Z — - AL RRITEREGR
25F {5 o FEELR —F 7_¢)\ﬁ1ﬁﬁ%21§’&
A& BEEAR _TTZ=FNLAMALXR
BU—BEEER 7§$°&££§fbﬁﬂﬂif
EETEMAMNZE - R—ANNE - BHEE
BISKELMER X228 -

Andrew Sherwood Harper - 665%° B — =
*Eitﬂ THBERBEEARRRRITEETTRN
E—tFRAA=THBEARARFANTEER

éf‘im%féﬁiﬂﬂx Harperf‘ﬁiﬁ/\fz =—Fx
ZEE )\ FEARR BB E RN AR BB
BEE ﬂ‘ﬁ’é:ifgimﬂi%ﬁl])\$’&ﬁj

HE B M E AT e Harperdt £ 3R AMIE
Jurassic Energy Corporation 2 1T 42 £ ¥ &
F BAEREEBEZERER o Harper AR
- 2 — £ F ¥ £ 1 ACanlin Energy
Corporation 2 % ° Harper 4t 4 7£ /i |17 %
BRITFER E_ZET—FMALARAZ
Al © 1% 7TEARCO International Oil & Gas
Company 2 B ) ik & A EE B B 218 TR
5 o IRARCO LB HA + Harper /85N TIE
LERYE  BIFERFESH - 3 - &
B RENERATE - AR B ES Mg A8
HEHALIE o Harper t £ TR — WL EF R
— A FHEERARCO Internationalh H
AT ET - BT E=MENIRE T R EHIRT

BEE WH— hﬂﬂiiige\giﬁ
ARCO Latin America Inc. Z2 25 B 2 30 B9 B R 45
3 o Harper 5¢ 4 € Williams College ih & £ £2
T2 RN KB E 258+ 827 © Harper
EEEENEEHERZXR e & (Texas Board
of Professional Geoscientists) 725 & H 3 i 'E
B W A % Bl A kb E B 2 € (American
Association of Petroleum GeologlstS)Z #a

Ao E D ©

| BERIERAR AT / 2017 F]

15



Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEZNEHREERE (&8

16

Tian Hongtao, aged 47, has been our Executive Director since his
appointment on December 5, 2014 and resigned with effect from
June 30, 2017. Mr. Tian joined the Company in January 2014 as a
vice president, he was the executive president of the Company
from February 2015 to June 2017 and is a vice president since July
2017. He has over 23 years of experience in finance and accounting
and brings considerable risk and control management expertise to
the Company. Prior to joining us, Mr. Tian served as financial
controller of Digital China Information Service Company Ltd., a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000555.57). Before that, Mr. Tian held positions as vice general
manager, general manager, assistant president and vice president
of Digital China Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) ("'Digital
China"”, stock code: 00861), focusing on risk and control
management of Digital China. Prior to his time at Digital China, Mr.
Tian worked at the Lenovo Group, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0992). Mr. Tian graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in 1994 and then a master’s degree in 2001, both in
Economics from the Central University of Finance and Economics
in China. He also obtained a master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in China in 2007. He is a non- practicing certified public accountant
in China.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Xie Na, aged 42, has been the Non-executive Director of the
Company since November 13, 2015. She has previously held
various positions at Shanghai Life Insurance Company Ltd., Sequoia
Capital China and Monitor Group. Ms. Xie has experiences in
equity investment, portfolio investment focusing on consumables
and TMT as well as marketing, operations and post-investment
management. She had led investment projects such as Peak Sport
Products Co. Limited and Sky- mobi Limited (symbol: MOBI.
NASDAQ). Ms. Xie is currently an executive council member of the
China Women’s Chamber of Commerce and the vice president of
China Energy Storage Alliance. She was also a visiting professor of
the Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences. Ms. Xie
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer engineering from the
University of Toronto in 2002 and a master’'s degree in business
administration from Stanford University in 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Jiao Qisen, aged 37, has been a Non-executive Director of the
Company since January 29, 2018. Mr. Jiao has extensive
management experiences and is currently the chairman of
ChemChina New Material Co. Ltd, China Sam Enterprise Group Co.
Ltd., and China Jing An Ltd.. He obtained a doctoral degree in
Management from Beijing Normal University in 2010, a doctoral
degree in Philosophical Psychology from Bulacan State University
in 2012 and a postdoctoral degree from Beijing Jiaotong University
in 2016. Mr. Jiao has also published various essays and other
publications in the field of management and psychology over the
years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mei Jianping, aged 57, has been our Independent Non-executive
Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010. Mr. Mei
has been a professor of finance at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in Beijing, China since 2006 and a fellow at Financial
Institutions Center, the Wharton School of University of
Pennsylvania since 2004. He was a tenured associate professor of
finance from 1996 to 2005 and an assistant professor of finance
from 1990 to 1995 at New York University. From 2003 to 2008, he
also taught at Tsinghua University as a special term professor of
finance. Mr. Mei has been a director of Cratings.com Inc., USA
since 1999. Since 2009, Mr. Mei has served on the boards of
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (stock code: 1238.HK), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and also Zhong De
Securities Company Limited. Mr. Mei also served as the chairman
of board of Shanghai Zhangjiang JRtan.com Inc. from 2000 to 2012.
From November 29, 2013, Mr. Mei has served as an independent
non-executive director of Ground Properties Company Limited
(stock code: 989.HK), and from August 11, 2014, Mr. Mei has
served as an independent non-executive director of China Rundong
Auto Group Limited (stock code: 1365.HK) (both companies listed
on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Mei worked as a consultant for
various financial institutions, such as Deutsche Bank, UBS,
Prudential Insurance of America and Asia Development Bank. Mr.
Mei has published a number of books and articles on topics related
to finance. Mr. Mei received a bachelor's degree in Mathematics
from Fudan University in 1982, a master’'s degree in Economics
and a Ph.D. in Economics (Finance) from Princeton University in
1988 and 1990, respectively.
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Jeffrey Willard Miller, aged 55, has been our Independent Non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010.
Mr. Miller has over 31 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Since 2012, Mr. Miller has been Managing Partner and
Co-Founder of Vortus Investments, an energy private equity firm
founded in later 2012. From 2008 to 2012, as the director of
upstream and investments for Mercuria Energy Trading Inc.
(“Mercuria”), one of the world's largest independent physical
energy trading firms, he was responsible for Mercuria and certain
of its affiliates’ global portfolio of oil and natural gas assets, the
majority of which are located in North and South America. Prior to
joining Mercuria, Mr. Miller spent four years, from 2004 to 2008, as
president of Moncrief Oil International, a private oil and natural gas
company with assets in the former Soviet Union as well as North
America. Prior to his career at Moncrief, Mr. Miller was a managing
director in global energy investment banking for UBS AG, the
successor of Dillon, Read & Co, which he joined in 1993. Mr. Miller
was an investment banker with a focus on the energy industry and
has extensive experience in the fields of corporate finance.
Throughout his career as set out above, Mr. Miller has been
involved in a substantial number of transactions including initial
public offerings, debt offerings and mergers and acquisitions,
which require expertise in financial analysis. As an investment
banker, Mr. Miller also had extensive experience in valuation
analysis, which involved reviewing and analyzing audited financial
statements of public and private companies. Mr. Miller's
professional career began in a technical capacity as a petroleum
engineer with Exxon. Mr. Miller received a bachelor’'s degree,
magna cum laude, in Petroleum Engineering from Texas A&M
University and a master’s degree in Business Administration from
the Columbia Business School.

Guo Yanjun, aged 65, has been the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 13, 2015. He has
extensive entrepreneurship experience and experience in corporate
operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated from China
People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984. Mr. Guo is
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 391.HK). He is also the
chairman of CNHK Tech Co. Ltd, CNHK Media Limited, CNHK
Media (H.K.) Advertising Limited and CNHK Publications Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mei Liming, aged 37, was our Chief Financial Officer from May 31,
2016 to April 12, 2017 and has resigned from his position with
effect from April 12, 2017. He was subsequently re-designated as
a vice president of finance and merger and acquisition. Mr. Mei
joined the Group in January 2005 and has since worked across
various functions including as an accountant, finance manager and
vice financial controller. During his career in the Group, Mr. Mei
gained extensive knowledge and experience in the oil & gas
industry, financial management and capital markets. Since joining
the Group, apart from daily financial management, Mr. Mei has also
been closely involved in many transactions including various
financings and acquisitions. He also participated in the process of
the Group’s initial public offering on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Mei graduated from Beijing Institute of
Petrochemical Technology with a Bachelor of Accounting in 2003.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mei worked as an accountant at
Sony Corporation in 2004.

Song Wu, aged 51, is our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Song has
over 28 years of experience in planning, finance, auditing and
operational management in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Song
joined the Group in January 2004 and has held different managerial
positions within the finance department. Mr. Song had ever led
MIE to be granted with the honor of “Pioneers of China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") Foreign Cooperation Projects”.
Mr. Song gained extensive knowledge and experience in the oil &
gas industry, corporate operation and financial management while
working in the Group. Mr. Song graduated from Northeast
Petroleum University with a double degree in accounting and
computer science in 1996. Prior to joining us, Mr. Song worked for
CNPC from 1989 to 2003. He obtained his accountant qualification
in the PRC in 1998.
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Lian Yunfei, aged 42, had been our general counsel from
November 2009 to January 2015. She has rejoined the Company
since August 2017 as a vice president and general counsel of the
Group. Ms. Lian has over 14 years of experience in the legal field.
Prior to joining us, Ms. Lian worked as an associate at Baker &
McKenzie Hong Kong office between 2007 and 2009 focusing on
mergers and acquisitions and general corporate advice and as
North Asia general counsel of a US multi-national corporation
between 2015 and 2017. In her early career, starting in 2001, she
worked at a law firm in Canada, focusing on general practice for
over three years. Ms. Lian obtained a juris doctor degree from the
Faculty of Law at the University of British Columbia in 2007. She
received a Master’s degree in Engineering from the University of
Florida in 2001 and a Bachelor's degree in Science from Shanghai
University of Science and Technology in 1996. She is admitted to
practice law in New York.

RELATIONSHIP AMONG DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save for Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, senior vice president and Executive
Director, who is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, our
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, there are
no familial relationships between any of our Directors and senior
management.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present this
corporate governance report in the Group’'s Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITMENT

The Board of the Company has responsibilities towards the
shareholders and related stakeholders to ensure the Company’s
successful operation. Sound corporate governance is not only vital
for the Company to cope with the evolving regulatory environment
and reinforce the relationship with its shareholders and
stakeholders, but also important for the Company’s success and
sustainable development. We are committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and have promoted corporate
governance practices appropriate for our business operations and
development.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard
shareholders’ interests, enhance corporate value and
accountability, formulate its business strategies and policies and
enhance transparency.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are established
based on the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"), as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has
applied and complied with the applicable provisions of the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except the Company
did not hold the Nomination Committee Meeting and the deviations
with explanations below.

The Company shall review and improve its corporate governance
practices on a regular basis to ensure a continuous compliance of
such practices with the requirements of the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors throughout
the year ended December 31, 2017.

STRUCTURE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Remuneration
Committee Committee

EREES FHEES
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THE BOARD

As at December 31, 2017, the Board comprised six members,
including two Executive Directors, a Non-executive Director and

three Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, members of the Board are listed as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)
Mr. Tian Hongtao
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)

Non-executive Director:

Ms. Xie Na

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun

Mr. Jiao Qisen was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from January 29, 2018.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out under
“Directors and Senior Management” on page 15 to page 18 of this

annual report.

The relationships among members of the Board are disclosed
under “Relationships among Directors and Senior Management”

on page 20.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out under

the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and made recommendations to the Company
regarding the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the Company’s compliance with the Model Code, the code of
conduct and compliance manual for employees and Directors, and
the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Ruilin
("Mr. Zhang") is the Chairman of the Board. Apart from serving as
Chairman, Mr. Zhang has also been appointed as Chief Executive
Officer. Such appointment constitutes a deviation from the Code
Provision A.2.1. The reasons for deviation are explained as below.

Different from integrated oil companies engaged in upstream and
downstream business, the Company is engaged in the business of
oil & gas exploration and production. Therefore, the Board
considers that, the making and implementation of strategic
planning decision by the same individual is in the best the interest
of the Company’s oil & gas exploration and production business.
The Nomination Committee of the Company also agrees that it is in
the best interest of the Company that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer be performed by the same individual.
Therefore, the Company does not currently proposed appoint
another person to act as its Chief Executive Officer. However, the
Company will continue to review the effectiveness of its corporate
governance structure and consider if any changes are necessary
(including separating the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, being the Executive
Directors, act as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and vice
president respectively, and are collectively responsible for the
operation of the whole group. Executive Directors should actively
communicate with Non- executive Directors, and maintain an open
and responsible attitude in respect of any reasonable administrative
suggestions and enquiries raised by the Non-executive Directors.

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper had resigned as an Executive
Director with effect from June 30, 2017.

Mr. Tian Hongtao had resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from June 30, 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The five Non-executive Directors of the Company review the
management'’s performance in fulfilling established corporate
targets and principles. They should also ensure that financial
information is reported clearly and accurately, and the risk
management and internal control systems are implemented
effectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board) with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Independent Non-executive Directors assume no management
responsibilities in the Company, and hold no more than (either
legally, beneficially or deemed) 1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company; nor have they acquired any interest in securities
of the Company either by gift or other methods; hence their
independence is strongly guaranteed. In accordance with
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Independent Non-executive Directors have provided an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are involved
in communications with the auditors, which fully exhibits the role
of independent supervision. During the reporting period, no
objections regarding the proposals of the Board or Board
Committees have been raised by Independent Non-executive
Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’
RE-ELECTION

Non-executive Directors serving the Board and Board Committees
are equipped with different skills, specialties, backgrounds and
qualifications, benefiting the Board a lot. Independent Non-
executive Directors not only act as Non-executive Directors, but
also equip the Board with expertise and business specialty
supplementary to management, thus providing unique opinion and
independent judgment for the possible situations during the
implementation of the Company’s business. Independent Non-
executive Directors are acting as chairmen and members of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
under the Board of the Company.

The appointment and re-election of all Directors of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2017 was in compliance with the
CG Code. In accordance with the Code Provision A.4.2, all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The specific term of appointment for Directors of the
Company is three years, which is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The appointment of Non-executive
Directors of the Company shall comply with the Code Provision
A.4.1 under the CG Code, namely, all Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leading and supervising the
businesses, strategic policies and performance of the Company, as
well as being collectively responsible for facilitating the successful
development of the Company by detecting and supervising the
Company's affairs. The Board makes objective decisions in the
interest.
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The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
through him to senior management the authority and responsibility
for carrying out the Company's day-to-day management and
operation. The delegated duties and responsibilities will be
reviewed on a regular basis. The aforementioned senior executives
shall obtain the approval from the Board prior to entering into any
significant transactions.

In addition, the Board has established the Board Committees and
delegated responsibilities as set out in their respective written
terms of reference.

All Directors (including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors) have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board,
facilitating an efficient and effective operation thereof. All Directors
shall ensure that they will perform their duties in good faith, comply
with applicable laws and regulations and act in the interests of the
Company and shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company and the services and advice of the company
secretary, to ensure that procedures of the Board and all applicable
laws and regulations are complied with. Upon request, Directors,
may seek independent professional advice when appropriate for
discharging their duties to the Company, at the Company’s
expense.

Directors shall disclose to the Company details regarding other
offices held by them, and the Board shall review the contribution
required from each Director in performing his duties to the
Company on a regular basis.

The Board reserves the decision-making power over all important
issues, including the Company’s policy matters, strategies and
budget, internal controls and risk management, significant
transactions (especially those that may involve conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational issues. The responsibilities regarding to implementing
Board decisions, directing and coordinating the Company's daily
operation and management are delegated to be the Management.

In respect of legal actions against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities, the Company has
made arrangements for appropriate insurance cover Directors and
executives regarding their duties.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will obtain on-board induction upon
first occasion of his/her appointment, in order to ensure appropriate
understanding of the Company’s business and operation and full
awareness of the Directors’ duties in accordance with Listing Rules
and related laws. The Director shall keep abreast of the duties as a
Director of the Company, and the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

All Directors are continually updated on the legal and regulatory
regime as well as the business environment, so as to assist in their
performance of duties. The Company will make arrangements
when necessary and provide briefing and professional development
training to Directors.

All Directors should participate in appropriate continuing
professional development for developing and updating their own
knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that they can remain
informed and continue to make contribution to Board as
appropriate. The Company will arrange internal briefing sessions for
Directors and distribute reading material on relevant topics where
appropriate. The Company encourages all Directors to attend
related training courses at the Company.

On April 6, 2017, all Directors of the Company attended a training
titled “Duties of Directors and the Role and Functions of Board
Committees” held by the Stock Exchange.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Three Committees have been established under the Board, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to supervise particular aspects of the
Company. All Board Committees of the Company are established
based on functions and powers set out in the written terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange for shareholders’ reference.

A list of the chairman and members of each Board Committee is

set out under "Company Information” on page 2. All members of
the Board Committees are Independent Non-executive Directors.

MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EENEHEERER

t%%ﬂf%%ﬁ%u\ﬁéﬁkﬂ/\ﬁé S AR
CERBEEZEARANEE LS Wi
’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ&ifﬁF%ii%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%i °
ERARBERRIESNRREZNRBE ALK
NAWMEERN RS RER -

PRESTERERSEMIENEEREIR
%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ? B R EEITRE
ARBENBERERZY  HERAERREH
BN R BXBERE

EPREZF2EFENFEESEER  BRY
BB S MB LG URRHEETEHES

BEEAMDEMBENBERLTHEFEMEE
Bl ARRIERERR AT SESTLHEN
W REFHNEBI B ZBEELH - AQF]

SREREFTHFRBEIRE  BREAR
AT e

E-ZT—tFOARE  ARRMBERHZ
MTHEEBHAXIMBRADNERNESTHS
MREELZEENAEEBEENE -

EEgZ8E

EXgCRUSEEZREE  AEZZES #
MEBEeMEEEES  UEBARRRES
HZER  ARBIMAEFEERREGHRER
FEZBIESRERY - ARBERETERA
N ) R Bt 32X P AR A (R AR B BB

E

FMEEEERBENBYREIIIFNTES
REFEREEMNIFERKERERNF2H
Z [ RARIER] »



RYRVA \

/JE%>

orate Governance Report (Continued)
$&/__‘: (nE)

Board Committees are also equipped with sufficient resources to
perform their duties, and can seek independent professional
advices when appropriate (upon reasonable request) at the
Company’s expense.

Committees

ZEE

Audit Committee
B

L5IBE

Remuneration Committee

i
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Nomination Committee

BE

Chairman

£

Composition

AR

Independent Non-executive
Director:

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
BIUFMITES

Jeffrey Willard Miller 24

All other members are
Independent Non-executive
Directors: Mr. Mei Jianping and
Mr. Guo Yanjun
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Independent Non-executive
Director:

Mr. Mei Jianping
BUFRITES:
BRETEE

All other members are
Independent Non-executive
Directors: Mr. Jeffrey Willard
Miller and Mr. Guo Yanjun
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Jeffrey Willard Miller 564
BEELE

Independent Non-executive
Director:

Mr. Mei Jianping
BIUFMITES

1B EE

All other members are Independent
Non-executive Directors: Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Guo
Yanjun
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Audit Committee
B

Committees

Z88

Remuneration Committee

&

Nomination Committee'"

Eg (1)

Review financial statements
and reports before they are
submitted to the Board, and
consider any significant or
unusual issues raised by
external auditors o
e Review the relationship with

the external auditors by

reference to the work

performed by the auditors,

their fees and terms of °

recommendations on the

appointment, re- appointment

and removal of external

auditors to the Board
e Review the adequacy and
efficiency of the Company’s
financial reporting system, o
internal control system, risk
management system and
related procedures

Main responsibilities ¢
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Review and make
suggestions on the
remuneration of Directors and
senior management to the
Board
Review and make
suggestions on the
remuneration of Non-
executive Directors to the
Board
Review and make
suggestions on the
Company'’s remuneration
policies and structure of
remuneration of all Directors
and senior management to
the Board
Review and make
suggestions on the
appointment letter of
Executive Directors newly
appointed during the year to
the Board
Review and approve the
compensation arrangements
of Executive Directors and
senior management
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changes

Formulate and develop the
relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of
Directors

Identify suitable candidates for
appointment as Directors
Make suggestions on the
appointment or re- appointment
of and succession planning for
Directors to the Board

Assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive
Directors
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Committees

Z8g

Audit Committee

% i

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee'"

Eg (1)

Number of meetings
held in 2017 and
summary of work

Two meetings were held for
reviewing of the financial
performance and reports, financial

A meeting was held for reviewing No meeting was held.
the granting of share options to
the directors, substantial

done reporting and compliance shareholders and employees,
procedures, reviewing and granting of awarded shares to
reporting on the Company’s directors and employees. The
internal controls and risk meeting was also held for
management system and evaluating the performance of the
procedures, work scope and directors and management
further engagement of external  discussing the remuneration
auditor, related party transactions policy and structure.
and arrangements focusing the
staff on possible inappropriate
acts
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When evaluating the composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider different aspects required by the Board diversity policy, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge, industry and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will discuss and reach consensus on measurable
objectives of diversification of members of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination procedures for
selection of candidates for directors by making a reference to the skills,
experience, expertise, personal conduct and time commitments of individuals,
the Company’s needs and relevant laws and regulations. WWhen necessary,
external recruitment professionals may be engaged to carry out the selection
process.

The meeting of the Nomination Committee did not take place in the year ended
December 31, 2017 and took place on January 25, 2018 instead.

ERHEESENE REZEeREEEEEX
BEZTTEHRERN TR EBEETRIER -
Fiv XEMBAEE R FXEE - 5L AEA
RITEMMEER  HawmLRAZEXRESTENE
ZEACMATAITR B IR - LAEE SR HERM -

RAZEGE2EHREANRE  £8  SEHH
AR RRHEEA - ARAHEREMARER
ER RMARTESFREANRERREN - KER
AREHEFTQITEERELN -

—tFEERREEZRE
)\i ﬂ THAEFR/NAER -

BHEE

BERIERARAT /2017 F1

31



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TERER®RE (B)

32

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The details regarding Directors’ attendance of meetings held by the
Board and the Board Committees during their tenure during the
year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in the table below:

EENZEEHEHESRNTE

BREFHEHEHANEREE_T—+F+H
=+ —BIEFERT E’Jﬁ%.a,\i%@%%@
= n?ﬂé&zlg jHX%j{ﬁEUHEﬁﬁEAT%

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ SRR
Extraordinary
Nomination Annual General
Audit Committee  Remuneration General Meeting
Board Committee (note 1) Committee Meeting (note 2)
REZEE RRKHAE
34 ENZEE (3#1) ¥HzEE RRAFAS (32)
Executive Director HiTES
Mr. Zhang Ruilin FRFRLE 6/6 N/A RiER N/A RER N/A @R n 1"
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei BIREE 6/6 NATER N/A &R N/A @R 01 on
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood Harper 5¢ & 3/6 N/A TER N/A &R N/A T 01 NA T ER
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017) (BERZZ—tERA=THET)
Mr. Tian Hongtao (Resigned with HtEEE(ERZE—14F 3/6 NATER N/A &R N/A @R 01 N/A @R
effect from June 30, 2017) NAZTEET)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Xie Na Hipat 4f6 N/A TER N/A @R N/A @R 01 o1
Independent Non-executive Director BUKYTES
Mr. Mei Jianping BRTEE 46 202 0/0 17 01 1
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 524 4/6 2/2 0/0 N Al on
Mr. Guo Yanjun DREEE 4/6 202 0/0 n 01 n
Note 17 The meeting of the Nomination Committee did not take place in the year % 1 RABINR-_T—LFERARAREEZEY B

ended December 31, 2017 and took place on January 25, 2018 instead.

Note 2 The Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting on September 22, 2017
for approving the Partnership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated
May 31, 2017 (the “PSA") entered into between Direct Energy Resources
Partnership, A Partner, Canlin Energy Corporation and the Company, and the
terms and conditions thereof and the transactions contemplated thereunder
and the implementation thereof, and to authorise any one of the Directors or
other person to take such action or steps to give effect to and implement the
PSA.

The Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting on September 22, 2017
for approving the Subscription Agreement dated May 31, 2017 (the
“Subscription Agreement”) entered into between CCGRF Gastown Limited,
Maple Marathon Investments Limited, Mercuria Energy Netherlands BV,
Canlin Energy Corporation and the Company, and the terms and conditions
thereof and the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
implementation thereof, and to authorise any one of the Directors or other
person to take such action or steps to give effect to and implement the
Subscription Agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, apart from regular
Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings with Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) without the presence of other Executive Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and concise
annual reports and interim reports, announcements on inside
information and other disclosures as stipulated by the Listing Rules
as well as other statutory and regulatory provisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties regarding
events or situations which may cast significant doubts upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The management has provided necessary explanations and
information to the Board, such that the Board can make an
informed assessment of on the Company’s financial statements
submitted for its approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers,
whose responsibilities in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 124 to 136.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors (i.e., PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms within the same network) is set out below:

EENUBHRRAENSE

EEHRRSEEAREARFBE_T—+
Fr-A=+t—RLFEZHMBEEHRE -

EEAFRELMRAUREMETE REE K
SURTERE - B R E R RS kPR
T AREE S REMKE -

BERW TABERS R AT H AR BIRFELE
EENBEBERRRNEHFRBRNEATEER
o

EEECAEFSRHELENEERER - U
BEESIUHRZTESSENRR TN
HRAEH BT -

BT

AR B Z MBI BB 3 R S Bk B & AN = 15
FROAT R IEERAGE])  EEARAE
HUEBHREREERNE124E 136 A2 BIZ
G

R-Z—tF  ENREMNTARRZHEE
TR B N AR B B B TV 251 7R
LU

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARET R

Audit and related services EitR B EBR%E
— Included in continuing operations — BEERFELE 7,183
— Service in relation to acquisition — G ERT RIS 8,318

Non-audit service I EFT RIS

— Included in continuing operations — BEEFEKE 665
16,166
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Risk management and internal controls are part of the core
operational management activities and business activities of the
Group. The Board aims to establish a comprehensive risk
management system which complies with the Group's strategies
and business features, perfect the organizational structure of risk
management, standardize risk management processes, adopt
qualitative and quantitative risk management methods, carry
forward risk identification, evaluation and mitigation, and facilitate
the sustainable and healthy development of different businesses of
the Company. The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system so as to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Company’s assets, and reviewing the
effectiveness of internal controls on a yearly basis, with the
assistance of the Audit Committee.

The Company’s risk management system and internal control
system are established for an efficient and effective operation, so
as to ensure reliable financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, identification and management of
potential risks and safeguarding of the Group's assets. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Senior management of the Group reviews
and evaluates internal control procedures, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on the
results and measures for handling differences and risks identified.
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Risk management structure and other details

The risk management system and internal controls of the
Group are guided by the “three lines of defense” as listed
below:

1.

2 B B EE 2R A R B B

SEHEE

w [ =Bl BA/ES

The Board
EEE

|

Audit Committee
EREEY

| |

m

X

~+*
£
%:
AP
N
®e
|z
o
=
«»

|

1st Line of Defence
Operational
Management and
Internal Controls
—iEfrs
**@ B R AE R

2nd Line of Defence
Risk I\/Ianagement
—Es
‘“é pEE

3rd Line of Defence
Internal Audit
E=Ebhs
N EBERIZIRIE

As the highest level decision-making body for the Company’s
risk management and internal controls, the Board is
responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of overall risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee, on behalf of the Board, performs the duties
regarding risk management and internal controls, supervises
management design, implements and monitors work
regarding risk management and internal control system, fully
understands various significant risks and corresponding
management faced by the Company, and supervises the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system.

EEgR R AREERAMEERS
HrHAREEIENER
C &

SRR
MEE -EECXEXKEZET
EERSRETRAMEIELNIBEIERE -
EETER  BHRAEER
NEEZESIERN TIE  2HEBEHEL T

MRASHE KRR MEEEAMNR - Eﬁg
R EIE R ARBEEE R ETHNARIE -
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Three lines of defence

1st line of defence: operational management and internal
controls

The 1st line of defence comprises the Company’s internal
control system, including (i) corporate policies shared with
staff via the internal network; (ii) operational policies,
procedures and practices covering authorization and

transaction approval, etc.;

(iii) application of financial reporting

standards and (iv) review of financial performance and
significant judgments.

(1)

Company policies:

The Corporate Management Manual is
categorized into three parts: the Organization
Chart, Segregation of Duties and Authority Guide,
and Management System Compilation. The
Organization Chart depicts the internal
organizational structure of the Company. The
Segregation of Duties and Authority Guide covers
the key components of all functions of the
Company’s project companies, the Board
Committees and management. It establishes clear
management responsibilities, authorization and
accountability. The Management System
Compilation covers the processes and approval
procedures related to internal controls within the
Company, clarifying the responsibilities and rights
of various departments. Since 2016, we have
initiated a plan to reorganize and amend the
Corporate Management Manual in a bid to update
related systems and enhance operation efficiency
based on the latest organizational structure.

The Staff Manual regulates the behaviors of the
staff of the Company, aiming at facilitating the
penetration of integrity and moral values into the
Company.

The Whistleblowing Policy encourages the staff
and other business-related personnel to report
events involving misconducts or fraud in the
Company, without being persecuted.
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o The Information Disclosure Policy regulates the
handling and publishing of inside information of
the Company. We ensure that inside information
is saved and accessed in an absolutely confidential
manner until the Company makes timely
disclosure.

The Information Disclosure Policy includes:

o Applicable scope of policy

o Form of information disclosure

o Periodic reports

° Management of matters relating to
information disclosure

(2) Operational policy:

The Accident Management Regulations help the
Company to systematically and timely report and handle
accidents in a detailed, unified and coordinated manner,
with corresponding follow-up and monitoring conducted
by the Internal Audit Department.

2nd line of defence: risk management function

The 2nd line of defence comprises several risk monitoring
practices of the Company, and is subject to the supervision of
the Audit Committee. The Company has adopted a risk
management event library, and developed an exhaustive plan
in respect of various risks, so as to support the Company’s
risk management program and assist the operating
departments to identify and report significant risks affecting
the Company in a timely manner. The Company's risk
management event library adopts a top-down risk
assessment approach at the corporate level, and within each
operating unit, a bottom-up approach is adopted for re-
examination by using the individual risk register (based on the
impact from risks). The risk management event library
identifies the main challenges faced by the Company, thereby
assisting the Board and the management to make informed
decisions.
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The Company’s risk management event library and register
classify risks into five different categories for assessment:
strategic, market, legal, financial and operational risks, also
comprising 70 types of risk data of the Company's project
companies. The Company has noted the major risks posing
significant impact on the above categories, and will
periodically assess each major risk for its potential impact on
finance and opportunity of occurrence. The existing controls
are able to identify and address all the major risks and help
improving the skills, benefits and costs required for the risks.

Project companies submit their respective updates on the
risk register to the Internal Audit Department semi-annually,
so as to assist in preparation of the Company's risk
management report. In 2016, after a review of the risk
management procedures, in order to comply with the
Company's financial reporting regulations, the Internal Audit
Department of the Company carried out risk review semi-
annually and approved the Company’s risk management
report, to submit to the president office meeting, Audit
Committee meeting and the Board, and finally for the
approval by the Board, to facilitate the Audit Committee
effective monitoring of the Company’s major business risks
and how the management copes with and mitigates the risks.

Details of the Company’s major risks and potential risks are
set out on page 41 to 44.

3rd defence: internal audit

The internal audit department of the Company is responsible
for internal audit, which plays an important role in assessing
the efficiency of the Company’s risk management and
internal controls system, and is responsible for reporting to
Audit Committee periodically. The audit function of the
department covers the whole Group, with evaluations
handled by the head of the internal audit department of the
Company. The head of the internal audit department of the
Company is required to report to the Chief Executive Officer
and may also contact with the Chairman of Audit Committee
directly, and periodically submit the internal audit report on
the efficiency of the controls system in accordance with the
established audit plan to Audit Committee. During the year
under review, Audit Committee is responsible for approving
the annual audit plan and reviewing reports from the Risk
Management Department.
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The head of the internal audit department reviews the
Group's internal audit function based on risks of each project
company at the operating and corporate level, and agrees on
correction and improvement measures. The head of the
internal audit department will follow up on the recommended
implementation and report relevant results to the Audit
Committee.

External auditors

External auditors of the Company raise independent queries
regarding various businesses, operations and the
performance of internal auditors (especially any significant
internal monitoring involving financial reporting confirmed
during audit), so as to further improve the 3rd line of defence.
External auditors will report any defects in the controls to the
Audit Committee.

Audit Committee and the Board

The Audit Committee reviews and examines the audit report
and statements submitted by Management, each financial
department, internal auditors and external auditors according
to the requirements on reporting, and discuss any significant
issues. Regular risk management reports can be divided into
two reports, internal audit and controls report, and company
risk management report, for further discussion. The internal
audit report is submitted in accordance with the audit plan
annually, and the Audit Committee reviews company risk
management report in order to keep in line with the timing of
financial reporting of the Company. The Audit Committee
examines the impact of any defects in respect of content of
reports, evaluation of efficiency of risk management and
internal controls system, and whether responses are valid,
and determines whether to conduct more extensive
regulation. Besides, the Audit Committee will review the
performance of internal auditors and external auditors, and
the advice of external auditors on the internal finance
department.

The Board holds meetings, proposes recommendations in
respect of the final results submitted by the Audit Committee,
and discusses to find out the final resolutions.
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Main scope of work conducted in 2017 in relation
to risk management

Based on compliance control management, the Company will
establish a sound all-around risk management system
consistent with the highest international standards and
continuously improve risk controls and technology based on
risk governance, guided by risk preference, with risk
quantitative tools and risk performance appraisal as primary
measures, so as to achieve the balance between risk control
and business development.

The specific work conducted by the Company in 2017 is as
follows:

Establish the Company’s risk management register,
record the Company's risk trend and specific ratings;

Develop and improve the guide for project risk
evaluation, provide practical and comprehensive project
tools, and help improve management of major risks
during project cycles;

Periodically prepare company risk management reports
for submission to senior management of the Company,
subsequently submit to the Audit Committee and the
Board for approval;

Discuss existing and potential major risks, and
measures and other activities adopted for addressing
such risks.
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List of significant risks

4. EZERARYT

In 2017, the top 10 major risks in relation to the Company's RZE—+F UTNFEAEBERQAE
business and operations are as below. The Company BRESHBENTATERR - NAF]
arranges, selects and prioritizes the risks encountered by 18 36 A 75 R BT A R e hn LA BR I8

existing business, to compile the list of major risks. During EENTELENT  BEFERP -
the compilation of the Company's major risks, we held a Eiﬁ‘%ﬁ’\ﬂigﬂﬁﬁﬂ’]iﬂﬁqﬂ 1M
special meeting with management to discuss and review NABEBEBRITT —RERGRL
responses to individual risks. Review of risk procedures is s A BER RS A ELIEE - LA
helpful to emphasize potential risks and identify new risks. NEBEBEZINAANES - BiTEB

Maijor risks

TERBE

BB R B R - I 3R
[\ -

Risk description and risk response

JeB B 3 e P

Risk of oil and gas price fluctuation

HRERKE R

Risk of oil and gas resources

HRE R E R

International oil price is subject to the impact of various factors: changes
in global and local political and economic conditions, supply and demand
of oil and gas, and contingencies and controversies with international
impact. Domestic oil price is determined and adjusted with reference to
the price of international crude oil. The Company’s businesses involve
both domestic and overseas markets and are therefore subject in
particular to the impact of risks of price fluctuation. However, the
Company avoided the risk through hedging instruments, meanwhile, set
up relevant personnel to continuously focus on the fluctuations of crude
oil price and report, thereby reducing the risk from the fluctuation of oil
and gas prices.
BIFHES 2R EBUAKHENE L  hRmERERA RABRERY
ENREBMHNFRELTEEARNTE - BHB2RERRHER
HE - BREREER TS RAEREMALE - RABREFEB IR
BN BRSNS - E L - REICEERS /BZEJJHEMEI’J%; c{BE - KA
RAEMRETIAHZERETRERE R RVEBASREBTR
HEREREIER - WHMER - FME T hRERKEHREERE -

The implementation of the Company’s business activities may be
impacted, due to the uncertainties in the exploration and development
of oil and gas resources, or the uncertainties during the purchase of oil
and gas resources with substantial funds. Although detailed assessment
and feasibility study and analysis on investment projects in the prior
period have been conducted, the Company cannot avoid the risk arising
from the uncertainties of oil and gas resources.
BRAREENABERAREREOBRNAZFETREEN - 3%
AREESBEMRERAREFEFEIETEN  BRAFRKLEIER N
REEBIINZE - AKRAREIER AT IER E1T T AR 8
ATHRS T - BAF@ 2 BNERE RN ETE 2R e @R
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Maijor risks

TERR

Risk description and risk response

JeB B 3 e P

Investment risk

RERER

Exchange rate risk

I m R

Risk in international operations

il Sy

Since the oil industry is a capital-intensive industry, the Company has
adopted a prudent investment strategy to carry out strict and detailed
feasibility study and analysis on investment projects. However, during
the implementation of the projects, the projects may fail to achieve the
expected benefits due to large variations in market environment, price
of equipment materials, construction cycle, etc., therefore, some
investment risks are presented.

FHITEBRESBERTE  ARRDERIMTEENKRERR - Hik
B8 B ETTERE ai?EE’JTﬁ'I‘iﬁﬁ%Eﬁ%’%ﬁ BRERE BMBERETR 1D
BRI AATHIRE  REMBONER  IEAMRFRERKRE L - &
HEEMREERON G  BtFE—CHRERR -

Although the Company has avoided exchanges rate risk by adopting
tools such as forward exchanges, however, the fluctuation in exchange
rates will inevitably have an impact on the profit of the Company.
Besides, the adjustments in the national interest rate policies will also
impact the Company's financing cost, thereby impacting the profit of
the Company.

BARNRDRBRIIINESTH - WERRERETHRE  EEXK
BINAA@EHEARRNFEEEZE o I - BRFIERBERANRE
R EERRBIREKSR - B ARARFE -

The Company engages in oil and gas businesses in some overseas
territories. Overseas businesses and assets are governed by the laws
and regulations of the country where the business, so the complexity of
internal political and economy, including international sanction, instability
of tax and fiscal policies and culture difference, may increase the risk of
overseas business expansion and operation of the Company. Although
the Company explores overseas businesses in the countries other than
those with economically or politically unstable situations, and conducts
detailed surveys prior to the commencement of projects, it is unable to
completely avoid the impact from contingencies in the countries where
its businesses are located.

RRABERINE DM RIEFMRRT o BINEBMEEX D PAEBDEE
ERHNEE  ARBERECS - KBENEML - SREEERE - MRECR
PRENRX L ZRSE - HAIBEIMARRBBINEBIRR R EHER
ﬂ&%ﬂiﬂiéﬁﬁa%‘é%ﬂiﬁ@@T\%iﬁ’ﬂ%i&ﬁxiﬁl\%?‘ﬁ’]%ﬂ% (7] B
TETE B AT BRI TRr AR GAT - BT RE R e ERMREIE NG A DA
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Maijor risks

TERR

Risk description and risk response

VB B 4 30 e P

Risk of national policies

EENEE e

Production safety and
environmental risk

R EERRRR

Market competition risk

MiZHEFERR

The Chinese government oversees the domestic oil and gas industry,
therefore, its regulatory policies may impact the Company’s business
activities. The changes in government regulatory policies, such as tax
and fiscal policies, energy-saving and emission-reducing policies, may
impact the business performance of the Company.

PRI HE AR RMRARITHEETES HEBIREZELRR
IETEE) o BITBUR - ﬁﬁﬁb)&ﬁtéﬁﬁa{%ﬁ“”ﬂzﬁ CE BRI B %K
EREBRNAINEEEE

As a high-risk and environmentally-unfriendly industry, oil exploration is
vulnerable to natural disaster threats, and the production environment is
flammable and prone to explosion. Emergencies such as well blowout
and drill sticking may result in heavy economic losses and social impact
as well as pose major harm to personal safety. Although the Company
always stresses the importance of and implements safe production, and
endeavours to avoid various accidents and makes insurance
arrangements for major assets and inventories and against losses it may
cause to any third-party, it still cannot make provisions for the full extent
of the economic losses and adverse impacts which could be brought by
such emergencies.
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With the gradual opening of certain domestic petroleum and
petrochemical markets, the Company faces more fierce competition
from other domestic oil producers and foreign oil producers in relation
to, for example, obtaining rights to enter resource countries, seizing oil
and gas resources and expanding the market when it is making efforts
to strengthen its own business. With a price advantage in a competitive
environment, the Company keeps developing more advanced
technology and reducing its cost. However, its earnings will inevitably
be impacted by market competition.
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Maijor risks

TERR

Risk description and risk response

JeB B 3 e P

Confidentiality

R R

Property safety risk

MEZZRAR

5. Potential risks

Information on the Company’s oil reserve and unsigned investment
projects is strictly confidential. It is a policy of the Company that any
staff in a key position should sign a confidentiality agreement and be
obligated to keep information confidential. But even so, risk of
information leakage brought by job hopping, change of employment or
other events is still unavoidable.

KRR ERER &ﬂiﬁﬁuﬁxélﬁﬁfmmiﬁﬁ%z =8 ANRATHEM
REVCEIFEIIRE WS UREEEAEREERE - BT r#E
B A B PR BER S BB - SR BN R A R

With oil and gas exploitation as its principal business, the Company
establishes comprehensive rules and regulations and strict monitoring
process on aspects such as use of assets, production and
transportation. But since oil and gas exploitation is an outdoor activity,
there is still a risk that assets may be lost or stolen.
RAREBREHRMALESE  BARNRRHEEER £E  EWF
ERERE E’J%ﬁa%ﬂfﬂkﬁiﬂﬁﬁ % BEMNERAREBEEINE
7 AR IR EREE - ERNEERKIIBRNER

5. BERMK

In addition to addressing various major risks faced by the BRESAQFAEENSBEEZRRI -
Company, the Audit Committee also reviews specific ERZESHRETREENELRR -
potential risks. Such potential risks often stem from changes hEEERRBERELE  BUR &
in economic, political, legal or technical environments, and BAHEMBRNEY  SLEHA z1E|
may but not necessarily fall into the scope of current major T*EEEAJ@%’%E’JIKH 2 X8R o R A
risk categories. In the opinion of the Company's Audit EBERLZEERA  REBERRILE
Committee, such potential risks may have a significant impact WEKE’]%E P8 BtgRd B EER
on the Company; therefore, it will aim to minimize such RNEIHBIE R Z W KR ERRAETE]

impact and develop risk mitigation plans.

Potential risks

EBIERR

Risk description and risk response

BB B 4 o

Network security risk

Due to increase in network viruses, hacker attacks and failure in network
maintenance, leakage of data information becomes more and more
frequent. Although the Company has installed software such as firewall
to protect data and reduce network security risks, it is unable to
eliminate the impact of such risks as it has both domestic and overseas
businesses.

Ziﬁfi CRERE - ZRHEREEHNEIRE SN SEE N - 8
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Work focus in 2018

In 2018, the Company will focus on improving its risk
management framework and procedures, strengthening
internal risk communication, raising risk awareness and
defining risk bearers in accordance with the CG Code and
best practices in the industry. We will arrange risk awareness
related trainings for our main operating departments, and
continue to assist the various business departments to
enhance their risk management procedures in accordance
with the Company’s risk management framework and
guidance. In addition, we will identify major risks and make
arrangements in relation to the report and improvement of
risk countermeasures, potential risk framework and close
monitoring initiatives.

Statement of the Board on internal control
responsibilities

The Company's internal controls are aimed at reasonably
ensuring operation legality and compliance, asset safety and
authenticity and completeness of financial report and related
information, improving operating efficiency and effectiveness,
and facilitating the implementation of development strategy.
The Company has comprehensively assessed the
effectiveness of its own internal controls and reported such
assessment to the Audit Committee and the Board in 2017.
No material weakness was identified during the assessment.
In the opinion of the Board, for the year ended December 31,
2017, no events that may have significant impact on the
Company'’s operation, financial reporting and compliance have
been identified, and the existing risk management and
internal control system remains effective and adequate to
guarantee the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND MANAGEMENT
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company discloses information in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong
Kong and the Stock Exchange, releases its periodic reports and
interim announcements to the public in accordance with law, and
discloses important information such as the Company’s financial
results, material information changes and information on significant
projects to the market on a timely basis, bearing in mind the
timeliness, fairness, accuracy, authenticity and completeness of
information disclosure, therefore protecting the legal interests of
investors and stakeholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Sau Mei of Tricor Services Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company, as its company
secretary. Ms. Wong Sau Mei has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the year. The company secretary
reports to the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
regarding corporate governance issues, and all Directors can seek
her advice and support. The company secretary is also responsible
for providing advice to Directors and the Board Committees on the
latest laws and regulations, such that procedures of the Board as
well as all applicable laws, regulations and rules are complied with.
The company secretary’s primary contact person at the Company
is Ms. Lian Yunfei, the general counsel of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders, the Company
will propose a separate resolution in respect of each significant
matter (including the election of individual Directors) at general
meetings. All resolutions put forward at the general meeting will be
voted on by poll in accordance with the Listing Rules, and the poll
results will be announced on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held
as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one- tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may
also be convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send the written enquiry to the Company by post or email as per
the below contact information.

CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests by post or
email:
Address: Room 521-26, 5F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(with the Board of Directors as designated recipient)
Tel: 852-2511-0028
Fax: 852-2511-1983
Email: investors@mienergy.com.cn

Shareholders must deposit or send (as the case may be) the
original of the duly signed written requisitions, notices or
statements or enquires to the above address, and provide their full
names, contact details and identification such that the Company
could reply to them. It is likely that the shareholder information will
be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for strengthening relationships with
investors and increasing investors’ understanding of the Company'’s
business performance and strategy. Also, the Company
understands that maintaining transparency and disclosing the
Company's information on a timely basis are very important for
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

For this purpose, the Company has set up a website
(http://www.mienergy.com.cn), where relevant latest information,
the up-to-date state of the Company’'s business operation and
development, the Company's financial information and corporate
governance practices and other data are available to the public.
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The Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders, especially through annual general meetings and other
general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Non- executive
Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairmen
of all Board Committees (or their representatives) will attend annual
general meetings to meet shareholders and respond to their
enquires. The Company’s general meeting is a platform for the
Board and shareholders to communicate with each other.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, no changes have been made to
Articles of Association of the Company. An up-to-date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal business of the Company, its subsidiaries and joint
controlled entities is to engage in the exploration, development,
production and sale of crude oil and other petroleum products
under production sharing contracts and other similar arrangements.
The Group currently has the following oil and gas properties: (1)
one producing production oil sharing contract in northeast China; (2)
a diverse producing, resource and infrastructure oil and gas asset
throughout Western Canada; (3) a working interest in the Niobrara
shale oil and gas asset in the United States of America held by
Condor Energy Technology LLC's; (4) participating an exploration
contract and four production contracts in Kazakhstan held by Emir-
Qil; (5) Invested in Canadian listed company Journey Energy Inc;
and (6) participating one producing production oil sharing contract
in South China Sea.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 139 to 141.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year has been set out in
pages 11 to 14 of the Chairman’s Statement, pages 96 to 123 of
the Management Discussion and Analysis, and this Report of the
Directors.

RESERVES

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 142 to 143 and note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 262 to 263 for movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of the senior notes are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at December 31, 2017 are
disclosed in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

BUY-BACK, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company
repurchased a portion of its 6.875% senior notes due in 2018 and
7.5% senior notes due in 2019 listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange (2018 Notes” and “2019 Notes"”) pursuant to a tender
offer made to its noteholders. The repurchase price paid in relation
to the 2018 Notes and the 2019 Notes validly tendered and
accepted by the Company was US$117.6 million in aggregate. On
July 13, 2017, (i) the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes repurchased by
the Company were cancelled; and (ii) US$497.6 million in aggregate
principal amount of the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes remain
outstanding. Subsequently on February 6, 2018, the Company
repaid the 2018 Notes that remain outstanding in full upon its
maturity.
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Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31,
2017, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had bought-back,
sold or redeemed any other listed securities of the Company.

A summary of the buy-back, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities is set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

(i)

Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (“Plan”)

The Board adopted the Plan prior to the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange designed to attract and
retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility, provide additional incentive to employees and
directors and promote the success of our business. Under
the Plan, a total of 29,902,758 share options were granted to
Directors, executives and employees, of which 7,880,387
share options lapsed. The share options were granted at nil
consideration.

The exercise price of the granted share options is equal to or
higher than the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share of the Company. The share options
granted under the Plan typically vest over a two or three year
period at each anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each vesting
date.

The Company has undertaken that no further share options
will be granted under the Plan upon the listing of the
Company, but the provisions of the Plan shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and share options
granted under the Plan prior to the listing of the Company
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the Plan and
agreements entered into pursuant to the Plan.

MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

B bt P EE 41

REBEE2-_F—tF+=A

=+ —HIFE  AARKEHEEFAFARGE
O - HESBEOARREMEM EHES o

ARFEE - HESBRIALQR ETHES 2B
ZEN A HMBRARMEE20

BB

(i)

MR R B =58 ([ &5 8)

SR RAR AR T BT Z AR
mzEtEl B EARERETMBAA
EBErREBEFSERAS  AEERES
IR N ED I R AR D B A FE R
& o IRIEZATE] - & 329,902,758 17 f#E
BHEERES TRABREBRH -
H 7,880,387 (3 BRI D ARk - BRARE
THIAZRERD -

PR BN ITREZENHENE
BB E B ) IS EAR o B0 B AR
TRA AN RBARRR — D
REBZ AR OOBRE-—RREHA
HEERFHOMI=FHHRER - H2
HEAESERBEENAEDLSREE

ARBEAHRARB LTRETER
BT EIR M MBI - XN
R AR A BT AR 2EAER K
B MARTE EHATREZ 81K H
H B P A F] M AE IR IR kAT B AR R Rk AT
BIFTAT M IR TIE -



Report of the Directors (Continued)

=

ne=x

S HE ()

(ii)

Details of the share options outstanding as at December 31, R-ZT—+E+_A=+—08 " RBE%
2017 which have been granted under the Plan are as follows: FEEEEEREKRITE ZEREFS
T
Number of Number of
options options
Held at granted exercised Held at
January 1, during during  December 31,  Exercise price
Name 2017 the year the year 2017 (per Share) Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB-t%F
RZE-t§& AEERL: AFEEAE t-A=1-H TEE
%% -A-BEE  BREHE EREHA B8 (R) BHAH TF M
Independent non-executive
Directors
BIFYTES
Mr. Mei Jianping 1,267,933 - - 1,267,933 US$0.25  November 23, 2010 from November 23, 2011
BETEE 025%1 “F-TF+-A=1=1 to November 22, 2020
B-%3——§+-A=1=R
ECTCREL-ACTCA
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller 1,811,333 - - 1,811,333 US$0.25  November 23, 2010 from November 23, 2011
Jeffrey Willard Miller % 025%n —F-TF+-A=1+=AR to November 22, 2020
EZT——f+-A=+=H
E S =
Other employees 17,048,120 - - 10,986,312 USS$0.13 November 20, 2009 from November 20, 2011
EfET 01351 ZTENE+-A=1H to November 19, 2019
B-3——5+-A=1H
EZE-AET-ATAA
Total &3t 20,127,386 - - 14,065,578
Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) (i) RS ([ BRETE )
On November 27, 2010, the Board adopted the Scheme to RZE—ZF+—A=-++tH EEE
enable the Company to grant options to selected participants HABEKETE - ARG AETSE
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to our Group. ERDBERE  ERREUAREEME
Participants of the Scheme include any executive Director, BRI R E R o BRE B2 MR
non-executive Director or full time employee of the Group as PREFSEFENASEEMNITE
invited by the Board. The Scheme shall be valid and effective EENTEFLEBES - BIRER
for a period of 10 years commencing from the approval of the SR E AT O BRI A R R AR
Scheme.
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The exercise period of any option granted under the Scheme
must not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
must be made within 28 days from the date of grant with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee. The
exercise price determined by the Board will be at the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

The share options granted under the Scheme typically vest
over three years on the last day of each year starting from the
subsequent year of the grant, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date and other
performance evaluation results.

Cancellation of Vested Options

On September 20, 2011, the Company granted, pursuant to
the Scheme adopted by the Company on November 27,
2010, share options to certain employees of the Company,
entitling the option holders to subscribe for an aggregate of
112,048,000 ordinary shares of the Company of USD0.001
each at the exercise price of HK$2.254 per Share (“2011
Grant”).

Since February 2013, the exercise price of the vested options
has been higher than the prevailing market price of the
Shares. As a result, the options could no longer serve as an
effective incentive. In view of this, the Company offered
these option holders a cash consideration of HK$0.20 per
Share to cancel vested options under the 2011 Grant, subject
to the option holders consenting to such cancellation. As a
result, options in respect of 65,358,066 Shares were
cancelled on March 21, 2014.
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Grant of Options

On March 21, 2014, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 151 eligible participants
comprising certain directors, substantial shareholders and
employees of the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of
97,280,000 Shares. These options have an exercise price of
HK$1.40 per share and a term of 10 years from the grant
date, and will vest over the next three or four years.

The closing price per share as at March 20, 2014, being the
date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$1.34.

On December 9, 2016, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 93 eligible participants comprising
certain directors, substantial shareholders and employees of
the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of 95,920,000
Shares. These options have an exercise price of HK$0.816
per share and a term of 10 years from the grant date, and will
vest over the next three years.

The closing price per share as at December 8, 2016, being
the date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$0.78.

BETHEERE

—ET-NE=ZA-+—8 " RaREE
EAZIMIIZAERALT BFEA
RIMENEER  TEREME TR FH
") RR A% HA B - 58 £ 51 97,280,000 Y A%
7o BRETEEBAEER1.408 T B
BEARBABRTHRE TS  BBR
R A% = SN RS -

RZZT—NFE=A=+H  BERER
HATE B SREOETHERR1.348

JT °

—ET-XE+-ANE RRIREBEER
BFrEIMI3ZAERAL  BIEATN
HHEZ TEREMETIRFHHR
RS B A - 52 B8 H 51 95,920,000 &Y B ©
BRETEEAER0.816E T - B
ERHAERTHRETE  BBREE
H1& = FRGHE -

R-Z—XRE+-ANB  BBERER
HATE R SREOETHERR0.788
JC °©

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k

55



Report of the Directors (Continued)

‘** -u &tt(/\\/\)

56

Under the Scheme, a total of 305,248,000 share options were
granted to Directors, executives and employees, of which
68,649,619 share options were lapsed during the year ended
December 31, 2017. Details of the share options outstanding
as at December 31, 2017 which have been granted under the
Scheme are as follows:

RIREERE AT &) - & 305,248,000 7 i
Hﬁ*ﬁaﬁ%%% CITBRAEBREER -
—E—+F+-_A=Z+—HIt+ -
+ H 168,649,619 B ik - 1R
ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂeﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁé:%—tﬁ
+Z A=+ —HEARTENEREFES
o

Number of Number of Number of
options options Number of options
Held at granted exercised  options lapsed cancelled Held at
January 1, during the during during the during  December 31, Exercise price
Name 2017 period the period period the period 2017 (per Share)  Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB-t& RZB-tF
-A-B  REARE: REAGEZ  REABAN  RMEAERE TZAZ1-B
33 ¥8  EREHA BREHA EhRE"A BREHA bt TEE(ER) #EA TFIREE
Executive Directors
g
Mr. Zhang Ruilin 2,347,000 - - - - 2,347,000 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
FRRLE 254 —E——ENA=TH to September 19, 2021
A-5-—Ef-A=-BE
EZZC-FAATARLE
2,640,000 - - - - 2,640,000 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016
140%8r —F-MEZB-+-B to March 20, 2024
BCE-FZACT-BR
EZ3-ME=A-TAL
2,900,000 - - - - 2,900,000 HKS0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
08163 —F-~ET=ANA to December 8, 2026
-5-RETZANER
ECECRETCANEL
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei 2,347,000 - - - - 2,347,000 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
BIREE 26481 Z5——FNAZTH to September 19, 2021
A-5-—Ef-A=-BE
EZZC-FAATARLE
2,640,000 - - - - 2,640,000 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016
140%r —3-ME=A=+-B to March 20, 2024
BCE-FZACT-BR
EZ3-MEZA-TAL
2,900,000 - - - - 2,900,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
0816%T —F-~FT=ANA to December 8, 2026
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Number of Number of Number of
options options Number of options
Held at granted exercised  options lapsed cancelled Held at
January 1, during the during during the during  December 31, Exercise price
Name 2017 period the period period the period 2017 (per Share)  Date of grant Exercisable period
RZZ-tF RZg-tf
-A-A  RERRHz  RERTEZ  REREAN REAERE +-A=t-B
i34 2] BREHA BREHE BREHA BREHE bt TEE(ER) BER TFEHE
Mr. Andrew Sherwood 441,000 - - 441,000 - 0 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
Harer (Resigned as 20548 “E-—ENA-TH to September 19, 2021
an Executive Director B-E—Ft-AZt+-Bi
with effect from ER--FAATARL
June 30, 2017) 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - 0 HK$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2016
Andrew Sherwood Harper 1408 —5-NE=A=+-R to March 20, 2024
FERZE-tE BZ5—E-Azt-AR
~RZTREE E-E-MEZA-HAL
H1783%) 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 - 0 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
0816 —F-~ETZANA to December 8, 2026
BZE-"FTZANAR
EZRORETZANBL
Mr. Tian Hongtao 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2015
(Resigned as an 140%T —5-RE=A=+-8 to March 20, 2024
Executive Director B-E-RFZA-t-H#
with effect from E-E-MEZA-TALE
June 30, 2017) 17,000,000 - - - - 17,000,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
BRELE 081631 —F-—~FTZANA to December 8, 2026
(RZE-t% -5 ETZANBR
~RZTREE EZENETCANBLE
WnEs)
Other employees 21,827,334 - - 7,397,334 - 14,430,000 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
EftET 2545 “E——FAR1H to September 19, 2021
B-F-Ft-A=1-HE
EZ3--FAATARL
60,230,505 - - 16,964,153 - 43,266,352 HK$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2015
1403r —Z-ME=A-t-H to March 20, 2024/
from March 21, 2016
to March 20, 2024
A-F-REZA-T-BE
ECECME-A-TAL/
B-F-AEZACT-BE
EITCMEZACTRLE
69,120,000 - - 13,050,000 - 56,070,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
0816 T ~ETZANA to December 8, 2026
-5 ETZANBR
EZZEHANBLE
Total 8t 194,392,839 - - 44,852,487 - 149,540,362
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(iii) 2012 Share Award Scheme (“2012 Share Award

Scheme”)

To supplement the Plan in respect the operation of the share
appreciation rights (“SARs"), the Board resolved to adopt a
2012 Share Award Scheme on May 30, 2012, pursuant to
which the Company granted to selected grantees who are
persons holding SARs under the Plan, such number of
awarded shares as is equal to the number of outstanding
notional shares to which the SARs of the selected grantees
relates. The 2012 Share Award Scheme does not constitute a
share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.

The Board resolved to adopt on November 20, 2015 the
amended Plan, pursuant to which, restrictions on grant price
of SARs granted after the adoption of amended Plan are
removed. Lapsed SARs will be re-used and re-granted upon
terms and conditions determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company in its sole discretion, in
accordance with the amended Plan.

According to the 2012 Share Award Scheme, shares of up to
44,415,800 of the Company will be purchased by a trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Company and
be held in trust for the benefit of the selected grantees
pending the exercise of the SARs. Upon exercise of the SAR
by the selected grantees, the trustee will sell the awarded
shares to which the SAR so exercised relates and pay the
selected grantees in satisfaction of the Company’s payment
obligations in relation to the SAR under the Plan. Unless early
terminated by the board of the Company, the 2012 Share
Award Scheme shall continue in full force and effect until the
date when all the SARs are exercised, terminated or expired.

As at December 31, 2017, the trustee held 41,195,002 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$77,337,547 (including
transaction costs). As at December 31, 2017, the trustee sold
3,218,998 shares upon exercise of SARs so exercised by
certain grantees.
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(iv)

2015 Share Award Scheme (“2015 Share Award
Scheme”)

To recognize the contributions by certain grantees and to give
incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group, the
Board resolved to adopt on January 6, 2015 and amend on
November 20, 2015 the 2015 Share Award Scheme, pursuant
to which the Board may at their absolute discretion select any
grantee, who is an employee or consultant of the Group or of
any affiliate, for participation in the 2015 Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares to be
granted to such grantee. The 2015 Share Award Scheme
does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme
of the Company, and will be in effect in parallel with the Plan,
the Scheme and the 2012 Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, existing
shares will be purchased by a trustee from open market out
of cash which will be paid by the Company as trust shares
and be held on trust for the grantees until the relevant
award(s) is vested in accordance with the relevant award
agreement and the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules. Upon
vesting, the trustee shall transfer the relevant trust shares as
awarded shares to the relevant grantee, or upon receipt of
the instructions from the grantees, dispose of the relevant
awarded shares in open market and transfer the proceeds of
the sale of the relevant awarded shares (after deduction of
the relevant charges, expenses, stamp duty and levy) to the
relevant grantee.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, the
2015 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective from
January 6, 2015 to the date of the last of the awarded shares
has been vested and transferred to the relevant grantee or
has lapsed, whichever is later, in accordance with the 2015
Share Award Scheme rules, provided that no award shall be
made on or after the 10th anniversary date of the adoption
date.
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(v)

As at December 31, 2017, the trustee held 79,704,000 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$67,700,095 (including
transaction costs).

On November 20, 2015, the Board of Directors has resolved
to offer to certain directors and employees 14,200,000 shares
under the 2015 Share Award Scheme.

On December 9, 2016, the Board has resolved to offer to
certain director 12,000,000 shares under the 2015 Share
Award Scheme.

Others

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under each of
the Scheme, the Plan and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12 month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the 2012 annual general meeting.

As at the date of this report, the maximum number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme and the Plan is
264,784,079 shares and 14,065,578 shares respectively,
representing approximately 9.01% and 0.48% of the issued
share capital respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)
Mr. Tian Hongtao
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Xie Na
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun

Mr. Jiao Qisen was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from January 29, 2018.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Xie Na, Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Guo
Yanjun shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. In addition, Mr. Jiao Qisen, who was appointed by the
Board as a Non-executive Director with effect from January 29,
2018, shall hold office until the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association. All of the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

We have entered into letters of appointment with each of our
Directors, pursuant to which each of the Executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors is
appointed for terms of three years, subject to re-election in
accordance with our Articles of Association at our general meeting.
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On November 20, 2009, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
each an Executive Director, has entered into a service contract with
the Company, which is renewable yearly unless terminated (i) with
12 months’ notice by either party, or (ii) by the Company upon
certain events such as the Director having committed serious or
persistent breaches of the service contract. Should the Company
terminate the service contract, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao
Jiangwei will be entitled to receive severance payment equivalent
to one year's basic pay under the service contract, save for
circumstances described in item (ii) above.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have entered into a
service contract with us which does not expire or which is not
terminable by us within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUED CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company had
followed policies and guidelines to determine the price and terms
of the CCTs conducted. the Group had the following transactions
with Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”) and Jilin Guotai Petroleum
Development Company, Songyuan Guotai Petroleum Technology
Service Company and their subsidiaries (“Jilin Guotai”), which are
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules:

(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to the Company
(B)  Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Category | — Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholder’s Approval
(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us

Mrs. Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, and is therefore
a connected person of our Company. Since 2008, Mrs. Zhang

has been regularly leasing a substantial number of vehicles to
us.
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On December 31, 2012, we entered into a renewed
framework vehicle rental agreement with Mrs. Zhang (the
"Vehicle Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Mrs. Zhang
agreed to rent to us a number of vehicles for the purpose of
the day-to-day business operations of our Group, subject to
the entering into of individual contracts as agreed between
Mrs. Zhang and us pursuant to the Vehicle Rental Agreement.

No individual vehicle rental contract has been entered into
with Mrs. Zhang under above Vehicle Rental Agreement
during FY2017.

Category Il — Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

(B)

Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework oilfield
service agreement with Jilin Guotai (the “Qilfield Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin Guotai agreed to
provide to us various oilfield services including well
maintenance services, well logging services, oil tanker
transportation services, oilfield construction related works
and other oil operations related services, subject to the
entering into of individual contracts as agreed between Jilin
Guotai and us pursuant to the Oilfield Service Agreement.
The service fees will be based on normal commercial terms
and negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties to our Group.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into the Renewed
Oilfield Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of
three years ending December 31, 2015.

On December 31, 2015, we entered into the Renewed
Oilfield Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of
three years ending December 31, 2018. The proposed annual
caps for the transactions under the Renewed Qilfield Services
Agreement are RMB99.0 million, RMB96.0 million and
RMB82.0 million for the three years ending December 31,
2018, respectively.
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HEE BEGRTNSERBILE=7
FAEE iR E -

RZEBE——F+-_A=+—H #HA
HMBERETILALAERT A RS 1 3%
HAEHZ2—_FT—RAF+-_A=+—AHI1
=% o

RN-ZT—RAF+-_A=+—H #HfME
HMBE R AEER AR E - F
HeEHZz-_FT—N\F+-_A=+—AH1L
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As listed below, the aggregate annual transaction amount of
each continuing connected transaction for the year ended
December 31, 2017 has not exceeded the respective
proposed annual cap in the Renewed Oilfield Services
Agreement as set out in the announcement published by the
Company on December 31, 2015.

B TXAS - SRHEBERIREZE
TE—tFF+ AT —HLEZFEXR
SHREINEB T —=FA A —+WUH
BREBFASHENHERZFEL
R ARXERARFR_E—RF
+Z A=+ —HEBEHHAE -

Transaction amount
for the year ended

Connected Person  Nature of transaction Proposed annual cap December 31, 2017
BlL=—2—tF
BB XEME BRFELR tTZA=+-BX5#
Mrs. Zhang Lease of vehicles by RMB5.1 million None
RRA Mrs. Zhang AR®B1087T E
to the Company
RARARARRLETE
Jilin Guotai Provision of oilfield RMB96.0 million RMB60.81 million
ELUEES services by Jilin Guotai to AR#9,6008 7T AR¥6,081 87T

the Company
BN EES EAVANSIE L
PR

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors,
the above transactions were entered into: (i) in the Group’s
ordinary and usual course of business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole. Details of such
connected transactions are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that for the year
2017 the continuing connected transactions (i) have received
approval of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group, where applicable; (iii) have been
entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing the transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the
respective cap amounts set by the Company.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited
assurance engagement on the above non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported their
conclusion to the Board, stating that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the relevant non-exempt
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of the relevant
non-exempt continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the relevant continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries, including the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries to the Group.

BIFE ETRAE14AB6E  EEFECE
EARNBZBMIZBESSTMASA
W BB EEEIFER 30005 [F
SIS ER B R EM AN BB T (E]
M2EBHHAE 7405 [FE LHHEE
HENFBEBERZWZEA RG] &
FREFEER IV TETEELSH
BF ZEBMEBERAEESRE -
EFE

a. AZBREDYEF B BT FRS M1
MEZSHBHNIEFREHERER
GARERRBEETGHE

b. MARERHEERKREHTE K
R5 - B EE BB ETEIA
SHMREZERSETEATE
RAERAEENE BBORETT -

c. BREmMIEIEIEAFESMM
MEZERFIEEEATERAR
BEBZS RSN HTELET

d.  BFREFEHEXSNESEM
5 REBTEFEINENFES
PIREZEREHERINEHE
BAARRARIZHZF LR -

B EXEBEES ARBEEARRER
BR(EZR EMRR) SKETMAMEL
AW ERI A EREG R (RFEERRR
HEM B AR M AEERERS)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2017, the Group entered into certain transactions with
“related parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards, details of which are disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, as disclosed in note
38(a) to the consolidated financial statements: (i) the transactions in
connection with the purchase for oilfield services fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, and are subject to reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements; (ii) the
transactions in relation to purchase of spare parts and rental of
vehicles and office premises fall under the definition of continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are fully
exempt from the connected transaction requirements under the
Listing Rules; and (iii) the transactions in relation to sales of
vehicles and loans fall under the definition of connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and are fully exempt from the
connected transaction requirements under the Listing Rules.

During 2017, the Group did not carry out any transactions in
connection with the lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us as
mentioned on page 62 of this annual report, which fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules and are exempt from independent shareholder’s approval.

The relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
(as applicable) with respect to all the above connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions have been complied with.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions of the

Group constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15
to 18.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at December 31, 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which will have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or which will be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in the Listing Rules, were detailed as follows:

EERFETBRAERAKRQTHEM
BEEBE RS - HEROREEE
FEBNERRBKR

RZZE—+F+RA=+—H KRREEK
EBTHAERAARLEMEBEZE(EER
&7 MBI ([ 7875 R BB 5G] 1) % XV )
m D - MR RERZETHREREES R
HERBIFEXVEBET7 R8N BAMEARE R
BRMERIORR (BRRERE S MERK
{5 B 5 3O B E AR AR B A B R 2 SR
B RIRERE 77 R B R 5 362 (R HO R TE
AERNZIGFENELMANERIORE
SRFHN EHRANALHBETAESETE
5 R 5 ERAEST A ([F2ESFRI)) BRI G AN A ]
FE R e sOR BRI T

Number of ordinary Approximate
shares (including total percentage

Name of Capacity/ options to be of interest in the
Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest exercised) corporation
BE ! hEEEEN
- EEAR 513 RERME (BRETTERERE) BHETFA
Mr. Zhang Ruilin Our Company Interest of controlled 1,521,295,234 (L) 51.77%
RIRFTE AAE] corporation (Note 2)
Rzl EERR (f52)
Interest of controlled 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
corporation (Note 3)
Rt LR R (37 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 7,987,000 (L) 0.27%
BERHAAN(Ht4)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei Our Company Interest of controlled 1,621,295,234 (L) 51.77%
HIIREE PAN/NC| corporation (Note 2)
Rzt EEER (H52)
Interest of controlled 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
corporation (Note 3)
Rzt EEER (57 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,187,000 (L) 0.35%

BRBHAWT4)
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Name of Director

£

Name of
Corporation

BT

Capacity/
Nature of interest

51/ EEME

Number of ordinary
shares (including
options to be

Approximate
total percentage
of interest in the

Mr. Zhang Ruilin

Far East Energy

Interest of controlled

RImAR LA Limited (“FEEL") corporation (Note 2)
Rt EEER (57 2)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei FEEL Interest of controlled
HIIREE corporation (Note 2)
Rzt EEER (H3F2)
Mr. Mei Jianping Our Company Beneficial owner
e PN EHBEAA
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Our Company Beneficial owner
Jeffrey Willard Miller %4 YN ESEAA

Notes:

(1

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang"), Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr.
Zhang") and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei (“Mr. Zhao") as to 80%, 9.99% and 10%,
respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to Mrs.
Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
Champion International Energy Limited (“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in
the Company were transferred from FEEL to Orient International Energy
Limited (“Orient"”), 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited (“New Sun”) and 141,460,000
shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to Power International
Energy Limited (“Power"). Each of Champion, Orient, New Sun and Power is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited, which is itself a
wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed to act in
concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of the shareholders
of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert Agreement, if a unanimous opinion
in relation to the matters that require action in concert is unable to be reached,
Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.
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exercised) corporation

BRAEAE EEERERN
(BREUTRERE) BHEEA
8,999 9.99%

9,000 10%

1,267,933(L) 0.04%
1,811,333 (L) 0.06%

FHILIBRUALTRARTARNTHEFE - F&
[S]IERMATRARBBRMHEKE

FEEL ERBTIE (TRKAD) « sRIGAREAE ([REED)
N Ts S E(THEE]D) D RIFEA80% » 9.99% K
10%Ewm e RZT—=FAA=-+MA ' FEELH
72,000 f% i% 13 3 17 F R KX A » FEEL D RIS A 1R 7]
399,070,000 /% + 399,070,000 fi% * 475,000,000 % &
141,460,000 % % 19 & 3% F Champion International
Energy Limited ([ Champion) * Orient International
Energy Limited ([Orient]) * New Sun International
Energy Limited ([New Sun ) % Power International
Energy Limited ([ Power]) ¢ Champion * Orient
New Sun } Power#J & Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited ) 2 & /& A &) ° ifi Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited Bl FEELH) 2 B KB A A FRKA » Rk
ERBEECI L —BTBHE Bt BERE
MEAFEELRFRAEM — ) FE —ITH) - RIE—
WATE R MRAEERBRR —BITBHFEN —
WER REABERH  REXARBEENRS
EITRERR -
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The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,521,295,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,887,000 share
options, (iv) the call option which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been
granted, pursuant to a put and call option agreement, over the 88,521,234
shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through Celestial Energy
Limited (“Celestial”), as further described in note (3) below, (v) the 100,000
shares owned by Mr. Zhang himself, and (vi) the 2,300,000 shares owned by
Mr. Zhao himself.

The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of shares (the
"PCA"), pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their shares, and
section 317(1)(a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of
Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

On January 6, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a letter agreement in relation to the put and call option. The Board
was also informed that Great Harmony International Ltd (“Great Harmony")
and Celestial have entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Great Harmony has agreed to acquire (or procure its affiliate or other
person or company designated by it to acquire) and Celestial has agreed to sell
211,855,234 ordinary shares in the Company.

On January 18, 2017, February 23, 2017 and March 7, 2017, Celestial had
ceased to have 53,334,000 shares, 40,000,000 shares and 30,000,000 shares
in long and short positions, respectively.

On May 17, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang (collectively, the
“Controlling Shareholders”) and Celestial entered into a second letter
agreement in relation to the put and call option agreement. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 17, 2017.

On November 30, 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the supplemental agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated November 30, 2017.

FEEL REAMBEER A2 HFAH
1,521,295,234 I & Hi#E = B35 () FEEL @B E 7 A A
(3R 7o 25 FN#E 2 A0 BB fE FEEL O3 AR) BB AR
A)1,414,600,000 8 Bt # 2 (DREERFEH
7,887,000 fix FE AR 1 - (i) {4 5% A4 1578 #9 7,887,000 Ak
FEARAE - (v) IRIRSRUE AR P8 B 158 - FEEL » 5R%E
A RS 9t A R F Ho Chi Sing % 4 3 18 Celestial
Energy Limited ([Celestial]) # & # & 2 7
88,521,234 IR ARMEEARE - BT XPIFE(3) + (VREE
RAFFEH) 100,000 R B i o + LA K (vi) il 58 AR
A HH2,300,000 & E 25 o

ARARZZT—NF+—A/\NBEE ' TPG Star
Energy Ltd. £ Celestial 5] 32 B & # &% @ ¥ Ut -
Celestial A E Y28 &% TPG Star [ & H % 211,855,234
A& A A R A% o

RZZT—MFE+—HA/\B FEEL: R&E4E - %
4 - 3RK A K Celestial #t & T IR0 5]V R04 R R
MR - Bl ZMBEZATNAREEEZER
HHEROzETEFNLERAESRBEEKHNE
317(1)(a) &2 E ° Ho Chi Sing 5t 4 & Celestial K Mt
— R -

LHES N HoChiSingft £ @B HAE
Celestial {935 % + # A2 7)211,855,234 [ 25 ©
IR b 0320k K 3R A8 HR#E#7a% - Ho Chi Sing 5471
Celestial %A 0% Hi#E - 1S MIFEEL - SRLAEMEE %L
A /011,855,234 fEE o

RZZE—+tF—HA/NH ' FEEL * 5R5tA ~ LA -
iRk A K Celestial £ 7T — {5 S 3200 & 7R 88 B 177 3%
R 1= B EE 2% E  Great Harmony
International Ltd ([ Great Harmony|) £ Celestial
2] T - Bt - Great Harmony A& & B (3L
BREMBAGDNIEENEMAXRREE) - A
Celestial B & H& AN A F] 211,855,234 B i i@ A% o

Celestiadl P IR —ZE—+F—A+/\H —_F—+t
FZRAZH+=HBRZZE—tF=AtH BEES
53,334,000 % * 40,000,000 fi% & 30,000,000 f% &) &F
BRKRE ©

RZZT—tFRA+THEE  FEEL  RIGFRELE - #
THEEE HWIRZKET(RBIERERRD R
Celestial % 5] 780 N 72 % HRE 177 32 00 58 — 10 BRI 1%
# o AMEEB2RAQRR - E—FRAA+L

—T—+tF+—A=18 ' ZERRE K Celestial
FIRERRBEARBENE_CHEBBEOET
Wz o FHMEEBLBARAR T —+tF+—A
=tAEMBZASL -
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(4) These interests represent interests in outstanding stock options under the Plan
and the Scheme. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Share
Options”. Mr. Zhang's interests includes the 100,000 shares held by himself.
Mr. Zhao's interests includes the 2,300,000 shares held by himself.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options”, as at December 31, 2017, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she had taken or was deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; nor had there been any
grant or exercise of rights of such interests during the year ended
December 31, 2017.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware of, as at December 31, 2017, the
following persons (other than the Directors, chief executive(s) or
members of the Group) who had interests and/or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
two and three of Part XV of the SFO, or, which would be required,
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
referred to therein, were as follows:

@) ZERHEZE RERET BTSSR ITE AR
FifEns - HeFBE2M [HRE] —& - REED
1 % B IE R S £ R AFFA 100,000 IR B a5 2 o
M B R L E AR AR A /2,300,000 IR E
iR o

fr EX R (BB ] —SiFTREES R=F
—t¢+:)ﬁ:+—El ARRBFEHEETT
BABRARA B RET(IEEEAE (TR RE
7 R B AGR G 5H XV #D) M fD - BRI SiE
BETHEREREZ S LIS HROIEXVE
5B 7 N8 BRZA A AR B S Bk X2 BT ) M 2 5
KA (BIEREZ KB RG B 5N E 1E
AR REANERIAR)  IREFHF LB
BIRGIE 32 IR RERE LN ARRFEN
Eroft AR SOXR Y*ETFH&#H'J/A%D
EARARBRANEEIORE REEZ
—tF+A=+—RHFE" ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ%)ﬂﬂ%
&S 2R o

FERRREAQXFHRMD - HERG
REENERR AR

REBEMA WN_E—+E+-_A=+—8"
THAL(HRES  TSTRABHIANEEK
BRAFINRARR ZBRHEERG e
RIEE SR EIEHIZEXVERE 2 K30 ER/A R
RARIEBEORERE R AR RIEES &
HE 5015 336 (5B E BNz G FTis 2 & fit
RS KSR BT

Total number of
Shares (including
options to be

Approximate
percentage of
interest in our

Name of interested Party Capacity/Nature of interest exercised) company
RGP BE (BE LERNET b £

L AR B RnttE A{TEBRAE) BN B DT
Ms. Zhao Jiangbo Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,521,295,234 (L) 51.77%
TR Z+ T EE R (7t 2) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
FEEL Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,521,295,234 (L) 51.77%
RESEEER (A2 2) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
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Total number of
Shares (including
options to be

Approximate
percentage of
interest in our

Name of interested Party Capacity/Nature of interest exercised) company
BHEE (BE AR E S

RS EB B HnttE AT{EE AR AE) HEENE D
Mr. Ho Chi Sing Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 1,5621,295,234 (L) 51.77%
REwEEE R (M 3) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%

Celestial Energy Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 1,621,295,234 (L) 51.77%
(“Celestial") RS AR (1 3) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
Citigroup Inc. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 147,002,894 (L) 5.00%
REwEEER (Mt 4) 203,997 (P) 0.00%

Notes: izt -

(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the 1) FHELEEXVCATRAEARRBRDFHEE - &
Company. The letter “S" denotes the person’s short position in the shares of [SIEFEMATARATIRMGOFEHKXE - FR[P)
the Company. The letter “P" denoted the person’s shares of the Company RN A TR AMEEE RN T HENRARRKY -
held by approved lending agent.

(2) FEEL is held by Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as to 80%, 9.99% and  (2) FEELEHRAA - RAEERBEEEDFIHEBES0%

10%, respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to
Mrs. Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Champion, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Orient, 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
New Sun and 141,460,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Power International Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion, Orient,
New Sun and Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited, which is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao have entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under
which they agreed to act in concert in relation to all matters that require the
decisions of the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting- in-Concert
Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that require action
in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his,
Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.

The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,521,295,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,887,000 share
options, (iv) the call option which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been
granted, pursuant to a put and call option agreement, over the 88,521,234
shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through Celestial, as further
described in note (3) below, (v) the 100,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhang
himself, and (vi) the 2,300,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhao.

9.99% N 10% i - R-_T—=FHA_+WMH "
FEEL#)72,000 B& & 17 2% 17 T 9R K A - FEEL 9 Al #§
AN A 7]399,070,000 % + 399,070,000 f% -
475,000,000 8% % 141,460,0000% % 15 & % F
Champion » Orient ~ New Sun K& Power °
Champion * Orient ~ New Sun % Power 5 /& Sunrise
Glory Holdings Limited ¥y & &K B-A &) + il Sunrise
Glory Holdings Limited 8| % FEELKI 2 & ME QA
REA - REERBEADIT L —BITBRE - &
It HERERFEHRFEELRI AT —IBE K
T8 - RE—BITHHZE - MKREERNBEESR -
THEEN—RER  REFBERE REXAR
A ERRMDETIRERR ©

FEEL REAMBEER T2 FAD
1,521,295,234 Ji & HifE #8235 () FEEL BB E 7 A &)
(73R 90 4 FNs 2 45 BB fE FEEL O3 AR) B AR A
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The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into the PCA in relation to certain of the shares, pursuant to which the
parties to the put and call option agreement have agreed to grant each other
certain rights in relation to their shares, and section 317 (1) (a) of the SFO
applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

On January 6, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang (collectively, the
“Controlling Shareholders”) and Celestial entered into the letter agreement in
relation to the put and call option. The Board was also informed that Great
Harmony International Ltd (“Great Harmony") and Celestial have entered into a
sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Great Harmony has agreed to
acquire (or procure its affiliate or other person or company designated by it to
acquire) and Celestial has agreed to sell 211,855,234 ordinary shares in the
Company.

On January 18, 2017, February 23, 2017 and March 7, 2017, Celestial had
ceased to have 53, 334,000 shares, 40,000,000 shares and 30,000,000 shares
in long and short positions, respectively.

On May 17, 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into a
second letter agreement in relation to the put and call option agreement. For
further details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 17,
2017.

On November 30 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the supplement agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated November 30, 2017.

Please refer to Form 2 — Corporate Substantial Shareholder Notice dated 29
December 2017 for further details of the shareholding structure.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2017, no person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of our Company,
whose interests have been disclosed in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or Any Associated Corporation”) had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by our Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the Group purchased around 30.82% of its goods
and services from its 5 largest suppliers as well as 8.56% of its
goods and services from the largest supplier; and 57.99% and
79.09% respectively of the Group’s revenue are from PetroChina,
its largest customer, and its 5 largest customers combined.

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report (if any), none of the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s 5 largest
suppliers and customers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The employees, suppliers and customers of the Company play an
important role in the Company’s development and on which the
Company’s success depends. The Company provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract and motivate the employees. The
Company maintains good relationship with customers, suppliers
and other business partners to achieve its long-term goals. In 2016,
there was no material and significant dispute between our Group
and its customers, suppliers and other business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

During the process of hydrocarbon production, the Company highly
values the protection of natural and ecological environment and its
comprehensive environmental protection measures to ensure that
the Company complies with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to environmental protection. During the process of
construction and production of oilfields, we place environment
impact assessment, compliance with set standards or targets on
pollutant emissions, control on total discharge amount and
reduction on emissions as our priorities.

The Company views energy saving and reduction in emission as an
important aspect of our cost reduction and maintaining high
management standards. We also continue to strengthen efforts on
technical reformation during daily management, which is the key to
improve energy efficiency and reduce carbon emissions.
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For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has
constructed oilfields of green environmental protection in
accordance with regulatory requirements and there were no
matters arising from environmental-related regulatory non-
compliances.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and senior management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group. During the year ended December 31,
2017, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the period
from January 1, 2017 to April 21, 2018(being the latest practicable
date for ascertaining information prior to the issue of this annual
report).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company'’s Articles of Association provides that every Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other
officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers

liabilities insurance coverage for Directors and officers of the
Company.
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COMPETING BUSINESS

A non-competition deed in favor of the Company was entered into
by FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao on November 23, 2010. Our
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance and enforcement of the non-competition deed and
were of the view that FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao were in
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed during the reporting
period.

None of the Directors of the Company had an interest in a business
which competes with the Company or is likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Proposed Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: Nil).

Placing of Convertible Bonds

On January 26, 2018, the Company completed the placing of a
convertible bonds to independent placee(s) (the “Convertible
Bonds"”). The Convertible Bonds is in the principal amount of
HK$340.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB280.3 million)
and with an interest rate of 5.0% per annum payable semi-annually.
The maturity date to the Convertible Bonds is January 26, 2021.
The holders of Convertible Bonds have the right to convert into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time, on or after 41 days
after the completion date, until 10 days prior to maturity. Upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds, a total of 586.2 million shares
will be issued, representing approximately 16.63% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the impact of the full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds. The proceeds of the
Convertible Bonds was utilised for the repayment of the 2018
Notes.
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Proposed Disposal of Certain Assets within the Carrot
Creek Area Located in Central Alberta, Canada

On March 23, 2018, the Group and an independent purchaser
entered into a purchase and sale agreement, pursuant to which,
the Group agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to purchase
certain assets at a base price of C$60.0 million (equivalent to
RMB312.1 million). The subject matter assets under this
transaction are the legal and beneficial interest held by Canlin in
certain petroleum and natural gas rights, certain tangible assets and
certain miscellaneous interests within the Carrot Creek area located
in central Alberta, Canada. The consideration of this disposal is
subject to any adjustments pursuant to the terms of the purchase
and sale agreement.

This transaction is subject to fulfilment of certain conditions. As
conditions of this transaction did not exist at year end, the
corresponding financial impact will be reflected upon completion of
the transaction.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on Friday, May 18, 2018 ("AGM"). For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, May 15,
2018 to Friday, May 18, 2018, both days inclusive, during which no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, May 14, 2018 (Hong Kong time), being the last
registration date.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment as the Company’s auditor.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 29, 2018
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QUALITY OF WORKING ENVIRONMENT

(1)

Employment

The Group implements the following employment
policies and regulations for recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, holidays,
diversification and other bonus and benefits:

The remuneration of employees is in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Group's internal
policy titled “MIE Holdings Corporation’s
Remuneration Management System"”. The
Company provides employees with
comprehensive and competitive packages taking
into account market competition and equality
within the Group. An employee’s remuneration
package is based on an overall evaluation of work
performance, the employee’s relevant rank and
position and capability.

The recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees of the Group in China are governed by
the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China", the "Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China" , the "Policies Governing
Employee Relations of MIE Holdings
Corporation”, other national and regional laws and
regulations, and the Company’s administrative
policies. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees in Hong Kong are conducted in
accordance with the “Employment Ordinance”
and other relevant Hong Kong laws and
regulations. The recruitment, promotion and
dismissal of employees of Canlin in Canada are
governed by the “Provincial Employment
Standards"”, " Provincial Human Rights Laws",
" Privacy Laws", "Provincial Case Law", other
national and regional laws and regulations in
Canada, and the Company’'s administrative
policies. Recruitment, promotion, and termination
of employees in the United States are carried out
in conformity with applicable U.S. national and
regional laws and regulations.
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The working hours for employees in China are
strictly in accordance with the “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China", namely
eight hours per day, 40 hours per week and rest
days include statutory holidays, Saturdays and
Sundays. The working hours for employees in
Canada are strictly in accordance with the
“Provincial Employment Standards”, namely eight
hours per day, 40 hours per week and rest days
include statutory holidays, Saturdays and Sundays.

The Group provides its employees in China with
paid holidays in strict accordance with the ”Order
of the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China (No.5174) in relation to the Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees”. For Hong
Kong employees, paid holidays are provided in
strict accordance with the provisions of the
“General Holidays Ordinance” and the
“Employment Ordinance”. Canlin provides its
employees in Canada with paid holidays in strict
accordance with the Company’s administrative
policies in addition to “Provincial Employment
Standards.”

Based on the principle of equality and anti-
discrimination, the Group complies with the
"“"Administrative Policies for Employee
Recruitment of MIE Holdings Corporation” for
recruitment matters.

The Group has established a scientific and
reasonable performance appraisal system and an
effective incentive and restraint mechanism to
ensure the joint development of the Company and
its employees. During the year ended December
31, 2017, the Group continued to optimize its KPI
assessment system, improved the quantification
of its evaluation standards and enhanced the
feasibility of its evaluation mechanism.
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The Group had 1,495 employees, comprising 1,217
males (81.4%) and 278 females (18.6%) as of
December 31, 2017. Due to the nature of the Group's
business, there are more male employees than female
employees.

Table 1: Staff Numbers by Work Category as of
December 31, 2017

HE_ZT—+F+=-_A=+—08"
NEBHBEET1,495%  Heh B
BT1217A1581.4%  ZE T
278 A » 1518.6% - AN ANEEE
BEE TERRERRE BE8T
HELZHRZEIHE -

K1 HEzE-_ZTZ—+ttF+=A
—t+—BREBEEMBERSEMNET
B

Total
Total Core Support  Operation
Work Category Technical ~ Production Support Management  production services services Total
B HiE 4ER XKE  EBGH  IHAEE  GGBBE  BERAH GH
Total A3t 97 63 218 378 863 254 M7 1,49
Table 2: Staff Numbers by Education Background as of R2-BE-_FT—-—ttF+-A
December 31, 2017 —t+t—HREBEXHUERENENE
TiER
Technical

Secondary Junior

Masters and Junior  School & High School
Education Category above Bachelor College High School and below Total
HERE BENE ABRY  ABHY HF - PPRAT &&t
Total &&t 43 376 277 468 331 1,495
Table 3: Staff Numbers by Age Group as of December X3 HE-_ZT—+tF+=A
31,2017 =T —HRBFRIENETIEN

55yrs and
Age Group 20-24yrs 25-34yrs 35-44yrs 45-54yrs above Total
Fi 208245 25%34%; 35F 44 45FE54E; S5ERULE &t
Total EH 24 419 451 419 182 1,495
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Table 4: Staff Numbers by Geographical Region as of
December 31, 2017

R4 BE_T—+F+ A
=+t—HRBMESENETIER

Geographical Region PRC Hong Kong us Canada Total
i35 HE R %H mEX &&t
Total &t 1,082 2 404 1,495

(2) Development and Training

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Group organized tailored training programs based on
Group's development strategy, employee job
requirements and employees’ personal development
needs to accelerate the growth of employees’ working
ability and professional quality. Through the various
tailored training programs, the Group comprehensively
developed the management ability and skill levels of all
employees across various positions.

Aimed at improving the business standards, and
management ability and also overall ability among
management staff, the Group also offered targeted
professional knowledge training to strengthen their
common general skills. With the purpose of improving
the professional and technical ability of technical
personnel, the Group also placed emphasis on the
cultivation of their business knowledge and ability,
including the learning of basic knowledge, application
software tools, and new technology and cutting-edge
knowledge. As regards operational staff, the Group
aimed to strengthen their operating skills, standardize
the operation process and improve operation ability by
providing various trainings.

Table 5: Staff Training Statistics by Gender as of
December 31, 2017
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(3)

Table 6: Staff Training Statistics by Gender and Hours ®x6:HE-_ZT—+FE+=A8

as of December 31, 2017 —t+—HELZEBEIZAFHZIIRE
&

Gender Male Female

£ 51 B z

Average Training Hours FEHER 46 19

As there are more male than female employees in the
Group, the number of male employees who have
received training is also higher as compared to the
female employees. Also, due to the business scope and
working environment of the Group, project staff who
work outdoors receive more training opportunities than
the staff based in the office. Given that there are more
male employees working on projects outdoors, the
difference between the number of average training
hours for male and female appear marked.

Labor Standards

The Group primarily implements the relevant laws and
regulations including the “Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China" and the "Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China” for the prevention of child
labor and forced labor.

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations and conducts a rigorous inspection of the
identity of employees during recruitment and
employment to ensure that they are above 18 years old,
in an effort to eliminate the employment of child labor
or forced labor with in the Group. During recruitment,
we enter into employment contracts with employees
on the principle of equality and voluntarism and keep
track of work performance to avoid any forced labor
situations.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
did not have any serious violations of the relevant
standards or rules.
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. ENVIRONMENT AND OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

(1)

Occupational Health and Safety

Since its establishment, the Group has placed great
emphasis on health, safety and environmental
protection management. It has adhered to the following
core management principles: scientific management,
health upmost, safety first, environmental protection
prioritization and sustainable development. The Group is
dedicated to the creation of a culture rigorous corporate
safety culture and the establishment of a sound
management system. Concurrently, the Group focuses
on increasing employees’ and contractors’ attention
towards safety and environmental protection during the
production process, raising awareness and skills of
employees and contractors on safety risks identification
and awareness, accelerating clean production
management and reducing the business's
environmental impact.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group's
health, safety and environmental management system
was endorsed by the auditors of the Beijing CNPC
Certification Center, and has also passed its renewal
audit.

The Group has consistently implemented the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”, " Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases", " Provisions on the
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health
at Work Sites”," Regulations Governing the Declaration
of Projects with Occupational Hazards", “ Regulations
Governing the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health Surveillance of Employers”,
“Interim Regulations Governing the Supervision and
Administration of “Three Simultaneities” for
Construction Projects”, and national standards including
“Technical Specifications for Occupational Health
Surveillance”, " Regulations on Labor Protection in
Workplaces Where Toxic Substances Are Used",
" Regulations on the Control over Safety of Dangerous
Chemicals” and other relevant laws, regulations, rules,
normative documents, national standards, industry
standards and technical specifications in its provision of
a safe working environment.
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The Group strictly enforces the above laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, standards and technical
specifications, strives to provide a safe work
environment for all employees and also protects
employees against occupational hazards. During the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Group did not
violate any relevant laws, regulations, rules, normative
documents, standards and technical specifications.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
did not have any work- related injuries or deaths from
work-related matters.

Table 7: Safety Statistics of the Group

(1)

(2)

REBEBRRNIT LlUERE BB
IRE R AR R AT AR
B SHAZBRETRMELE2THE
RENMREETHEBEIERE -
HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—8I1
FEAEBSHEREREERAH
AR RE - REME
EERFIMRBOER - HEZT
—+tFE+-_A=+—HBIFE" &
EERBLEET IS EEIRT
TERBRILT -

K7 AREREHR

Projects in China: (1) FEIEAR
Recordable Lost time
Total Recordable incident  Lost time incident
Scope work hours incidents rate  incidents rate Deaths
BIERE BIERE RI RI Bt
gE BT EHY EfE 24y EH4X AE
Company staff KRBT 2,506,428 0 0 0 0 0
External contractors NEPEB T 291,936 0 0 0 0 0
Project in Canada: (2) mEXKIEHR
Recordable Lost time
Total Recordable incident  Lost time incident
Scope workhours incidents rate incidents rate Deaths
B B RI RI ¢4
&E BT 24y EfE EhY EHX A
Company staff RFEEI 889,970 5 1.12 2 0.45 0
External contractors INEPEBT 981,354 1 0.20 0 0 0
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The occupational health and safety measures, related AREBMERNBERREETSE
implementation and monitoring methods adopted by i B ITHERFATES

the Group mainly include:

Establish an occupational health and safety
management administration team which is staffed
with full-time employees. The Group currently has
13 registered national safety engineers. Improve
the safety production responsibility system,
improve the occupational health management
archive and management system, strengthen the
basic management of occupational health and
safety measures, strictly implement management
policies, refine the management scope, and
effectively avoid health and safety risks. During
the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
organized multiple special inspections to
continuously track and rectify any discovered
problems.

Establish occupational health monitoring archives
for employees of the Group, implement the
occupational health notification system, regularly
arrange occupational health examinations for staff
and make corresponding work adjustments for
employees that do not suit their particular
position.

Provide employees with requisite occupational
hazards precaution facilities and labor protection
supplies based on the findings of occupational
health assessment reports. Authorize a third party
occupational disease prevention and control
institution to regularly monitor and assess
potential occupational health hazards of the Group,
and evaluate the Group's occupational hazards
protection measures and the efficacy of protection
provided.

Provide work injury insurance, basic medical
insurance, serious illness insurance for employees
of the Group to fully protect their interests.
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(2)

5.  Since the Group is engaged in oil exploration and
oil has certain dangerous and hazardous
characteristics, such as combustion, explosion
and secondary environmental pollution, the Group
has paid special attention to emergency
management and engaged experts to assess the
sources of hazards and pollution of the Company;
it has also developed contingency plans for major
sources of hazards and key sources of pollution,
and also regularly conducts emergency drills.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
organized a number of practice emergency drills, to
practice the implementation of plans such as
“Emergency Plan for Fire and Explosion Accidents”,
“Emergency Plan for Sudden Environmental Incidents”,
“Comprehensive Plan for Flood and Drought
Prevention”. Results of the practice emergency drills
were evaluated for feasibility and any plans that were
not applicable to the actual scenarios were revised.

Emissions

The emissions discharged during the development and
production process of the Group’s projects mainly
include: furnace heating exhaust gas and hazardous
wastes (such as oil sludge, oil residuals and drilling
muds generated during oil exploration). Such hazardous
wastes are disposed of by service providers certified by
environmental protection authorities.

Table 8: Waste Emission Data of Each Project of the
Group

5 RAAXAEERAOMRARITE
Ao EA —TEMRGE - IB’IE
MRERBSRERBRE
1 REHESEE TR
MESR BEEREAAL
PR 5 R AETTRIE - B
EXBRR EE2)5RRE
HESER THHEGET
HESTARETER -

BE_T—tF+-A=1t—HLt
FE  AEBEAB(RENRIE
EMESTAR)ER (RERRS
HRESTRER)ER - KBkt~ TRAR
BER)EREFZHBARERT
tF BIBERGER - FHERSTEAR
R RIRIEE - B A BRAIRED
EITIERTRHE

=) BB

AEEIEE R EEBETBEE
BYTEAR - NAERER N ERE
W) (40 5 B SR OB A2 P E 4 A Ui
JE o M EHERER) Bk
E) ¥ R IR AR HR T R RE 1O IR 75 A 3R
RERIE °

*8: ARBERIABEMHHERE

(1) Projects in China (1) HE®EAH
Natural ~ Hazardous
Gas Waste Water Power
Consumption Transferred Consumption Drilling Mud Consumption
(Wiv3) (tonnes) (Wive) (IV3) (WKW.h)
ERRAAR REEBYHE BkE TRE HEE
(BIAX) (W) (BYmXK) (L5%) (BTRH)
Daan K% 1,711.8722 4144 40.00 5200  8,578.0075
Moliging REZF 415.0000 256.1 18.25 0  1,335.2300
Total A 2,126.8722 670.5 58.25 5200  9,913.2375
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(2) Project in Canada (2) MmEXKIEB
Hazardous
Natural Gas Waste Water Power
Consumption Transferred Consumption Drilling Mud Consumption
(WIVE) (tonnes) (W) (VB) (WKW.h)
ERARAR REEBHE ke ERE HEE
(BypX) (W) (BupX) (XHK) (BTRE)
Canlin ik 31,006.2510 5,543 64.1624 Notrecorded  15,725.8604
Total &t 31,006.2510 5,543 64.1624 Notrecorded  15,725.8604

Environmental protection measures and related
implementation and monitoring methods adopted by
the Group at present mainly include:

Underground environmental protection measures, cyclic
utilization of drilling muds and other measures can
reduce the amount of hazardous waste produced. Any
hazardous waste generated will be disposed of and
recycled by qualified units under the supervision of the
local government environmental protection department.

Production wastewater passes through the sewage
treatment plant for filtering and purification. Part of the
purified water will be heated and enters into the
pipeline for production while the rest will be injected
underground to supplement the formation pressure, so
as to achieve zero emission targets for waste water.

The Company chooses energy efficient furnaces that
can use clean energy as the combustion material and
the fuel used is natural gas, which mainly releases
carbon dioxide and water vapor after combustion.

The Group entrusts third party organizations to regularly
monitor the surface water, ground water, sewage,
noise, soil within the operation boundary and monitor
the environmental changes brought about by the
production and development processes to the
surrounding area.
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The total amount of hazardous wastes of our projects in
China generated during the year ended December 31,
2017 was 670.5 tons, approximately 2,870.5 tons less
than that 2016, and that of our project in Canada
generated in 2017 was 5,543M?3. The drilling mud
wastes of projects in China produced in 2017 were
5,200M?®, and the amount of its" wastewater efflux was
zero; in 2017 about 331.3312 million M?® of natural gas
was used by all projects of MIE group; and greenhouse
gas emissions were about 4,164.75 tons. Given that the
acquisition of Canlin Project was completed in
September 2017, relevant data was not recorded for
the year ended December 31, 2017.

In terms of emissions, projects in China mainly adhere
to the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the "“Law of the People’'s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”, the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution”, the “Law of the People's
Republic of China on Promotion of Cleaner Production”,
the "Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment”, the “Catalog of
State Hazardous Wastes”, the “People’'s Republic of
China’s Emergency Response Law"”, the “Interim
Regulations Governing the Sudden Environmental
Emergency Contingencies”, “China’s Oil and Gas
Production Enterprises Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines (Trial)"”;
Canadian Projects mainly implement the “The Canadian
Environmental Protection Act, 1999 (CEPA)", the
“National Energy Board Act”, at Alberta Province
implement the “Climate Change and Emissions
Management Act”, “Water Act” and other relevant
laws, regulations, rules and regulatory documents.

The Group strictly enforces the laws, regulations, rules
and regulatory documents of the above-mentioned
countries, intensifies recycling and reuse of wastes,
strives to reduce waste discharge, and actively
promotes clean production and use of clean energy.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
did not violate any laws, regulations, rules and
regulatory documents.
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(3)

Use of resources

The Group has strictly adhered to the “Energy Law of
the People’s Republic of China", the " Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the " Electricity Law of the
People’s Republic of China", the "Law on Energy
Conservation of People’s Republic of China"; our
Canadian project strictly implement “National Energy
Board Act " and “Oil and Gas Conservation Act” and
other relevant laws and regulations for effective use of
resources (including energy, water, and other raw
materials).

Resource conservation is a fundamental requirement
for the Group to implement scientific management,
improve the economic efficiency of the Group and
enhance the Group’s core competitiveness. To this end,
the Group has done a lot of work in 2016 surrounding
business management, technological innovations and
energy saving goals and has achieved satisfying results.
Details are as follows:

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group's
annual water consumption was approximately 1.2241
million tons; electricity consumption was approximately
256.3909 million kWh, whereas our projects in the PRC
consumed 5.587775 million kWh more as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The consumption of gasoline by our projects in the PRC
was 244.12 tons in 2017; the consumption of diesel
was 167.32 tons, 18.44 tons more than that of 2016. As
the acquisition of Canlin project in Canada was
completed in September 2017, relevant data was not
recorded for our project in Canada for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

Major measures and relevant implementation methods
adopted by the Group in the use of resources include:

1. Establish a three-tier energy management
network comprising a supervising manager,
relevant department heads and entry-level
personnel, formulate scientific and strict
management of quantitative energy consumption,
and have a good grasp on the basic assessment
work.
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2. Achieve high efficiency using technology and
reduce energy consumption through technological
advances.

(1) Usage of automatic control frequency
systems, automatically analyze motor
operation parameters, real-time adjustment
of operation parameters, and achieve the
aim of energy saving.

(2)  Strengthen equipment management, e.g.
adoption of high-performance motors;
elimination of high-energy transformers;
timely adjustment of balance rates and other
measures to reduce power consumption.

(3) As for production wells with poor liquid
supply capacity, optimize the production
parameters, carry out intermittent
production, suspend wells, shut down wells
and implement other measures to reduce
inefficient production rate.

Table 9: Energy Saving Statistics of Each Project
of the Group

Statistics on Energy Conserving Compared to
the Year Ended 31 December 2016
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Energy Energy
Conservation Conservation
Natural Gas  on Electricity on Oil
(WIMVB) (WKW.h) (tonnes)
RAR, s Bi5h
(BFK) (BTEEK) (Mg )
Daan N4 (284.8722) (663.1775) (15.71)
Moliging EBE (83) 104 (2.73)
(367.8722) (5659.1775) (18.44)
Note: As the acquisition of the Canlin project in Canada was it - m&EKCaninBEE R =%

completed in September 2017, relevant statistics were
not recorded for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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The Group strictly observes relevant laws,
regulations, rules and regulatory documents of the
above mentioned countries and it did not and
violate any abovementioned laws, regulations,
rules regulatory documents in 2017.

Environment and natural resources

The Group is an enterprise engaged in the oil
exploration business which consumes mineral
resources, land and other natural resources during the
process of oil production. The Group abides strictly by
the “Mineral Resources Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Land Administration Law of the
People's Republic of China”, the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “the
Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999 (CEPA)",
the “National Energy Board Act "and other related laws,
regulations and requirements. The Group aims to
reduce its impact on the environment and natural
resources via the following: make good use of natural
resources, improve comprehensive recycling ability of
natural resources, reduce the consumption of natural
resources and all kinds of waste emissions.

The Group aims to establish the concepts of conserving
resources, reducing waste emissions, protecting the
ecological environment, increasing investment in new
technology, formulating policies on improving the level
of enterprise technology for comprehensive utilization
of resources, technology innovation, energy
conservation and emissions reduction, constantly
promoting enterprise to improve resource utilization
efficiency, environmental protection compliance in
accordance with the laws and regulations, continual
improving of the regional environment as well as
improving sustainable health development.
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OPERATIONAL PRACTICES

(1)

Supply chain management

The Group continuously optimized its supply chain
management and established a comprehensive
management mechanism for supplier access, selection,
review and withdrawal. As of December 31, 2017, the
Group has established relationships with 533 suppliers
comprising 199 Chinese suppliers and 334 overseas
suppliers. The Group adopts a prudent attitude and
strict standards on supplier selection. Not only do we
value product quality, service level, business ethics,
corporate reputation, but we also place importance on
their social responsibility performance. At present, the
Group’s supply chain management is carried out in
accordance with the “Contract Law of the People's
Republic of China” and other laws of the countries
where resources are located. The Group has updated
and improved its “Policies Governing Tenders of MIE
Holdings Corporation”, the “Policies Governing
Contracts of MIE Holdings Corporation”, the “Policies
Governing the Procurement of Goods of MIE Holdings
Corporation”, the "“Policies Governing the Management
of Materials of MIE Holdings Corporation” and the
“Policies Governing the Early Implementation of Service
Projects without Signing Contracts under Special
Circumstances”, together which provide a unified basis
and procedures for the selection and management of
suppliers and contractors. The Group has developed
four supply chain management modules centered on
tender management, contract management, material
management and supplier management. During the
process, suppliers and contractors are provided with an
opportunity for participation based on openness,
fairness and transparency. The Group puts forward the
requirements of honesty, trustworthiness, legal
operation, due attention to health, safety and
environmental protection for our suppliers and
contractors during pre qualification, bidding, provision of
products and services, and performance evaluation. At
the same time, the Group also includes anti-bribery and
anti corruption clauses into contract terms, creating a
clean environment for supply chain management.
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The Group implements a unified order system and
makes purchases in accordance with the “Purchase
Plan Order” issued by the material services department.
The relevant order would cover the budget amount,
material model, service contents and specific time
requirements, which subsequently makes the
completion of remaining steps in the supply chain more
smooth and efficient.

The Group selects vendors through tendering or price
negotiations. During the procurement process, priority
will be given to those suppliers that offer a more
favorable price for a product of the same quality and
also regular suppliers that have passed the Group's
yearly examination.

Input from multiple departments is tapped during the
acceptance inspection and quality control process to
more effectively control the quality of goods and
services. To confirm the quality of purchased goods,
joint acceptance inspection is conducted by the
procurement department and also the relevant
department that will use the goods. This is
supplemented by quality feedbacks during use. For
service projects, the safety, environmental protection,
production, supervision and other relevant departments
will submit their feedback onsite. A timely feedback
system is implemented to receive information feedback
during the process. Feedback and processing results
are filed for review and integrated into yearly business
evaluations.

To guarantee the overall quality of its suppliers, the
Group organizes an annual assessment of suppliers,
based on their performance of contracts, standards and
quality system certification, health, safety,
environmental protection and other qualifications. The
Group will issue warnings to or remove suppliers who
have failed the assessment from its internal list. The
Group implements a dynamic management system of
registered suppliers and any supplier who demonstrates
serious non-compliance during the business
collaboration or fails the assessment will be dismissed.
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(2)

(3)

Product responsibility

No information is disclosed in this report as the
indicators are not applicable to the industry to which the
Group belongs.

Anti-corruption

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC against Unfair
Competition” and “The Basic Norms of Internal
Control”, the Group has formulated and implemented
policies such as the “Internal Audit System of MIE
Holdings Corporation”, the “Audit System for
Management Departures of MIE Holdings Corporation”,
and “Special Audit (Interim) Policies of MIE Holdings
Corporation” and such policies have been in place since
2015 in order to standardize the operation and
management of the Group, strengthen internal control
and audit supervision, ensure the safety and integrity of
the Group's property and materials, and ensure the
smooth achievement of the Group's objectives, provide
reasonable guarantees for use of objective, truthful and
effective management information by all levels of
management, ensure that the business activities of
various departments and units are carried out in
accordance with the operating principles and policies of
the Group and reduce operational risks and improve
performance.
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Whistle blowing, as one of the sources of information in
the audit plan, is set out as part of the “Internal Audit
System of MIE Holdings Corporation”. Whistleblowing
methods includes correspondences, visits, telephone
calls and internet submissions and the abovementioned
policy specifies the reporting hotline and email, and is
distributed as a management policy among all
employees for study and comprehension. During the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Group did not
receive any reports of crimes such as duty-related
crimes, bribery, extortion, blackmail, fraud and money
laundering. In accordance with the audit plan, the
business operation department conducted a
management investigation of correspondences and
records, the expense management audit of Gobi Energy
Company and other audits. It was found in the audit
that the archive deadlines, archive directories, archive
persons in charge and relevant ledgers needed to be
improved upon, and the control exercised over
expenses incurred or approved by the general manager
of the project was insufficient. Relevant responsible
persons and departments have been reorganized in line
with the internal audit process for rectifications.

IV. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

The Group takes an interest in the spiritual and cultural life of
its employees and has organized a series of cultural and
recreational activities from time to time including hiking,
badminton, autumn outings and sports games which have
been well received by employees. The Chinese New Year
condolence activities were carried out and efforts were made
to improve the working environment for staff through the
provision of staff dormitories, a canteen, and an activity room
and tea parties were held together with local villagers in
villages where the Group has operations.

The Group has organized a series of cultural and recreational
activities including corporate donations and volunteering at
local food banks, homeless shelters and other local charities.
The Group also has an active employee-led Social Committee
that organizes events including Christmas Parties, Calgary
Stampede events and other seasonal activities.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Overview

The world economy recovered moderately, uncertainties such as
international political and economic risks increased, the Chinese
economy continued to develop steadily, and the supply and
demand of the global oil market began to balance in FY2017. West
Texas Intermediate (“WTI") oil prices fluctuated within the range of
US$42 to US$52 per barrel in the first half of 2017 (“1H2017").
With the fact of Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries
("OPEC") reducing crude oil production, crude oil prices, the oil and
gas industry and the global economy rebounded moderately in the
second half of 2017 (“2H2017") and the WTI oil price stabilized at
around US$60 per barrel at the end of the year. International oil
prices fluctuated widely, and the average oil prices increased
significantly year-on-year during the period. However, the US shale
gas production and the number of drilling rigs started to rise again,
bringing global oil prices uncertainties and potential fluctuations. In
such a challenging macro environment, on the one hand, subject to
the Group adheres to the principle of stable development as well
as strengthening management, controlling costs, and improving
operating efficiency, on the other hand, it continuously evaluates
strategic investment opportunities globally, optimizes existing
asset allocation and acquires valuable strategic assets.

During FY2017 (“Current Period"”), the gas and oil operational
production and net production of the Group increased sharply
compared with the same period in FY2016 (“Prior Period”). The
Group's oil and gas production increased by 43.0% to about 9.44
million barrels of oil equivalent (“BOE") compared with the first half
of 2016 (“1H2016"). Net oil gas production increased by 87.8% to
about 6.76 MMBOE compared with the Prior Period. During the
Current Period, our crude oil sales decreased by 26.5% to
approximately 2.38 million barrels from the Prior Period, while our
natural gas sales increased 13.7 times to 25,315.4 million standard
cubic feet (“MMscf”). In 2H2017, the Group’s acquisition of 100%
of partnership interests of CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ
Energy”) in Canada boosted the Group’s oil and natural gas
reserves, production capacity and revenue substantially.
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The average realized crude oil price of the Group increased by
33.3% to US$48.96 per barrel, with average natural gas prices
rising to US$1.50 per thousand metric cubic feet (“Mscf”) in
Current Period. As the recovery in crude oil prices and the increase
in oil and gas production brought about by the acquisition of CQ
Energy, the Group's revenue of FY2017 increased by 110.5% to
RMB1,126 million compared with the Prior Period. EBITDA
recorded a decline of RMB676.0 million from the Prior Period to a
loss of RMB383.7 million. The adjusted EBITDA increased by
22.9% to approximately RMB348.1 million in the Current Period.
During the Current Period, the Group recorded a net loss of
RMB1,099.5 million.

In 2H2017, the Group successfully acquired 100% of the
partnership interests of CQ Energy, a Canadian oil and gas
exploration and development company with a very comprehensive
and mature oil and gas business, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary in Canada, Canlin Energy Corporation (“Canlin Energy”).
CQ Energy owns a diverse base of producing, resource and
infrastructure portfolio located throughout the Western Canadian
Sedimentary and Williston basins in Alberta, Saskatchewan,
Manitoba, Ontario and British Columbia in Canada. Canlin Energy
has an average working interest (average percentage of ownership)
of 67% in the relevant asset sand properties in relation to its oil and
gas reserves, which as of June 6, 2017 covered an area with gross
land coverage of 3,492,600 acres (or net coverage of 2,200,814
acres). CQ Energy possesses natural gas resources producing low
decline, long life asset base products and infrastructure. It has vast
acreage of undeveloped land and has potential for growth. The
acquisition enlarged the Group's business scope from oil
production to natural gas production, acquired new profit growth
points, and allowed the Group to entered the Canadian market at
the same time. Based on the Company's globalization development
strategy, the acquisition enhanced oil and natural gas production
capacity and improved the Company's profitability and
competitiveness.
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Completion of the acquisition of 100% of the partnership interests
of CQ Energy from the Vendors took place on September 29, 2017.
Upon Closing, the partnership arrangement of CQ Energy
consequently dissolved by way of operation of law due to having
only one partner which being Canlin Energy. The entire business of
CQ Energy was transferred to and operated by Canlin Energy.

In 2H2017, the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital of
Riyadh Energy Limited (“Riyadh Energy”). The principal business
activity of Riyadh Energy is oil and gas development operations in
China pursuant to the Moliging PSC. Riyadh Energy holds 90% of
the participating interests in the foreign contractor’s entitlement
and obligations covering Moliging block within Jilin oilfield and is
the sole operator.

Following the acquisition and divestment exercises of the Group
during FY2017, based on the year-end 2017 oil and gas reserves
and resources estimate prepared by independent consultants, the
Group's Proved +Probable (“2P") oil and gas reserves were 398.71
MMBOE, representing 4.31 times increase from year-end 2016.
The increase in the Group's 2P oil and gas reserves is largely
attributable to the Group's acquisition of CQ Energy.

In FY2017, the Group implemented efficiency management,
focused on optimizing the allocation of existing assets,
implementing a cost leadership strategy, striving to reduce costs,
increasing efficiency, and stabilizing the production of old wells to
delay the trend of declining production. In 2017, while the oil prices
were significantly higher than the Prior Period, the lifting cost
remained stable. Direct lifting costs for Daan and Moliging
increased slightly by 2.0% to US$8.48 per barrel as compared to
the Prior Period, As of December 31, 2017, except for over 8,500
production wells belonging to Canlin Energy, the Group operated a
total of 2,369 wells, of which 2,364 were located in China and five
wells were located in the United States. Taking CQ Energy
acquisition and Riyadh Energy disposal into account, the total
headcount of the Group increased from 1,387 as of December 31,
2016 to 1,495 as of December 31, 2017.
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The following table provides a recap of the Group's key operational A TNRAEE -_ZET—+F2rFHNHAHELSHY

metrics and product prices for the FY2017: S
FY2017 FY2016 % Change 2017 Guidance
20175 2016 E3lds 4] 20175455
Average Daily Gross Production HiBmREES
(BOE/day) (REE/X) 64,664 18,359 252.2%
Average Daily Net Production A mRFES
(BOE/day) (BEE/F) 57,297 10184 462.6% 8,932-9,566
Average Daily Net Oil Production BEREFESE
(barrels/day) (1@, X) 9,745 9,241 54%
Average Daily Net NGL Production HERARBITRFES
(barrels/day) (1, %) 1,690 - -
Average Daily Net Gas Production AYRARFES
(Mcf/day) (FIXHER,/K) 275,170 5,663 4,759.1%
Notes: Kz -

(1 For reference purpose only, barrels of oil equivalent is calculated using the (1) hEREEER6TEEL FRRAAR=1HERHA

conversion factor of six Mscf of natural gas being equivalent to one barrel of oil MRELLIETAE  BH2EREN
(2)  Gross Production means total production from all assets of the Group (2) HEE=-FTEECSEETRNRES
(3)  Net Production means entitled production from all assets of the Group Q) FEE=FrEEESEHETHNFURRES

(4)  The data of China does not include the last 16 days of 2017 as the Group ~ (4)  FENBBEHTREEESFHE T —LtFEFKRE
disposed of Moliging on December 15, 2017. 16 AMEE  RASRER=-FT—+F+=-A+HAH
HETULIEE -

(5)  The data of Canlin Energy only include the 4th quarter of 2017 since the  (5) BB RNEBRA B sHERKRBEN -2 —tF
acquisition completed in September 2017. EEMNEERIBUE -

The following table is the summary of the expenditures incurred in A TEAREE T -+ FEEHEMIK - M
our exploration, development and production activities for FY2017:  RAEX HAIEREE

Production/

Exploration Development operating
(millions of RMB) expenditures expenditures expenditures
(AR¥BET) G S 3 EE- S EEME
China Onshore Projects (Daan, Moliging) HEEMIER (KL BEF) - 51 292
USA (Condor) 2B (Condor) - - 4
Canada (Canlin Energy) MEX (BERER) - 36 248
Total =X - 87 o44
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Review of Operations by Segment
China Operations (Daan, Moliqing, South China Sea)

By introducing some advanced new technologies and optimizing
traditional oilfield development technologies, our projects in
northeastern China maintained a relatively high level of production
in FY2017. During FY2017, the total gross operated production for
our two China oil projects in Daan and Moliging decreased by 9.5%
to 4.65 million barrels as compared to FY2016. Total net production
allocated to the Group decreased by 6.6% to 1.98 million barrels.
During FY2017, the gross operated production per day decreased
by 9.0% to 12,812 BOPD as compared to FY2016, and net
production per day allocated to the Group decreased by 7.1% to
5,454 BOPD. With the recovery of international crude oil prices, the
average oil price of Daan and Moliging increased by 33.1% from
US$36.73 per barrel in FY2016 to US$48.89 per barrel in FY2017.
Based on rising oil prices, there were 15 wells drilled in Daan in
FY2017, including 14 vertical wells and 1 horizontal well. Direct
lifting costs for Daan and Moliging increased by US$0.17/barrel, or
2.0%, from US$8.31/barrel for FY2016 to US$8.48/barrel for
FY2017. EBITDA per barrel for Daan and Moliging increased by
US$11.93/barrel, or 53.1%, from US$22.45/barrel for FY2016 to
US$34.38/barrel for FY2017. The increase in EBITDA per barrel was
primarily due to the rise in average realized oil price. Considering
the Group's development strategy, the Group disposed of the
entire interest in the Moliging oil project through the disposal of
Riyadh Energy in the 2H2017. The free cash flow contributed by
the Daan is crucial for the development and operation of the
Group's other projects.

As of the end of 2017, the Group had a 34% interest in the South
China Sea project. On August 11, 2017, the Ministry of Land and
Resources examined and approved our South China Sea project
reserve report, and we obtained the approval of the review of the
Ministry of Land and Resources on November 30, 2017. At
present, the block has commissioned China National Offshore Qil
Corporation (“CNOOC") research institute to make the overall
development plan (“ODP") and plans to complete the preparation
and review of the ODP by the end of 2018. The successful
exploration of this block has provided good experience for the
operation of MIE in offshore oil fields.
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North America Operations

Canada (Canlin Energy, Journey)

As of the end of 2017, Canlin Energy’'s 2P reserves were
334.5 MMBOE, accounting for 83.9% of the Group’s total
reserves, and Canlin Energy accounted for 5.21 times the
reserves of other projects in the Group. Canlin Energy was
consolidated into the Group's financial statements from the
fourth quarter of FY2017, and its net annual production was
4.77 MMBOE, accounting for 70.5% of the Group's total
annual production, Canlin Energy’s production in one quarter
is about 2.39 times the total annual production of the Group’s
other projects. The successful acquisition of Canlin Energy
has greatly enhanced the scale of the Group and achieved the
Group's leap-forward development, making the Group an
international large-scale oil and gas company and enhancing
the financial stability and strength of the Group.

Canlin Energy is an oil and gas company that prefers natural
gas development. Canlin Energy has more than 11,500 oil
and gas wells, of which more than 8,500 are producing wells.
Daily oil and gas production was 51,811 BOE, of which
natural gas and natural gas condensate accounted for about
91.8%, the crude oil accounted for about 8.2%. Daily oil
production was 4,262 barrels, daily natural gas condensate
production was 1,690 barrels, and daily nature gas production
was 275.2 MMscf. Despite average realized gas price was
only US$1.50 per Mscf in the fourth quarter 2017, considering
the natural growth in global energy demand and the
substitution of natural gas for coal and oil as a kind of clean
energy, the Group is confident in the development of natural
gas.

e (BBEEIR - Journey)
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Canlin Energy has a high level, international and professional
management team. To face the current low gas prices, Canlin
Energy optimized management, improved staffing and asset
allocation, downsized staff and improved efficiency, and
strived to reduce lifting costs, satisfactory results were
achieved in the fourth quarter of FY2017. As a large-scale oil
and gas company in Canada, Canlin Energy’s high-quality
business management had improved the international
management of the Group and improved our ability to further
expand our business market in Canada. At present, the focus
of the Group’s business has shifted from the Chinese market
to the Canadian market. The business structure, personnel
composition and management methods of the Group will be
more international in the future, which would be beneficial to
the widening of our global footprint, development of a more
balanced oil and gas business portfolio, expansion of our
operational capabilities and enhancement of our profile and
image as an international energy company.

Journey Energy Inc. (“Journey”) planned to drill 14 wells in
FY2017, with 14 wells having been completed in FY2017.
Daily production increased by 14% to 9,962 barrels per day
from 8,712 barrels per day in FY2016. The Group generated
investment loss of RMB63.0 million in FY2017.

USA (Condor)

There were no drilling activities during FY2017 in relation to
our US business. The Group’s subsidiary, Condor Energy
Technology LLC (“Condor”), operates 5 horizontal wells in
the Niobrara project. For FY2017, the average daily operated
oil and gas production was 38 BOPD and 23 Mscf per day,
net oil and gas production was 29 BOPD and 18 Mscf per
day, respectively. Average realized oil and gas price was
US$47.44 per barrel and US$4.47 per Mscf, respectively.
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Kazakhstan Operations (Emir-Qil)

With the recovery of oil prices, six production wells had been
opened again in FY2017 and the total number of producing wells
was 20 at the end of 2017. Daily production of crude oil decreased
by 28.0% from 3,328 barrels per day in FY2016 to 2,396 barrels per

day in FY2017.
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Review of Reserves

The Group's net reserves evaluation for 2017 year-end shows a
significant increase over 2016, primarily driven by the acquisition of
CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ", subsequently dissolved by
operation of law due to having one partner being the Group's
subsidiary, Canlin Energy Corporation or “Canlin”). Highlights of
the Group's 2017 year-end reserves are as follows:

1. Overall, the Group's total net Proved (“1P") oil, gas and
natural gas liquid (“NGL") reserves increased by 593% to 256
million barrels of oil equivalents ("BOE"”, where 1 BOE =
6,000 cubic feet gas), total net Proved + Probable (“2P") oil,
gas and NGL reserves increased by 431% to 399 MMBOE,
and total net Proved + Probable + Possible (“3P") oil, gas and
NGL reserves increased by 361% to 431 MMBOE™®. The
increases in these reserve categories were mainly
contributed by the gas and NGL reserves of Canlin properties
in the Western Canada Basin.

2. The Group's net 1P oil reserves for 2017 increased by 9% to
31.0 million barrels, while 2P net oil reserves slightly
decreased by 2% to 60.0 million barrels and 3P net oil
reserves increased by 11% to 86.0 million barrels
respectively, reflecting the combined impact of the
production of Daan Project and the divestment of Moliging
Project in Jilin Province, China, the revision on Emir-Oil's
reserves for 2017 year-end in Kazakhstan and the acquisition
of CQ in Canada in 3Q 2017.

3. Canlin’s 1P and 2P reserves are 226 MMBOE and 335
MMBOE respectively for the year-end of 2017 and these
reserves represent 88% and 84% of the Group’s net 1P and
2P reserves on BOE basis, of which approximately 90% is
natural gas and the balance crude oil and NGL. Canlin's highly
proved and prolific reserve, long life assets and vast
undeveloped lands provide great growth potential for the
Group.

4. Based on the 2017 year-end reserves estimates reviewed by
independent consultants, the Group’s 2P net present value,
before tax and discounted at 10% (“NPV10") is approximately
US$1.965 billion, which represents 123% increase from the
reported 2016 year-end 2P NPV10 value of US$881 million.

Note:

As per industry practice, exploration and production companies in Canada do not
prepare or disclose possible reserves. As such, Canlin and Journey have followed the
same approach. Accordingly, the Group's total 3P reserves only include the 2P
reserves of Canlin and Journey.
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ATREE —FE—R"ERR-_FT—LFRRFHE

The following were the prices used to determine the reserves and

resources at the year-end of FY2016 and FY2017: FTARMER

Segment Basin FY2017 FY2016

B 2 2017 R 2016 £ X

China — Gobi Energy Songliao Escalated price profile based on price Escalated price profile based on price
projections published by Sproule for  projections published by Moody's
WTI Crude. An average differential ~ Analytics for WTI Crude. An average
for 2017 January — November differential for 2016 between WTI
between WTI Cushing Spot and Cushing Spot and Daging of —$5.94
Daging of — $2.16 was used. The  was used. The differential is
differential is assumed to remain assumed to remain constant in the
constant in the future. future.

B — KB RE &5 Sproule AMMEAYWTIURERTE  REBES T AMEWTI FAERE
Bl o BRA2017F1-11 AWTIEMRRZ Bl - SR 2016 FWTIEMRR B EFA
ERMAERMERTE-216% EBERMERKFHEDSYMET - ZEH
T ZENBREERRRFIE o BREERRERFIE -

Kazakhstan — Emir-Qil Mangistau Export oil at escalated price profile ~ Export oil at escalated price profile
based on price projections published based on price projections published
by GCA for Brent Crude which has by Moody's Analytics for Brent
been estimated to be $51.31/Stock  Crude which has been estimated to
Tank Barrel in 2018. Domestic oil be $58.00/Stock Tank Barrel in 2017.
price is estimated to be $13.67/Stock Domestic oil price reduced by VAT
Tank Barrel in 2018. Domestic gas ~ 12% resulting in 17.98/Stock Tank
price $0.62/MSCF has been utilized  Barrel in 2017. The price is forecast
for solution gas sales and assumed  to gradually increase related to Brent
to be constant throughout the price. Domestic gas price $0.77/
report. MSCF has been utilized for solution

gas sales and assumed to be
constant throughout the report.

1A 7 2 B748 — Emir-Oil Mangistau SMERMEBRRGCAR M MR  IMERGEREBRES N AMAMR

FmZE S ROERTER - 2018F
BIMERE51.31%T /1 ° 20184
AHEAR13.67FET,/ - AR
BR062F L/ TUFER  ERE
PIRFFIETE °
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FY2017
2017 X

FY2016
2016 £ K

Segment Basin
B i
US — Condor Niobrara
% & — Condor Niobrara

Canada — Journey Western Canadian

JE A — Journey mEXEE
Canada — Canlin Canadian
NE K — Canlin MEX

Escalated price profile based on price
projections published by Sproule.
Appropriate oil and gas price offsets
were determined by examining
Condor’s current oil and gas sales
contracts and comparing them to
historical prices Condor has actually
received. The realized price is
estimated to be $51.85/Stock Tank
Barrel in 2018.

& Sproule MR SIS RERTEA -
BiBBE Condor B ATEMAKXAR
HEWE  THBRELNERER
REEZNAIBRFANRARE
1% 2018 FERRMHEEBRR
$51.85% 7T,/ °

Forecast pricing used is the
average of the published price
forecasts for GLJ Petroleum
Consultants Ltd., Sproule
Associates Ltd. and McDaniel &
Associates Consultants Ltd. as at
January 1, 2018. It is estimated
to be $57.5/Stock Tank Barrel
WTI Cushing Oklahoma in 2018.

TEAERERIEGL) A RERERA
@ » Sproule M McDaniel =K B A
AR 20184 1 A1 B AMAERIER
fFI91E © 2018 FWTI ERE 2 hr
S EMER A7,/ -

Escalated price profile based on
price projections published by
Sproule. Canadian Light Sweet
Crude 40° API oil price is
estimated to be 65.44 $Cdn/bbl
in 2018. Alberta AECO-C Spot
gas price is estimated to be 2.85
$Cdn/MMbtu in 2018.
HSproule DM E 1L KB TEA

—\EMEKRL0°API &L R (E
HRes44 T,/ | —T-N\F
AlbertaAECO- CSpotE!’J?M 52.85
D07 /MMbtu °

Escalated price profile based on price
projections published by Moody's
Analytics. Appropriate oil and gas price
offsets were determined by examining
Condor's current oil and gas sales
contracts and comparing them to
historical prices Condor has actually
received. The realized price is
estimated to be $48.46/Stock Tank
Barrel in 2017.

BERED T AW R BEFE &
ERETER - iBiBIRE Condor B BT R
MAARBEERZ  THBELNE
RER  HWEESHAERRANX
ARER - 2017 FERAHEER
5$48.46,/ 1 °

Forecast pricing used is the
average of the published

price forecasts for GLJ Petroleum
Consultants Ltd., Sproule
Associates Ltd. and McDaniel &
Associates Consultants Ltd. as at
December 31, 2016. It is
estimated to be $55.00/Stock Tank
Barrel WTI Cushing Oklahoma in
2017.

FRIERZREGL E‘?EEEEFEIEFE“
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FY2018 Guidance

The following is our preliminary guidance for FY2018. The Group
will closely monitor the situation and we may revise our work
program as warranted in a timely manner, based on changes in oil
prices. We believe it is very important to maintain a high degree of
flexibility in order to ensure the stability and profitability of our
business in this current volatile oil price environment.

—E-N\Fig5

ATRAEE —F— \FENNLES] - R
EE L RIERIOR E 2B BRI THE
HE - RABERFEERNETEHNRER
SEZ2FRELZRBANENFREE -

Group Net Capex
Numbers of Investment
Interest (%) Wells (Gross) (millions of US$)  Net production
SBER
MXREFHE
5 (%) EHHE(H) (BBEZn) ZFEE
China Onshore Projects (Daan) 90% 13 9  4,200-4,500 BOPD
— crude oil 4,200-4,500 BOPD
REREIER (K%R) 4,200-4,500 %,/ &
— A 4,200-4,500 18,/ K
Canada (Canlin Energy) 100% - 50 47,500-51,170 BOED
— crude oil 3,750-4,275 BOPD
—NGL 1,250-1,425 BOPD
— natural gas 255,000-272,820 MSCF
mex (EEER) 47,500-51,170 BEE /K
— A 3,750-4,275 8,/ &
— RARRINR 1,250-1,425 18,/ %
— XAR 255,000-272,820 F 315 5
R/X
USA (Condor) 100% - 27 BOPD
— crude ol 27 BOPD
2B (Condor) 2718/ %
— R 271/ X
Group Total 13 59 51,727-55,697 BOED
=@ 51,727-55,697 BEE,/X
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's management and shareholders approved the disposal
of 60% equity interest in PBV on June 20, 2016. Emir-Oil, which is
located in Kazakhstan, is the 100% wholly-owned subsidiary of
PBV (collectively, the “PBV Group”). The Kazakhstan operation is
recognized as a disposal group and discontinued operation as at
December 31, 2016, as Emir-Oil represents the business in
Kazakhstan segment, which is a major line of business of the
Group. Emir-Oil's operating results from the Kazakhstan operation
were recorded as a loss for the period from discontinued
operations, and were not included in the results of continuing
operations.

Continuing operations
Revenue

The Group's revenue is generated from sales of oil and gas
products and provision of services.

The Group's revenue from sales of oil and gas increased by
RMB553.7 million, or 105.6%, from RMB524.3 million for 2016 to
RMB1,078.0 million for 2017.

This increase was mainly due to the acquisition of CQ Energy in
September 2017, which contributed revenue RMB421.8 million
during the three months ended December 31, 2017. There was
increase in crude oil prices during the course of 2017 as well.
Average realized oil price was US$48.96 per barrel for 2017,
compared to US$36.74 per barrel for 2016. The Group's total crude
oil sales volume was 2.38 million barrels for 2017, compared to
2.14 million barrels for 2016.

REXRR

AEFEZEBEIMET S —R"FAAZT
B #t R B =8I PBV A B160% RIHEZS © Emir-
Oifi AMFE T HT A » 2 PBVAI100% 2 & T
NEI (& [PBVEE]) - AR EmMIr-OIlRE
WA TEST AMA D EREEFS - ATUAMREE T HTIA 25 R
T RNF+ A=+ BWEAERELE
X5 EmirOlIlMEEEE  AETHELE

AEEWGEE RRANHEE D BMAARRER
KR AR

AEBAARHEE R AT UKFE
AR 524318 018 0 A R #5537 18 7T 5%
1066%ZE —T—+PBFEARKE10.78E
7T|:O

ZENMEERHANR=Z—+F 1A CQ Energy
Wi BT —tF T+ A=1T—HA={#
AEIRAEUR A B4.21818 7T - I8 IH B —
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The Group’s revenue from rendering of services is RMB48.0 million
for 2017.

PRC

Revenue from our China oil fields increased from RMB519.6
million for 2016 to RMB652.2 million for 2017. The average
realized oil price was US$48.89 per barrel for 2017, compared
to US$36.73 per barrel for 2016. Our sales volume was 1.98
million barrels for 2017, compared to 2.12 million barrels for
2016.

North America
Canada

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada oil fields realized revenue from crude oil sales of
RMB130 million. The average realized oil price was US$49.32
per barrel, with sales volume of 392,129 barrels.

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada operations realized revenue from gas sales of
RMB256 million, with a realized gas price of US$1.50 per
MSCF and total gas sales volume of 25.3 BSCF for 2017.

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada operations realized revenue from NGL sales of
RMB27.92 million, with a realized gas price of US$26.64 per
barrel and total NGL sales volume of 155,466 barrels for
2017.

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada oil fields realized revenue from sulphur sales of
RMB18.88 million, royalty income of RMB10.96 million, and
other revenue (incl. processing income) of RMB21.25 million.
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USA

In 2017, our America oil fields realized revenue from crude oil
sales of RMB3.2 million. The average realized oil price was
US$47.44 per barrel, with sales volume of 9,956 barrels. In
2016, our America oil fields realized revenue from crude oil
sales of RMB3.9 million. For 2016, the average realized oil
price was US$37.77 per barrel, with sales volume of 15,328
barrels.

Our America operations realized revenue from gas sales of
RMBA43,025, with a realized gas price of US$4.47 per MSCF
and total gas sales volume of 1,428 MSCF for 2017. In 2016,
revenue from gas sales of RMBO0.2 million was recorded from
realized gas price of US$2.30 per MSCF and total gas sales
volume of 13,981 MSCF.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

The Group's depreciation, depletion and amortization increased by
RMB126.0 million, or 34.6%, from RMB363.9 million for 2016 to
RMB489.9 million for 2017. The increase in depreciation, depletion
and amortization was mainly due to the acquisition of CQ Energy in
September 2017, which has a depreciation expense of RMB137.2
million during the three months ended December 31, 2017.
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Taxes other than income taxes

The Group’s taxes other than income taxes increased by RMB0.8
million, or 6%, from RMB13.4 million for 2016 to RMB14.2 million
for 2017. The following table summarizes taxes other than income
taxes for 2017 and 2016:

BiR (FTEBLERSM)

REBTIB (FIEHRIIN B =S —SHBF
EAR®1340BTHEMARESOE THK6%
ET—+UBFREARARK1,42087L - T
RBEEE-_T—+tF+-_f=+—HEK=ZE

—ANFETZA=+—HOBRIE (PSRRI

Year ended December 31,

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥TRT

PRC =

Urban construction tax and education surcharge 3 @R LA BT NE 3,488 2,839

Others Hith 91 96

3,579 2,935

Corporate and other segments IR HAth 5 2B

Withholding tax and others RADR T S Bt 10,635 10,479
14,214 13,414

PRC A

The Ministry of Finance of the People’'s Republic of China
announced that the threshold of the special oil income levy was
revised from US$55 to US$65 per barrel, effective from January 1,
2015. As no sales were realized at or above US$65 per barrel
during 2017, no special oil levy was incurred for our China oilfields.

Corporate and other segments
Withholding Tax and others

Withholding tax represents accrual of withholding tax on interest
charged on intercompany loans.
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Employee compensation costs

The Group's employee compensation costs increased by RMB73.2
million, or 54.9%, from RMB133.3 million for 2016 to RMB206.5
million for 2017. The increase in employee compensation costs
was primarily due to acquisition of CQ Energy, which has
compensation cost of RMB84.5 million during the three months
ended December 31, 2017, and partially offset by the reduction of
headcount during 2017.

Purchases, services and other expenses

Our purchases, services and other expenses increased by
RMB194.8 million, or 184.5%, from RMB105.6 million for 2016 to
RMB300.4 million for 2017. The increase was due to acquisition of
CQ Energy, which had purchases, services and other expenses of
RMB199.5 million during the three months ended December 31,
2017.

Distribution expenses

The Group's distribution expenses increased by RMB37.5 million,
or 206%, from RMB18.2 million in 2016 to RMB55.7 million in
2017. The increase in distribution expenses was primarily due to
acquisition of CQ Energy, which has distribution expenses of
RMB38.6 million during the three months ended December 31,
2017.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by
RMB103.3 million, or 152.6%, from RMB67.7 million for 2016 to
RMB171.0 million for 2017. The increase in administrative
expenses was primarily due to: (i) the acquisition of CQ Energy,
which had general and administrative expenses of RMB65.0 million
(including transaction fee for acquiring CQ Energy of RMB16.7
million) during the three months ended December 31, 2017; (ii) the
other portion of transaction fees incurred in relation to the
acquisition of CQ Energy charged on the Company of RMB17.3
million.
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Impairment charges

The Group recognized: (i) impairment charge amounting to
RMB33.5 million on the investment in PetroBroad; (ii) impairment
loss on available-for-sale financial assets amounting to RMB2
million.

Other (losses)/income

The Group incurred other loss of RMB652.5 million for 2017,
compared to other income of RMB297.8 million for 2016. Other
loss for 2017 arose primarily from the provision for receivables of
RMB730.1 million due to long aging and lower collectability, which
was offset by (i) gains on disposal of subsidiaries of RMB46.3
million; and (i) gains on financial instruments of RMB45.7 million;
Other income for 2016 includes mainly: (i) gain on disposal of a
subsidiary of RMB526.1 million in July 2016; (i) gains arising from
acquisition of Journey of RMB29.8 million, which was offset by (i)
provision for receivables of RMB252.8 million due to long aging
and lower collectability; and (ii) losses on derivative financial
instruments of RMB19.6 million.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group's finance income increased by RMB31.7 million, or
181.1%, from RMB17.5 million for 2016 to RMB49.2 million for
2017.

Finance cost decreased by RMB216 million, or 563.5%, from
RMB404.0 million for 2016 to RMB188.0 million for 2017.

Share of loss of associates

As at December 31, 2017, the Group holds a 34.0% interest in
PetroBroad, 31.9% interest in Journey and 40.0% in PBV,
respectively. These investments are accounted for as associates
by the Group and our share of loss of amounted to RMB63.0
million in 2017.
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Loss before income tax

The Group’s loss before income tax was RMB1,012.3 million for
2017, compared to the loss before income tax of RMB458.0 million
for 2016. This was primarily due to the cumulative effects of the
above factors.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of RMB87.2 million for
2017, compared to an income tax expense of RMB147.2 million for
2016. The effective tax rate for 2017 is negative 9% compared to
an effective tax rate for 2016 of negative 32%.

Loss for the year from continuing operations

As a result of the foregoing, our net loss from continuing operations
for 2017 was RMB1,099.5 million, compared to a net loss from
continuing operations of RMB605.1 million for 2016.

Loss for the year

The Group's net loss for 2017 was RMB1,099.5 million, compared
to the net loss of RMB1,322.2 million for 2016.

EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

We provide a reconciliation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to
profit for 2017, our most directly comparable financial performance
calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS. EBITDA refers
to earnings before finance income, finance costs, income tax and
depreciation, depletion and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA refers
to EBITDA adjusted to exclude non-cash and non-recurring items
such as share-based payment to employees, Impairment loss,
provision for receivable, geological and geophysical expense,
withholding tax, gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments,
gains on disposal of subsidiaries, gains arising from acquisition of
an associate and any other non-cash or non-recurring income/
expenses.
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The Group's adjusted EBITDA reflects the Group’s recurring cash
flow earnings from its core operations.

We have included EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA as we believe
EBITDA is a financial measure commonly used in the oil and gas
industry. We believe that EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are used
as supplemental financial measures by our management and by
investors, research analysts, bankers and others, to assess our
operating performance, cash flow and return on capital as
compared to those of other companies in our industry, and our
ability to take on financing. However, EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA
should not be considered in isolation or construed as alternatives to
profit from operations or any other measure of performance or as
an indicator of our operating performance or profitability. EBITDA
and adjusted EBITDA fail to account for corporate tax, finance
income, finance costs and other non-operating cash expenses.
EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA do not consider any functional or
legal requirements of the business that may require us to conserve
and allocate funds for any purposes.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations to loss before income
tax from continuing operations for the years ended December 31,

2017 and December 31, 2016:

TRET A EKLEBITDA MK FBFEK
SEBITDAREHE -_Z—+F+-_A=+—H
M E—RNE+_A=+—BIFEZHER
BRI AFE IR L -

Year ended December 31,

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZZT—XRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFT
Not loss for the year from continuing operations REAESTE (1,012,296) (457,981)
Finance income Y ON (49,248) (17,490)
Finance costs B 75 & 187,997 403,951
Depreciation, depletion and amortization WrE - i 489,863 363,860
EBITDA from continuing operations FHELS & EBITDA (383,684) 292,340
Share-based payment to employees AT EI TR B RIS A 20,158 27,990
Impairment loss DERIEECES 35,524 234,667
Provision for receivable sHEEU R 730,116 252,756
Geological and geophysical hE R kIR & - 1,227
Exploration and evaluation expense BRETEEERBAER 10,737 -
Withholding tax RN & 10,633 10,647
Gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments ~ $74 &g T A (Ygzs) 18k (52,390) 19,595
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries REFARFE (46,318) (526,132)
Gains arising from acquisition of an associate g P REE S - (29,798)
Others HAith 23,339 -
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations KRS B AC 2 EBITDA 348,115 283,292

The Group generated negative EBITDA of RMB383.7 million for
2017, compared to the positive EBITDA of RMB292.3 million for
2016. The decrease in EBITDA in 2017 was primarily due to: (i)
share of loss of investment accounted for using the equity method
of RMB63.0 million for 2017, compared to the gain of RMB32.3
million for 2016; (i) bad debt provision of receivables of RMB730.1
million for 2017, compared to the amount of RMB252.8 for 2016.
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The Group's adjusted EBITDA increased by approximately
RMB64.8 million, or 22.9%, from approximately RMB283.3 million
for 2016 to approximately RMB348.1 million for 2017. The increase
in adjusted EBITDA was primarily due to the acquisition of CQ

Energy and the increase in oil price as well.

The Group’s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA from continuing

operations by operating segment are set out below:

REFNKFALEBITDAR T —~FBEE
AR 2833 LM AR 6,480 8
TTH29% E_FE—+tMBFENHARE
348118 7T - KL FHLEBITDAE MM EE R B
CQ Energy FYUSEE R (ERY L3R ©

REEIZLE DB D K IFELEEBITDA K
(R R B S EBITDA IR FAT/R -

Year Ended December 31, 2017
BE-ZE—tF+-A=1t—HLEE

PRC

FEl
RMB'000

North
America

%
RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TR

Corporate
and others
mE
REA
RMB’000

Total

att

RMB’000

ARBTRT AR® TR

Loss before income tax from

REQERMEHAER

continuing operations (35,209)  (237,756) (739,331) (1,012,296)
Finance income TR A (366) (1,284) (47,598) (49,248)
Finance costs BER 57,618 149,771 (19,392) 187,997
Depreciation, depletion and P& ~ IR EEsH

amortization 349,853 139,829 181 489,863
EBITDA from continuing operations #FEICE EBITDA 371,896 50,560 (806,140)  (383,684)
Share-based payment to employees BRI 8 T & B BRIEA AR 5,788 - 14,370 20,158
Impairment loss VERI=EES 2,000 - 33,524 35,524
Provision for receivable sHRIEWUZBRE 82,798 1,503 645,815 730,116
Exploration and evaluation expense HENEEERBAER - 10,737 - 10,737
Withholding tax RMRHR - - 10,633 10,633
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries BREFARFE - - (46,318) (46,318)
Gains on derivative financial THES R T AU

instruments - (61,677) 9,287 (52,390)
Others Hih (3,534) 6,652 20,221 23,339
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing TR B E EBITDA

operations 458,948 7,775 (118,608) 348,115
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Year Ended December 31, 2016

HEZZ—R"FT_A=T—HLFE
North  Corporate
PRC America  and others Total
B
H % READ &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBTIT ARBTI ARBTI
Loss before income tax from BFERERMEHRAIEE
continuing operations (346,756) 22,191 (133,416)  (457,981)
Finance income BITS I (700) (3277)  (13,513)  (17,490)
Finance costs BBER 24,724 43 379,184 403,957
Depreciation, depletion and wE  FRREH
amortization 360,141 3,258 461 363,860
EBITDA from continuing operations ¥ 4484 EBITDA 37,409 22,215 232,716 292,340
Value of employee services under BRI B T R B RS A
stock options schemes 4,853 - 23,137 27,990
Assets impairment loss REBRL 150,245 3,083 81,339 234,667
Losses from changes in fair value of AR EBEFTE BEHEA
derivative financial instrument EHIERSMEEEX - - 19,595 19,595
Geological and geophysical I8 N Ik IE & A - - 1,227 1,227
Withholding tax RINRET - - 10,647 10,647
Provision for bad debt JRE M52 Tz EL At FE LSS58 AR 18 2k 136,944 36,029 79,783 252,756
Gain on disposal of subsidiary EE AR - - (626,132) (526,132)
Gains arising from acquisition of W EEE 2 A R E ARG
an associate - (29,798) - (29,798)
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing SR R B AR EB|TDA
operations 329,451 31,529 (77,688) 283,292
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

The Group's primary sources of cash during 2017 were cash
generated from financing activities.

In 2017, we had net cash generated from operating activities of
RMB40.9 million, net cash used in investing activities of
RMB3,959.3 million, net cash generated from financing activities of
RMB3,160.8 million, an exchange loss on cash and cash equivalent
of RMB15.2 million, and a net decrease in cash and cash equivalent
of RMB757.6 million.

Cash generated from/used in operating activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB40.9 million
in the year ended December 31, 2017. In the year ended December
31, 2017, our net cash generated from operating activities included
loss before income tax of RMB1,012.3 million adjusted for,
depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB489.9 million, net
interest expenses of RMB143.3 million, provision for receivable of
RMB730.1 million, impairment loss of RMB35.5 million, share of
losses from investments in associates of RMB63.0 million, share-
based payment to employees of RMB20.2 million, exploration and
evaluation expense of RMB10.7 million, others of RMB23.3 million,
which was offset by gains on disposal of subsidiaries of RMB46.3
million, exchange gains of RMB4.6 million, gains on derivative
financial instruments of RMB52.4 million. The cash movements
from changes in working capital which included an increase in trade
and other receivables of RMB18.0 million and an increase in trade
and other payable of RMB76.7 million and a decrease of inventories
of RMB6.2 million, interest paid of RMB422.0 million and income
tax paid of RMB2.4 million.
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Net cash used in operating activities was RMB370.9 million in the
year ended December 31, 2016. In the year ended December 31,
2016, our net cash used in operating activities included loss before
income tax of RMB458.0 million adjusted for, depreciation,
depletion and amortization of RMB363.9 million, net interest
expenses of RMB362.6 million, provision for receivable of
RMB252.8 million, gains arising from acquisition of an associate of
RMB29.8 million, share-based payment to employees of RMB28.0
million, share of losses from investments in associates of RMB35.7
million, exchange loss of RMB23.9 million, impairment loss of
RMB234.7 million, losses on derivative financial instruments of
RMB19.6 million, which was offset by gains on disposal of
subsidiaries of RMB526.1 million. The cash movements from
changes in working capital which included an increase in trade and
other payables of RMB65.5 million, an increase in trade and other
receivables of RMB123.0 million and an increase in inventories of
RMB4.6 million, and interest paid of RMB383.0 million and income
tax paid of RMB69.6 million, and net cash used in discontinued
operations of RMB81.1 million.

Cash used in/generated from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2017 amounted to RMB3,959.3 million, as a result of proceeds
from disposals of subsidiaries of RMB90.7 million and interest
received of RMB3.7 million, which was offset by payment for
acquisition of subsidiary of RMB3,557.0 million, purchases of
property, plant and equipment of RMB60.7 million, increase in
financial assets of RMB336.7 million, loans and deposits to third
parties of RMB24.7 million, contribution and loans to investments
accounted for using equity method of RMB33.5 million and others
of RMB41.2 million.

Net cash generated from investing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2016 amounted to RMB1,790.7 million, as a result
of proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries of RMB2,283.7 million,
decrease in restricted cash of RMB462.6 million, and interest
received of RMB20.2 million, which was offset by purchases of
property, plant and equipment of RMB21.6 million, increase in
financial assets of RMB96.4 million, loans and deposits to third
parties of RMB375.0 million, contribution and loans to/acquisition
of investments accounted for using equity method of RMB277.0
million, and net cash used in discontinued operations of RMB205.7
million.
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Cash generated from/used in financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2017 amounted to RMB3,160.8 million primarily due
to: (i) repayments of borrowings of RMB609.9 million, (i) payment
for repurchase and cancellation of 2018 & 2019 Notes of
RMB791.2 million, (iii) payment of others of RMB27.7 million,
offset byl(i) proceeds from borrowings of RMB3,431.9 million, (ii)
increase in other payable of RMB67.9 million and (iii) proceeds
from financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of
RMB1,089.7 million.

Net cash used in financing activities in the year ended December
31, 2016 amounted to RMB750.3 million primarily due to: (i)
repayments of borrowings of RMB930.2 million, (ii) payments
relating to share-based compensation of RMB63.7 million, (iii)
payment for repurchase and cancellation of 2018 & 2019 Notes
RMB110.7 million, (iv) cash paid to non- controlling interest for
additional interest in subsidiary of RMB103.9 million, (v) others of
RMB33.2 million, offset by proceeds from borrowings of
RMB491.5 million.

As at December 31, 2017, the Group’s borrowings from the bank
and third parties amounted to approximately RMB6,049.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,358.9 million as
compared to December 31, 2016. Among which, borrowings
repayable within one year amounted to approximately RMB1, 529.
0 million, representing an increase of RMB1,425.0 million as
compared to December 31, 2016. All of the Group's borrowings
are denominated in RMB, United States Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars
and Canadian Dollars. The Group’s borrowings all at fixed interest
rates. No hedging instruments are used for bank borrowings.

Our gearing ratio, which is defined as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents (“Net Borrowings”) divided by the sum of
Net Borrowings and total equity, increased from 85.5% as at
December 31, 2016 to 104.8% as at December 31, 2017,
principally due to a decrease in equity.

Our total borrowings to Adjusted EBITDA ratio, which is defined as
total borrowings divided by Adjusted EBITDA increased from 16.56
as at December 31, 2016 to 17.38 as at December 31, 2017.
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Market Risks

Our market risk exposures primarily consist of fluctuations in oil
and gas prices and exchange rates.

Oil and gas price risk

Our realized oil and gas prices are determined by reference to oil
and gas prices in the international market, changes in international
oil and gas prices will have a significant impact on us. Unstable and
highly volatile international oil and gas prices may have a significant
impact on our revenue and profit. During 2017, the Group entered
into oil and gas hedge options contracts to manage its price risk.

Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s China operation sales are in US dollars,
while production and other expenses in China are incurred in RMB.
The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is regulated by
the PRC government. Limitations on foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could cause future exchange
rates to vary significantly from current or historical exchange rates.

The functional currency of the Canada subsidiary is in Canadian
dollars and all sales are in Canadian dollars. Management is not in a
position to anticipate changes in the fluctuations between the
Canadian dollar and RMB exchange rates, and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the Group's results of
operations or financial position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

The Group currently does not engage in hedging activities designed
or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will
continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve the
Group’s cash value.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As of December 31, 2017, certain assets, comprising principally oil
assets and properties in Alberta, Canada, were pledged to banks as
collateral security for banking facilities with outstanding amount of
RMB870.3 million. In addition, as of December 31, 2017, certain
available for sale financial assets, bank accounts and shares of
subsidiaries of the Group were pledged to secure borrowings in
the aggregate amount of RMB1,958.8 million.

EMPLOYEES

As at December 31, 2017, the Company had 1,495 employees,
with 1,089 based in China (Mainland and Hong Kong), two based in
USA and 404 based in Canada. There have been no material
changes to the information disclosed in the Annual Report 2016 in
respect of the remuneration of employees, remuneration policies
and staff development.

CONTINGENCIES

On August 28, 2000, MI Energy Corporation (“MI Energy”) entered
into a PSC with China Petrochemical Corporation (“Sinopec”) for
exploration and development of the Shengli oilfield in Shandong
Province. In 2000, MI Energy began the trial-development phase of
its operations at the Shengli oilfield and drilled a dry hole. The
project has been suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005,
MI Energy requested an extension from Sinopec to restart the
project at the Shengli oilfield. On September 27, 2006, M| Energy
received a letter from Sinopec denying the request to restart the
project and seeking to terminate the PSC on the grounds that the
extension period of the trial-development phase had expired and
MI Energy had not met its investment commitment of at least
US$2 million under the PSC. MI Energy believed its investment in
the project at Shengli oilfield had met the required commitment
amount under the PSC. The PSC with Sinopec has not been
formally terminated and the dispute has not entered any judicial
proceedings. On November 17, 2017, the Group completed the
sale of the entire issued share capital of MI Energy.
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DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: NIL).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") is scheduled
to be held on Friday, May 18, 2018. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, May 15,
2018 to Friday, May 18, 2018, both days inclusive, during which no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, May 14, 2018, being the last
registration date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2017 including the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
has discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of MIE Holdings Corporation
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 137 to 308, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Recoverability of the carrying amount of oil and gas properties
° Allocation of purchase price in respect of the acquisition of

the entire partnership interests in CQ Energy Canada
Partnership
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE

B AR E
BMIBERZRAR D FRE ()
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BREESTEER)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RAENEST A EEEARETSEE

Recoverability of the carrying amount of oil and
gas properties

HI 5% 6 2 AR T (1L A9 T R [ 1

Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2 A HM B MARMES -

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of oil
and gas properties of the Group amounted to
RMB6,700.8 million.

RZZE—+tF+-A=+—H EXEHREERAE
BE®ERARKE,7008BETT °
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In addressing this matter, we performed following
procedures, amongst others:

BT T T OB R AR B XA Bt 08 ¢

° Understood the key processes and controls
relating to the identification of impairment
indicator, determination of cash generating
units and the assessment of the recoverable
amount.

TEHRERENETRETR  BERSMEDH
BT R T4 AT Y [0 < BE AR BA A B 4R R AR AN AR
PR o

° Evaluated management’s identification of
potentially impaired assets. Where an
impairment indicator was identified by
management, procedures were performed on
their impairment assessment, as below:
AHEREEHECREEENSNN SEERE
BRAHGFEEERENR - AEE BN TR
BEFHHEER :

° Compared the forecast oil or gas prices
used in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of respective oil and
gas properties against a range of oil or gas
price forecasts published by various
reputable banks and industry organisations.
1S E IR B AT (hh R & B AT 0] & FE R ER
AR TR R B E R R AR RITRITE
REEAHTEANR REEHE ML
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN EST A EERARETSE

Management assess the oil and gas properties for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable. When indicators of
impairment were identified, management assessed the
recoverable amount of oil and gas properties of the
cash generating units (“CGU") based on their value in
use as estimated using discounted cash flow models.
In performing such assessment, management adopted
key assumptions, including:
EFAESENIMNOIRRE BN NRE ERE(E R LR
EWE - ERERE MR EEERREN G EEEE
BRHFERETRE - EEBRAERTRRESRE
AEEGHNEENCRAEESEREREhREER
W Bl REETA G - EEMHBZIEN AR EEERAT
AT RS RER -

—  Forecast oil or gas prices;
FERDH R B

—  Forecast production volumes;
TEREE

—  Forecast operating costs and capital expenditures;
and

BRRIEBRAAMRESH &

— Discount rates.

IR

Assessed the forecast production volume
by comparing it against (i) the approved
production plan; (ii) forecast production
volume for the remaining concession
periods prepared by management and as
set out in the reserve report; and (iii)
historical actual production volume. We
also performed procedures to evaluate
the competence, capability and objectivity
of external reserve experts engaged by
management for preparing the reserve
report.

FERIETERESR - BEAESE TME
HH LR (1) A Bt & By AR EE AT EI (i) B IR AR
WH| R ERERNERERE REARA
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N BT -

Assessed the forecast operating costs
against (i) the approved budget; and (ii)
the historical actual costs. Compared the
forecast capital expenditures against the
approved budget.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMESNAERERRETSE

Given the significant balance of oil and gas properties
as at 31 December 2017, together with the use of
significant management judgements over various
assumptions in estimating the recoverability of their
carrying amount, we had identified this matter as a key
audit matter.
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° Challenged the underlying assumptions
adopted in the determination of the
discount rates based on external market
data and published information of
comparable companies.
ERINEBTTSEE R AT R B E B E T E
IR R P A R R ERETT AT o

o Tested mathematical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow projections.
REFRBR SRR EROBRATE
W o

Based on our work, we found the key assumptions
adopted were supported by the audit evidence we
gathered.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMNESNAEERRETSE

Allocation of purchase price in respect of the
acquisition of the entire partnership interests in CQ
Energy Canada Partnership

W B8 CQ Energy Canada Partnership 2 & BB
BEERNDE

Refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2H AU ERERMEST -

On 29 September 2017, Canlin Energy Corporation (the
“Purchaser”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, completed the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the entire partnership interests in the
CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ Energy”) for a
consideration of approximately C$699.4 million
(equivalent to RMB3,735.9 million). CQ Energy owns a
diverse base of producing, reserve and infrastructure
assets located throughout Western Canada.
RZBE—tFNLAZ+TNA  ERFNEZENBTAF
Canlin Energy Corporation ([ & 75 J) LA ¥ & %7699.4 &
B (ITd ARY3,735.98 & JT) 52K ¥ CQ Energy
Canada Partnership ([CQ Energy]) 2 %8 & B I
& (TAE 1) - CQ Energy #E B iR M A2 K FEE0 % #h #) 4
B REMEREEEE -

In addressing this matter, we performed the
following procedures, amongst others:

BT T THER R AR %R R 518

o Obtained the sales and purchase agreement of
the Acquisition and shareholder agreement to
understand the transaction details including
considerations, conditions of completion, the
respective rights and obligations of the Group
upon completion.
DEZBBEENESHELRRRGE AT
BBEZZHE B TKGE UREEE
MRREITEHEBERAENENEBRBERSHF

=

o Evaluated the competence, capability and
objectivity of the external professional valuer
engaged in preparing the fair value assessment.
EERAABEM NI ERTEMNE
B R hMEHIN -

o With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessed the appropriateness of
the valuation methodology and the underlying
assumptions adopted in determining fair value
allocation. We checked the mathematical
accuracy of the valuation models.
EEAMASEEZIRORE T - HEEES
EREBEALBESERAKANEBRRS
HEMN - BMRE T HEERSBENEESE
WM -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RAENEST A EEEARETSEE

With the assistance of an external professional valuer,
management performed the fair value assessment on
the allocation of purchase price in respect of the
Acquisition as of the completion date. Based on the
assessment, a goodwill of C$135.6 million (equivalent
to RMB724.3 million) arose from the Acquisition. The
goodwill is attributable to the synergy expected from
the Acquisition.

EINDEEMGERN R T - BEEERKNESTENEE
BRHENUETK BRI AR EEEIT TG - IRIEFT
i WEELEB1B6AEMT(FTEARKT72438
& IT) o B IR B W HE = IETE BIHY 15 R KU o

Management exercised significant judgement in the fair
valuation of assets acquired particularly when developing
key assumptions including forecast gas and oil prices,
forecast production volume, forecast operating costs
and capital expenditures.
EREHMWBEENAABEETHEERATEKRE
BREHE - SRR ENEFR S RATERRRER - TR
EE - BAREBEBRNMRE HE@RMER -

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the purchase consideration and
significant management judgments involved in the
allocation of the purchase price for the Acquisition.
ERBEUHBERENEREERZWETREEER S
R RHEREIREHE - RS EIERR AR
FTEIE -
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o Assessed the fair value adjustments on the assets

acquired. Our assessment was based on our
understanding of the business of CQ Energy and
the business plan in respect of the Acquisition. In
addition, we considered comparable market
transactions and market factors relevant to oil and
gas assets in Western Canada when assessing
the fair value adjustments.
BB EENRAABERAE - MG
ERFAMIE CQ Energy 15 A LW EI80 T
B o pbAN  HPIEFE AR BERAEFEER
TENEAEIEREERBOAILTISER S
MmimEZE o

° For key assumptions, our audit procedures
included:
HRARREBR  HAINETIEREHE -

° Compared the forecast gas and oil prices
used against the forecast published in the
reserve report prepared by the external
reserve experts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EST A EERARETSE

Assessed the forecast production volume
by comparing against (i) forecast
production volume for the remaining
concession periods prepared by the
external reserve experts as set out in the
reserve report; and (ii) historical actual
production volume. We also performed
procedures to evaluate the competence,
capability and objectivity of the external
reserve experts engaged by management
for preparing the reserve report.
FERIETERESR - BEAESE TMmE
LR () BB BRGNS TR FEEREP
WERSHERBRABIES - R(IESL
ERES - LI BRMEBBEEETE
Fr HERES|IAZ2EFHHREREANIN
HERNEE - e REBMEITE -

Compared the forecast operating costs
against historical actual costs.

HRIANRIEE MEE L BIRE AETHLE -

Assessed the forecast capital expenditures
against the approved budget.
HETERIIR & S BRACHE O TR EETTEL R ©

Assessed the underlying assumptions
adopted in the determination of the
discount rates against external market
data and published information of
comparable companies.

e B T B 2R R R T ER AR A B AR R aR B 1N ED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RENEST A EEBARETSE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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o Tested the mathematical accuracy of the
goodwill calculation and assessed as to
whether the business rationale supported the
goodwill recognition.
RAEFEAEPOEUREERILE - YT EE
BHEERMESEEUFEENESR -

Based on our work, we found the key assumptions
adopted were supported by the audit evidence we
gathered.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

BERAE

B AR E
BMIBEREZERAR D FRE ()
(RAASHEZMA A BRAA])

BRBMRET AU BRRARNE
£ (&)

ERE(BIBREAERDETEHBRES
BPERTERHE - RisTEREREE -
BAITL

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

B Az BA RS ()

e
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is: LEONG Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
(If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese

version of this independent auditor’s report, the English version
shall prevail.)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ERAR

As at December 31,

R+=-—HA=+-—H
2017 2016
—EB—+tF ZE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR®T T AREFIT
Assets EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THAERE 6 7,719,859 2,407,958
Intangible assets B A E 7 708,193 8,849
Investments in associates Bt EINE 8 182,541 246,667
Deferred income tax assets BB HREE 23 334 40,590
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 12 67,132 63,330
Derivative financial instrument PTHEERIA 13 25,652 -
Prepayments, deposits and other R - RE® REHA
receivables FEWL R 15 727,966 820,224
Restricted cash PR IR S 18 43,285 =
9,474,962 3,587,618
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 16,745 30,155
Prepayments, deposits and other AN RES REM
receivables FEWL R 15 751,426 1,131,001
Trade receivables e BR X 16 407,035 103,568
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmMT AR 13 342,763 90,325
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE 12 111,228 =
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 18 72,012 =
Cash and cash equivalents Be RBESZEED 19 132,172 904,961
1,833,381 2,260,010
Total assets EEAH 11,308,343 5,847,628
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of BEBREATREEN
the Company DR
Share capital A& A 20 1,068,796 1,068,796
Other reserves Hib 22 47,265 (143,963)
Accumulated losses RETEE (1,384,495) (285,019)
(268,434) 639,814
Non-controlling interests FEE S M i (27) (27)
Total equity S (268,461) 639,787
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
BRI FEARK (B)

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B &E AR®BFT ARBTE

Liabilities =E

Non-current liabilities FRBEME

Borrowings RN 26 4,520,457 4,586,555

Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTSTaE 23 589,281 66,401

Trade and notes payable FERTBR RN M B 2245 24 26,529 14,161

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities % - B2 R E b & (& 25 2,620,311 60,809

Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA 13 5,574 —

Financial liabilities at fair value IAREBEFEBEESE

through profit or loss AZHIEENEmEE 14 1,067,626 =

8,829,778 4,727,926

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and notes payable FERTBR RN M B 2245 24 392,984 74,199

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities %8 - B2 R E b & (& 25 718,598 226,999

Current income tax liabilities EHREHAaE 97,233 54,141

Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 13 9,200 20,576

Borrowings RN 26 1,529,011 104,000
2,747,026 479,915

Total liabilities i=REfitc] 11,576,804 5,207,841

Total equity and liabilities EzkEEBEE 11,308,343 5,847,628

The accompanying notes on pages 146 to 308 are an integral part &M 146 EEFE 308 B 2 T RA& G175
of these consolidated financial statements. WERA LS5 o

The consolidate financial statements on pages 137 to 308 were 5137 EZ £ 308 A Z &M BHRKEN T
approved by the Board of Directors on March 29, 2018 and were —/\F=AZTHhBEZESFSHETIE - K

signed on its behalf. REFEFE:
Zhang Ruilin Zhao Jiangwei
Director Director
3 3
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

aftiRae W

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
ZE—tF —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR®T T AREFIT
Continuing operations BHERE
Revenue Iz 5 1,125,982 534,974
Depreciation, depletion and E - Rk
amortisation 5 (489,863) (363,860)
Exploration and evaluation expense RN EEERBAER 6 (10,737) -
Taxes other than income taxes I8 (FraRiBR o) 28 (14,214) (13,414)
Employee benefit expense 8 THM A 31 (206,510) (133,291)
Purchases, services and other RKiE - R MEMERE
direct costs B AN (300,435) (105,573)
Distribution expense HESH (55,689) (18,172)
General and administrative expense EIEEH (171,017) (67,666)
Impairment charges BERMEEX 6,7,8 12 (35,524) (234,667)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hab(3BKR) FIE - FE 27 (652,517) 297,849
Finance income B R URA 29 49,248 17,490
Finance costs B & 29 (187,997) (403,951)
Share of (losses)/profits of ZHEBMEPELEN
investments in associates (E518),/FBRH 5 8 (63,023) 35,682
Share of losses of investments in ZEAEEKREN
joint ventures ERNE - (3,382)
Loss before income tax BREFT B AIEE (1,012,296) (457,981)
Income tax expense FeHiEH 32 (87,180) (147,166)
Loss for the year from continuing REZBEREHRE
operations BB (1,099,476) (605,147)
Discontinued operations rirge
Loss for the year from discontinued REFELR | HEEFTS
operations 518 - (717,086)
Loss for the year NEEIE (1,099,476) (1,322,233)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
aftiRalamE (8

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B &E AR®BFT ARBTE

Other comprehensive income Hitt iR E W ¢

Items that may be reclassified to HENHEEESHZREZH

profit or loss HH
Change in value of available-for-sale At &SR EENEE

financial assets HE) 8,168 18,405
Share of other comprehensive income ZHHEPERERN

of investments in associates HAith4R & =m0 58 (3,758) 2,788
Currency translation differences INEEAT A RE 166,660 (129,976)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEXRFEHMES

for the year, net of tax Uz (%) 171,070 (108,772)
Total comprehensive loss for rEREERER

the year (928,406) (1,431,005)
Loss for the year attributable to: REFERBBERN :
Owners of the Company RARIFIBES (1,099,476) (1,322,453)
Non-controlling interests JEFR R 25 - 220

(1,099,476) (1,322,233)

Loss for the year attributable to BERAQARMEEN

owners of the Company arising WEBRIRER :

from:
— Continuing operations — BFERE (1,099,476) (605,367)
— Discontinued operations — R b - (717,086)

(1,099,476) (1,322,453)

Total comprehensive loss for the AEZEBREERTER
year attributable to:

Owners of the Company RNARIFTEE (928,406) (1,431,225)
Non-controlling interests FEF R 2R _ 220

(928,406) (1,431,005)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
aftiraliamk (E)

Year ended December 31

BEt-A=1T—-HLHEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B eE AR®BFT AR®ETE

Total comprehensive loss HERAEQATMEENTE

attributable to owners of HEBKRBEEER

the Company arising from:
— Continuing operations — EERS (928,406) (714,139)
— Discontinued operations — R PR - (717,086)

(928,406) (1,431,225)

Loss per share for loss attributable ZAEXRQTFEEELEEN
to owners of the Company for the SREIE (GRARE)
year (expressed in RMB per share)

Basic loss per share HEEXERKRER 34

— Continuing operations — BERKE (0.39) (0.21)

— Discontinued operations — R - (0.25)
(0.39) (0.46)

Diluted loss per share wESKRERE 34

— Continuing operations — BEgE (0.39) (0.21)

— Discontinued operations — R PR - (0.25)
(0.39) (0.46)

The accompanying notes on pages 137 to 308 are an integral part &5 137 B = 5 308 B 2 M at BANH ik
L (7NN
of these consolidated financial statements. HEERRHE Y
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—H— N7
/ N II\I:III\

EHR

Attributable to owners of the Company

GENALNRMEE
Retained
Earnings/ Non-
Ordinary Share Other  (Accumulated controlling Total
shares premium reserves losses) Total interests Equity
Bk
LEk RAEE ke (ZHER) B JEERIER Enl®
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETR
As at January 1,2016 RZE-xE-A-H 19,489 1,049,307 65,457 1,037,434 2,171,687 39,309 2,210,996
Comprehensive income rEGRNE
for the year
Loss for the year REER - - - (1322453)  (1,322,453) 20 (1,322,233
Available-for-sale financial AHESREAR
assets (Note 12) (RitzE12) = = 18,405 = 18,405 - 18,405
Share of other comprehensive  SHETRIEREAEH
income of investment REMAhEA
accounted for using the Wi
equity method - - 2,79 - 2,799 - 2,799
Currency translation differences M E £ = - (129,976) - (129,976) - 129,976)
19,489 1,049,307 (43,315) (285,019) 740,462 39,529 779,991
Transactions with ownersin ~ EfEENEREEN
their capacity as owners SRETHRS
Employees stock option [EEERETE
schemes
—value of employee services  — EBRIBER
(Note 31) (Ft3E 31) - - 27,990 - 27,990 - 27,990
— shares to settle SARs — E R ERHE
under the plan N - - 599 - 599 - 599
Share purchased under Share k{3 #&Eh5t 2 FTEEIR ()
Award Scheme (Note 21(a)) (PzE21(a) - - (63,706) - (63,706) - (63,706)
Acquisition of additional interest 4N EVSF A AR
in a subsidiary = = (65,531) = (65,531) (39,556) (105,087)
= = (100,648) = (100,648) (39,556) (140,204)
As at December 31, 2016 R-E-RE
T-A=1+-H 19,489 1,049,307 (143,963) (285,019) 639,814 (27) 639,787
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
MR EER(E)

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG
Non-
Ordinary Share Other Accumulated controlling Total
shares premium reserves losses Total interests Equity

EER  BARE ARG RiER B FEeMEE  RGSE
RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARNTR ARRTR ARRTR ARETR ARETZ

As at January 1,2017 RZB-t%5-f-H 19,489 1,049,307 (143,963) (285,019) 639,814 (27) 639,787

Comprehensive incomefor ~ AEZAKE

the year
Loss for the year rEER - - - (1,099476)  (1,099,476) - (1,099476)
Available-for-sale financial assets Wt E S HARE
Note 12) (Mx12) - - 8,168 - 8,168 - 8,168
Share of other comprehensive  ZHRIEREARH
income of investment REMHEbEA
accounted for using the e[t
equity method - - (3,758) - (3,758) - (3,758)
Currency translation differences  SMEHE£%E - - 166,660 - 166,660 - 166,660
19,489 1,049,307 21,107 (1,384,495) (288,592) 27) (288,619)
Transactions with ownersin ~ EfiEENEFEEN
their capacity as owners BRETNRS
Employees stock option EEBRELE
schemes
— value of employee —EEMREER
senvices (Note 31) (FizE 31) - - 20,158 - 20,158 - 20,158
- - 20,158 - 20,158 - 20,158
As at December 31, 2017 R=B-tf
+-B=t-H 19,489 1,049,307 47,265 (1,384,495) (268,434) (27) (268,461)

The accompanying notes on pages 137 to 308 are an integral part  14F15 137 B £ 5 308 B 2 [ 3£ A A #3R&K
of these consolidated financial statements. HEEHD -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FIREIMER

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR®T T ARETTT
Cash flows from operating RETHNRERE
activities
Continuing operations BERE
Cash generated from operations LEEBEENES 465,380 162,742
Interest paid ERFE (422,038) (382,997)
Income tax paid EATFEH (2,401) (69,567)
Discontinued operations RIS - (81,057)
Net cash generated from/(used in) &E&SEEELE (EA)
operating activities WIREFE 35 40,941 (370,879)
Cash flows from investing activities REFZEHNEERE
Continuing operations FERE
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, & F 2 F1FT #3018
net of cash acquired & 55 (3,557,006) -
Purchases of property, plant and HBETHE  ITH&
equipment B (60,685) (21,621)
Increase in financial assets B RbE E A N (336,686) (96,422)
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries W 2|5 & F A B FT{5 5018 90,660 2,283,724
Loans and deposits to third parties Y NE=ZFETNRES (24,656) (375,045)
Contribution and loans to/acquisition & A U BE LAREZS A A BRHY
of investments accounted for KENRER
using equity method (33,490) (277,007)
Interest received B WS 3,718 20,171
Others i) (41,153) =
Decrease in restricted cash 2 BR HI2R £ KR A - 462,646
Discontinued operations Sl S - (205,736)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (EH) EL
investing activities HIREEEE (3,959,298) 1,790,710
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
EHBEEREXR(E)

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®BTFT  AR¥KTE

Cash flows from financing activities BEEZEBNEERE

Continuing operations HERE
Repayments of borrowings BEER 35 (609,921) (930,224)
Proceeds from borrowings BT EIA 35 3,431,882 491,534
Payment for repurchase and BI85 2018412019

cancellation of 2018 and 2019 Notes ~ B&Z# 35 (791,173) (110,739)
Increase in other payables oA e FR A N 67,909 =
Proceeds from financial liabilities at WERIAA R BEFERR

fair value through profit or loss FE AS B SE

BEMBHFIE 1,089,748 —

Cash paid to non-controlling interest  ZESNEUS F /A Bl FEHR &

for additional interest in subsidiary RS FTSE TR IE - (103,919)
Payments relating to share-based EARR M BT BB S T Y

compensation TR - (63,706)
Others Hib (27,677) (33,2006)

Net cash generated from/(used in) @A EEELE(FH)H
financing activities IR FRE 3,160,768 (750,260)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERBESEEYN

and cash equivalents CR2),/#BhnFEE (757,589) 669,571
Cash and cash equivalents at FHHERIES

beginning of the year EEY 904,961 202,967
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash Re KRB EEYH

and cash equivalents (ERRi=F (15,200) 32,423

Cash and cash equivalents at end FERRENASE
of the year ZEY 132,172 904,961

The accompanying notes on pages 137 to 308 are an integral part & M58 137 = F 308 B .2 Mzt RS O A1 5
of these consolidated financial statements. WEREERED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ISR M5

GENERAL INFORMATION

MIE Holdings Corporation (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the exploration, development, production and sale of oil,
gas and other petroleum products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") under production sharing contract (the
“PSC"”) and in the exploration, development and holding
interests in petroleum and natural gas properties directly and
through investments in other partnership holdings in oil and
natural gas properties or related production infrastructure in
Canada. The Group also participates as associates in the
exploration, development and production of petroleum assets
located in the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “Kazakhstan”),
western Canada and the northern part of the South China Sea
in the PRC.

On September 29, 2017, Canlin Energy Corporation (“Canlin”
or the “Purchaser”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, completed the acquisition of all the partnership
interests in the CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ Energy”)
(the “Acquisition”). The aggregate purchase price for the
Acquisition is C$699.4 million (equivalent to RMB3,735.9
million). The purchase price was paid in cash to the vendors
upon completion. A goodwill of RMB724.3 million arose upon
completion of the Acquisition. Further details of the
Acquisition are provided in Note 37.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company's shares were listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") on December 14, 2010.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB") unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board of Directors”) on March 29, 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBER(E)
2.1.1 Going Concern 211 BELSE

On December 31, 2017, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB913.6 million, which was mainly due to the
approaching maturity of the outstanding principal
plus accrued interest of the 2018 Notes in the
amount of US$188.0 million (equivalent to
RMB1,222.0 million). As described in Note 41, the
Company has repaid the outstanding balance and
accrued interests in relation to the 2018 Notes in
full upon its maturity on February 6, 2018. The
directors of the Company have taken measures
and are confident to obtain available sources of
long term funding from financial institutions in the
foreseeable future. Based on their assessment,
the Board of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that the Group has sufficient working
capital to enable it to repay its debts as and when
they fall due. The Group therefore continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following standards have been adopted
by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after January
1,2017:

o Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses — Amendments to
IAS 12; and

° Disclosure initiative — amendments to
IAS 7.

The adoption of these amendments did not
have any impact on the current period or any
prior period and is not likely to affect future
periods.

The amendments to IAS 7 require disclosure
of changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

2. EEETEE

BE ()

21 wRER(H)

212 Bt BRENRBEN2 S

(a)

EKEBE LRABFET A
EEKAIER

AEBE T —+F—
A—Bsz &GN
NG ER=PNe T O i
BIFEAE TR ERIF R
-

e BAERERRE
RIELERBEE
— B g £A
1258 W & 2
&

o WERE — BER
SETEERIE 7570
&2 o

RNZ S g M
ERA AT EZE B
PAFRER H R KM
ELERE-

RERTERIE 7R
ERBREERMELD
ELNAEEY -

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k

149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below:

(i) IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

The Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact
on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets given fair value
through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") election is available for the
equity instruments which are currently
classified as available-for-sale (“AFS").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR (8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

There will not be a significant impact
on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss. The
derecognition rules have been
transferred from IAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and have not been
changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new hedge accounting rules will
align the accounting for hedging
instruments more closely with the
Group's risk management practices.
As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for
hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based
approach. However, at this stage the
Group does not expect to identify any
new hedge relationships. It would
appear that the Group’s current hedge
relationships would qualify as
continuing hedges upon the adoption
of IFRS 9. Accordingly, the Group does
not expect a significant impact on the
accounting for its hedging relationships
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR (8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new impairment model requires
the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit
losses (ECL) rather than only incurred
credit losses as is the case under IAS
39. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at FVOCI,
contract assets under IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

IFRS 9 must be applied for financial
years commencing on or after 1
January 2018. Group does not intend
to adopt IFRS 9 before its mandatory
date. The Group does not expect this
new standard to have a material
impact to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i)

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) has issued a new
standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which
covers revenue arising from the sale of
goods and the rendering of services
and IAS 11 which covers construction
contracts.

The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is recognized
when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (Continued)

IFRS 15 is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after January
1, 2018. Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective
date. The Group intends to adopt the
standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the
adoption will be recognized in retained
earnings as of January 1, 2018 and
that comparatives will not be restated.
The Group does not expect this new
standard to have a material impact to
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, 'Leases’

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases
being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right
to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, ‘'Leases’ (Continued)

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating
leases. The Group has not yet
determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the
recognition of an asset and a liability
for future payments and how this will
affect the Group's profit and
classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be
covered by the exception for short-
term and low-value leases and some
commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under IFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (Continued)

The new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after
January 1, 2019. At this stage, the
Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC
interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZESTHRBE (&)

22 EHRFAT

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation 22166

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
IFRS.

160 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FRBEAREHEARE
HIERE LR (BRERT
IR EAEER/REZL
ERB T AYE A & E R AR
KEBAEOHAER W
BRRNEBHEHZTERE
W BN ERHRE - AEH
BIfEHIZ 88 - FRRAERE
HEREBREASEZBES
AR o FRBIFEZEIER
k2 B I A GFARR

(a) HBEHf

AEBEMABE AKX
BaEHAR BE—F
NEMEZENEE - B
PREREE Bl
TERFIBAEEN A
| RAKBERITHOR
AEmHAAEE
HENHERRAEY
EBRHEMELNEIMAE
EMBENARER-
EXBAMFTMEERR
PR E B DA P A
MEEMKBRAE &
FEAREREE BB
NRAEBEFE - A&EH
ZE B BELE - R
AR E 7 By () FE 4%
w1 - WEE T W
TR MR s DRI
BEREED  YH TR
BA—BBBREZLA
FEIEERBHFEE - 7]
BANRBEIRERE
BREEDEIEREES
ARRFEENERE
B PIMmEtE o FEHEHI
MERE R RO P A H AL A A
oW B R A T
BEE - RIFBERRM
765 30 5 2E R AR TE 6 7B A
Hinst 8EEHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTBEREEAE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued) 22 EHRFARE(E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 221 &6t (&)

(a) Business combinations (Continued) (a) ¥EBESOF(E)
Intra-group transactions, balances and SERAAZEBHR
unrealised gains on transactions between 5 BRERGHRE
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised WFNE FLAL$E - K&
losses are also eliminated unless the IBIBRIN T AEE - B
transaction provides evidence of an R SR FTEE A E
impairment of the transferred asset. When FUREREE o T2 AR
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries EHNEEERTEED
have been adjusted to conform with the R LAREREAAREE
Group's accounting policies. HRAMBERFFE — B o

(b) Changes in ownership interests in (b) FRAMEEEREE
subsidiaries without change of control BEE TS
Transactions with non-controlling interests 7 £5 (B B FE A ) 14
that do not result in a loss of control are ST TERLE
accounted for as equity transactions — that T HI R R P AR A
is, as transactions with the owners of the w5 — HEFRE
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The EENEEAAE
difference between fair value of any FHEITHRS - T
consideration paid and the relevant share HEREEHN AR EE
acquired of the carrying amount of net AR (L TR T A
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in R EERMEENE
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non- R AR - I
controlling interests are also recorded in I R Y R B Y RS
equity. INEeEk e o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZEEHBRAE (H)

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued) 22 SHERFAT(E)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 22188t (&)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries (c) HEFAF
When the Group ceases to have control any EEEBTBEEEAEE
retained interest in the entity is remeasured - EEEREARE
to its fair value at the date when control is HEEAETSEE
lost, with the change in carrying amount EFEEEAAEE
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is REEMNZFHTERT
the initial carrying amount for the purposes R AN BEAERR
of subsequently accounting for the retained BESNEEAERMS
interest as an associate, joint venture or R BRTEE @ 1A
financial asset. In addition, any amounts BN EREE
previously recognised in other Utoh - Z R E AR S
comprehensive income in respect of that g A R M (I 28R
entity are accounted for as if the Group had MNASEEERRE
directly disposed of the related assets or HEEEMBG - B8
liabilities. This may mean that amounts KEZRIEEAMERE U
previously recognised in other RS EEN D
comprehensive income are reclassified to HEE o
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements 222 BUGBBHRE

FRERERKAMGRRE
SRR - RABRRENEE
BB - FTRAIKEEH
AR AR B U e W B A A
B o

40 P A R 5B B IR BRI ER A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FIE RN ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

Eg%ﬁﬁ& ﬁg(nﬁ)

2.3 Associates 23 BEQT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investments in associates
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method' in the statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Company has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures and joint operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued) 24 SERH(E)
2.4.1 Joint ventures 241 88 01E

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the Group's share of the net fair
value of the joint venture's identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEITIE KM ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

Eggﬁﬁk ?ﬁg(nﬁ)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued) 24 SERHEGE)

2.4.2 Joint operations 242 HEKE

The Group's development and production
activities in the PRC are conducted, through its
subsidiaries, jointly with others through PSCs.

AEBEPEBBEFARE
EmoKAERTREMT K
RETHEREELS - &

These PSCs establish joint control over the SRFEKBEEREREELS
development and production activities. The assets B EE R o R EEEINIE

are not owned by a separate legal entity but are
controlled by individual participants in the PSCs.

MBI EAEEES M/
EmPKERMEALHSE

Each participant is entitled to a predetermined Pl o BRREEFEZ AN
share of the related output and bears an agreed MELELAEBEEN DT I
share of the costs. EERROEAKA o
The consolidated financial statements reflect: NE B RS Rk S bk -

° the Group's share of any assets used in the
joint operations;

° any liabilities that the Group incurred;

° the Group's share of any liabilities incurred

o AKERARNH
BENHE

£<<< AEA E’]

s AKRECDELAWIFA

&

e HHAREEMEHEME

jointly with the other PSC partners in relation mAKE RSEEEE
to the joint production; MERMEEAREERRN
(k=

o any income from the sale or use of the
Group's share of the output of the
production, together with its share of any
expenses incurred in the production; and

o any expense that the Group has incurred in
respect of its interests in the production.

s RAHEEXEMEMA
AEBDEORA - &
HBGEEMEENE
s - &

° AEBGERERE
AERERSZE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FIE RN ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollar (“US$"). The
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘finance income’ or
‘finance costs'.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the statement
of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposals of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposals of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposals of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposals involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposals involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposals involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposals that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZESHERREBE (&)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 T8BE - IREEE

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion, amortisation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised at the
field level based on the unit of production method. Unit
of production rates are based on oil and gas proved and
probable developed producing reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the current
terms of the respective production agreements. The
Group's reserves estimates represent crude oil and gas
which management believes can be reasonably
produced within the current terms of their production
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 26 TBE- - ITREEE(E)

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings and improvements 7-10 years

Office equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles and production 10 years
equipment

Facility turnarounds 4-6 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other (losses)/gains, net' in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZEEHBRAE (H)

27 WK FEEENHREE

2.7 Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities. Under
this method, all costs for development wells, supporting
equipment and facilities, and proved mineral interests in
oil and gas properties are capitalised. Geological and
geophysical costs are expensed when incurred. Costs
of exploratory wells (including certain geophysical costs
which are directly attributable to the drilling of these
wells) are capitalised as exploration and evaluation
assets pending determination of whether the wells find
proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil and natural gas
which geological and engineering data demonstrate
with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs as of the
date the estimate is made. Prices include consideration
of changes in existing prices provided only by
contractual arrangements, but not on escalations based
upon future conditions.

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditures are evaluated for economic viability within
one year of completion of drilling. The related well costs
are expensed as dry holes if it is determined that such
economic viability is not attained. Otherwise, the related
well costs are reclassified to oil and gas properties and
subject to impairment review. For exploratory wells that
are found to have economically viable reserves in areas
where major capital expenditure will be required before
production can commence, the related well costs
remain capitalised only if additional drilling is under way
or firmly planned. Otherwise the related well costs are
expensed as dry holes. The Group does not have any
costs of unproved properties capitalised in oil and gas
properties. Expired lease costs are expensed as part of
exploration and evaluation expense as they occur.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Exploration and evaluation expenditure
(Continued)

Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognised
as assets at their fair value, as determined by the
requirements of business combinations. Exploration and
evaluation expenditure incurred subsequent to the
acquisition of an exploration asset in a business
combination is accounted for in accordance with the
policy outlined above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, mineral
extraction rights, mining rights and goodwvill.

(a) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of three years.

(b) Mineral extraction and mining rights

Mineral extraction rights and mining rights are
amortised based on the unit of production
method.

Unit of production rates are based on oil and gas
proved and probable reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the
current terms of the respective production
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR R (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR AT ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal at each
reporting date.

2.10 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and

discontinued operation

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The disposal group, are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates), which are classified as
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note
2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR R (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and
discontinued operation (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-tax
profit or loss of the discontinued operations and the
post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposals of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operations.

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZESTHRBE (&)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

211 ERMEEE)

2111 28 (&)

(b) Loans and receivables (b) EFREWKES
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ERRERERAEEE
financial assets with fixed or determinable TE 2K Al g FE A B RE BLOR
payments that are not quoted in an active BHERTS LRED
market. They are included in current assets, EVTESTREE - hE
except for the amounts that are settled or HEREERDEE
excepted to be settled more than 12 months A BT ER R R B
after the end of the reporting period. These RBFHEBEBI1218 A &
are classified as non-current assets. The EHEnEE - Bl A E
Group's loans and receivables comprise REEE  -ANEENE
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and NN FE U BR 20 B A% ik
cash equivalents’ in the statement of SR [ FE U BR 3R & H Ath
financial position. K] BE e R
SEEW ] AR -
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (c) HERHELHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non- Al E S RE EAK

derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
211 S REE (EF)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

2112 BT E

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivable are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the 'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in profit or
loss within ‘Other gains, net’' in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains,
net’ when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
profit or loss as ‘Other gains, net'.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as part of ‘Other (losses)/gains,
net'. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss as part
of ‘Other (losses)/gains, net" when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset'’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan or held- to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZEEHBRAE (H)

213 TRMEERE (&)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale
(Continued)

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The Group has not designated any derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss with ‘Other
(losses)/gains, net'.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are crude oil and materials and supplies
which are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Materials and supplies costs are determined
using the first-in first-out method. Crude oil costs are
determined using the weighted average cost method.
The cost of crude oil comprises direct labour,
depreciation, other direct costs and related production
overhead, but excludes borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Trade and other receivables 2.16 FE X BR =X K2 H 1th FE UL =X

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
oil and gas and other petroleum products sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks or other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZESHERREBE (&)

2.18 Share capital (Continued) 2.18 [ A (48)

Where any group company purchases the Company's
equity share capital (shares held in trust), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to owners of the Company until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company'’s equity holders.

Where the company’s shares are acquired from the
market by trust under the employee share scheme, the
total consideration of shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable incremental costs) is
presented as shares held for employee share scheme
and deducted from total equity. Upon vesting, the
related costs of the vested shares for employee share
scheme purchased from the market are credited to
shares held for employee share scheme, with a
corresponding decrease in employee share-based
compensation reserve for employee share scheme.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, and deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.

2. EEE

219 B

(ii)

FTBREE ()

HIRIRSE AR5 % (&)
B FRS ()

REEE (&)

BEIEFEREEERRALE
B 7R SR8 SR A A B M ke A]

EREREZEMESR -

SEEE

BIERIER F QA - B

RAEERHEENERLEE
RERECEMEHEE B
DB AR E A DAE I
1 2= B 00 88 (3] B ) DA B B B
MERAERERAGRRAGE
TEEOHRTEHSHEE

i /NI

IR AR

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k

Bame s s
A RO AT AR B M R
RELRBHEE  BERAR
RERMEZRRATEERR
BE - YERTEHNERBF

187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 EMRIEAE RS S ()

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZESHERREBE (&)

2.21 Borrowing costs 2.21 R A

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from th'e
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.22 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Provisions 2.23 &

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Asset retirement obligations (including future
decommissioning and restoration) which meet the
criteria of provisions are recognised as provisions and
the amount recognised is the present value of the
estimated future expenditure determined in accordance
with local conditions and requirements, while a
corresponding addition to the related oil and gas
properties of an amount equivalent to the provision is
also created. This is subsequently depleted as part of
the costs of the oil and gas properties. Interest
expenses from the assets retirement obligations for
each period are recognised with the effective interest
method during the useful life of the related oil and gas
properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan

The Group has various defined contribution plans
for state pensions, housing fund and other social
obligations in accordance with the local conditions
in the PRC and practices in the municipalities and
province in which they operate. A defined
contribution plan is a pension and/or other social
benefits plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and
will have no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits
relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-retirement
healthcare benefits to their retirees. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional
on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum
service period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit pension
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to their present
value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

(i)

Employee stock option

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specific period of
time).

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in advance
of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes
of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period
and grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEETBERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Share-based payments (Continued) 2.25 U B AERO I (F)
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment (a) UEREHENBROME (&)

transactions (Continued)

(i) Employee stock option (Continued) (i) EITRZEZE# (&)

At the end of each reporting period, the EFEREER - K&
Group revises its estimates of the number & (< 15 FE T 35 R IR AR
of options that are expected to vest based TSR MHERT BB TR B ]
on the non-marketing performance and TREMEEZSE OE
service conditions. It recognises the impact e RIEZPERER
of the revision to original estimates, if any, HEBII(NE) B
in profit or loss, with a corresponding 2 WHERELERE
adjustment to equity. FHEE o

When the options are exercised, the shares EHIREITERS - RIEB
under exercise are transferred from trust THRHETE - 2178
under employee share scheme to fetrimiBETEEE s
employees. The proceeds received net of BT RNRAETH
any directly attributable transaction costs are % o W ERAY BT 1S SRR
credited to share premium. EREEHFBRZHKA

BEARARE -

(ii) Share award scheme (i) B EB:E
The fair value of shares granted to ERDEE M2
employees for nil consideration under stock T UZEHERTEL
incentive compensation plan is recognised MR EZER AR BEER
as an expense over the relevant service A R TS B A R R R
period, being the year to which the bonus ER BEREREEE
relates and the vesting period of the shares. S HEENFEMKRGTT
The fair value is measured at the grant date HEREIE - ERHOE T
of the shares and is recognised in equity in B BRPUAAREBER
the share-based payment reserve. The 2 AfEEm RN
number of shares expected to vest is f& 1D B ERE N T A
estimated based on the non-market vesting B - TEERTTREM R D
conditions. The estimates are revised at the N ERIBEIERFT S
end of each reporting period and KT TREAG 1Tl AT ©
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss TE &8 3 &5 HA M) BR R
and the share-based payment reserve. {HEtEITIEIE - AR
TR AR B = A LA
NAEERRNZT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEITIE KM ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cash-settled share-based compensation

Compensation under the stock appreciation rights
is measured based on the fair value of the liability
incurred and is expensed over the vesting period.
The liability is remeasured at each reporting period
to its fair value until settlement with all the
changes in liability related to the vested portion
recorded as employee benefit expense in profit or
loss, the related liability is included in the salaries
and welfare payable.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

Social security contributions on share options
gains

The social security contributions payable in
connection with the grant of the share options is
considered an integral part of the grant itself, and
the charge will be treated as a cash-settled
transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition 2.26 W ATRRR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods, and retains
neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective
control over the goods sold, and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group and related revenue and cost can be
measured reliably.

With respect to the Group's operation under PSC,
revenues are recognised upon delivery of crude oil that
are allocated to the Group under the relevant PSCs
(Note 9) and other conditions discussed above are met.

2.27 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
and receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.29 Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses
in the year in which they are incurred.

2.30 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR AT ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.31 Dividend distributions

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.

2.32 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors
of the Company (Note 5).

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures, but hedge accounting had not been applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BERER(E)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Risk management is carried out by the Company
headquarter financial department (“Group Finance
Team") on a regular basis under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Finance Team identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollar (US$),
Canadian Dollar (“C$") and Hong Kong
Dollar (HK$). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.
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RMB is not a freely convertible currency and ARG IEABE REHR
is regulated by the PRC government. B B I TE

Limitation in foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could
cause future exchange rates to vary
significantly from current or historical
exchange rates. Management is not in a
position to anticipate changes in the PRC

B o PRI EIMNER
5 PR E RO R 1 7T BE 28
BUR HANE K B HAE X
HELERBHELE
R - EREREE
AR BISMNER B B

foreign exchange regulations and as such is A S IR (L5 iR HAE
unable to reasonably anticipate the impacts KRB N [ 4

on the Group’s results of operations or
financial position arising from future changes
in exchange rates.

BRP IR E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BKERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THEEB (&)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMERE(E)
The Group has certain investments in REBERBETHEING

foreign operations, whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation risk.

BRE - LFAEAE
SMESTHER - A

Currency exposure arising from the net EESRINEEFEEM
assets of the Group's foreign operations is EEMEXRRR =2
managed primarily through borrowings FiE AR INE ST ER

denominated in the relevant foreign
currencies.

At December 31, 2017, if US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 1% against the
HK$ with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year ended
December 31, 2017 would have been
RMB4.0 million higher/lower respectively,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of HK$-denominated
borrowings.

fERRERE

RZZE—tF+=A8
=+—8 " WETEE
W EF{E1% " T
FFEHEMEREFT
B AXKEERHESF
[EHBR BT{S FR B A B
A AREE4.0
BEL TEHRIME
LAV B s HE R TR E A&
HNEW =, EIBATER ©

The stated changes represent management’s P ERERTERE
assessment of reasonably possible changes HEzT—EEEAE
in foreign exchange rates over the period until KBFEIINESEE L
the next annual balance sheet date. The AT MEEELE B AT
analysis is performed on the same basis for HEMEARIREFE
the years presented. — -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings, including bank loans and senior
notes payable. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held
at variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. During 2017, the borrowings were
at fixed rate, denominated in US$ and HKS,
the borrowings were at floated rate,
denominated in C$.

The Group analyses its interest rate
exposure on a dynamic basis. Various
scenarios are simulated taking into
consideration refinancing, renewal of
existing positions, alternative financing and
hedging. Based on these scenarios, the
Group calculates the impact on profit and
loss of a defined interest rate shift. For each
simulation, the same interest rate shift is
used for all currencies. The scenarios are run
only for liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.

The Group has no material interest bearing
cash assets. The Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of the changes in market rates.
The Group's interest rates risk arises from
borrowings. A detailed analysis of the
Group's borrowings, together with their
respective effective interest rates and
maturity dates, are included in Note 26.

3. MBEREE(E)

3.1 BEEREZE(E)
(a) TR (&)
(ii) A REEFERRE

A& B B A R [E g 2R B
B BIERITERM
JERHBEZIE - LAFE)
FEEENERTARE
B AR IR 2 R A X E
% AR SHER
B ¥ BN R IR & 7 T
HiH - ABEMRERS
MERSAKREAZA
REBEMXRER - - R
Z—+FR - BEMEX
B fERRIASETT ~ INEEIA
NABEREN 28
KR ERAINE B
fif °

REBASREER DT
HF =R o AEEH
RZERE T2 - PAG
ABRE BEREN
BRT - EMbRIERA AR
BEMEH - RIFWET
o AKEFEREN
KEB Y BME RN
TE-NEEEHT
= EERYRAR
—HMRER ot TG
TRABRANEEFE
FEWAEL-

AEBEWEBERFEE
E o ANEER WA RLE
EREREANH LB
RIS H R EE) - K
SENFERBREER
&3 - BN KEER
MFAOMEREER
BERMNERBIEA - 5
KL 26
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BKERER(E)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Oil and natural gas price risk

(a)

% E k()

(iii) B E A KA A6 LB

The Group is engaged in crude oil and AREBNERAMKA
natural gas development, production and RA%E - EEREE -
selling activities. Prices of crude oil and JRIRFIRARBAE A

natural gas are affected by both domestic
and global factors which are beyond the
control of the Group. The fluctuations in
such prices may have favourable or
unfavourable impacts to the Group.

SEEXRZEHNEZ R
NBERREZE - Lt
EBRRB A e HAEE
BRAMIANZE -
F Itk - AN [ T R R

Therefore the Group was exposed to general MRATAARE(EIR K ED
price fluctuations of crude oil and natural e 70
gas.

(b) Credit risk (b) ERER

As the majority of the cash at bank balance is
placed with PRC state-owned banks and major
financial institutions, the directors of the Company
are of their opinion that the corresponding credit
risk is relatively low. Therefore, credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables and risk
management contracts. The Group has controls in
place to assess the credit quality of its customers
and closely monitor significant counterparties and
dealing with a broad section of partner’s that
diversify risk within the sector. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, amounts due from related parties and
trade and other receivables and risk management
contracts included in the consolidated statements
of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk. At December
31, 2017 and 2016, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk for its cash and cash
equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Group has one customer in China and customers
and joint operation partners concentrated within
western Canada which in aggregate accounts for
79.1% (2016: 97.3%) of the Group’s revenue and
as such, has concentration of credit risk for its
trade and other receivables. However, the Group
regards it as low risk as the customer in China is
PetroChina Company Limited (“PetroChina”) , a
PRC state-owned enterprise with high credit
rating in China, and the customers in Canada are
mainly from major marketing companies who
have credit ratings which are deemed acceptable.

Liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit
facilities.

3. MBEREE(E)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(b)

(c)

M

= ARk ()

BHEz_ZT—+tF+ A8
=+—HIEFE AEEH
W EZREFEHME —F
PRMEHRRMNERBEITHE
FPMARKEGEE - B5F
Wz 8915 AN & B &= B
791%( = & — KX F:
97.3%) + A I 7N & B HY JE UL
FEMEBERFTEEES
FERE - A ARAREE
EHREMNE-—EFAEEES
EEFHANRECEFRRHA
MRARROBRAR (AT
T [PAaHm]) - mineEXs
EFEFZRRNERFTAR
FHEZEH AR BEREA
SERAEEEFTRBRERIE -

BN R R

AEENRBERREEE
REFEANREEASSE
EBYARMKSEFT BN E AGH
FEREREFNIRER
HE -

EEORBERREEERE
e RekReEE
Y BBRANEAGHEE
MEBREFARES N
REEMHERHAENEN - A
RABEERBHEEHEE - K
SEEEABEAREER
BHFESHERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group Finance Team monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group's liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs through:
(i) maintaining flexibility by placing reliance
primarily on external borrowings; (ii) periodically
evaluating banking facilities position and
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities; (iii) compliance
with borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities — for example: fixed charge
coverage ratio, limitation on restricted payments,
limitation on liens and asset sales, etc. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group's
debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal balance sheet ratio
targets.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period
to their contractual maturity dates. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of principal amount and
interests.
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3. MBEREE(E)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BKEREZE(E)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) () FENVERBS (&)
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
DR—F —-ZEWF —ZEE AFLE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

At December 31, 2017 RZE—+&

T=A=1+-H
Borrowings B 1,531,078 3,112,223 1,572,189 -
Interest payables on ERFE
borrowings 443,575 218,839 51,850 -
Trade and notes payable ERRZ R ENZE 392,984 26,529 - -
Provisions, accruals and - BREEM
other liabilities B 660,702 - - 2,567,526
At December 31, 2016 RZZB-RF
t=A=t-8
Borrowings A 104,000 1,387,400 3,302,012 =
Interest payables on RS
borrowings 344,349 257,320 78,875 -
Trade and notes payable  JENEEZ R EN Zi& 74,196 14,161 = =
Provisions, accruals and £ BREEM
other liabilities afE 202,640 - - 15,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BKERER(E)

3.2 Capital management

32 BEXER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. EBITDA is
determined as continuing operation income before
finance income, finance cost, income tax and
depreciation, depletion and amortisation.

The Debt over EBITDA ratios at December 31, 2017 and
2016 were as follows:

AEBNEREBRER - RRER
SEERHELE  UARKRRIRME
HMREAM N SRR E R
R R ENE A EBBEE
NS PN

AEBNUNBEEHEHAEERT
(AT ES78 [EBITDA) Lt R A £
BEMMHEAN - BHEENEREEE
(BIEA BB KRR [
BRIERBER]) - EBITDAF R
BREIFSA - IEER - FTEHR -
E - MREREEINFECET
A e

RZE—+FR-_FT—"F+=-A
=+ —BHEKLTEEEBITDAK
LB F AT -

2017 2016
—E—tF ZEXF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T AREFIT
Total borrowings (Note 26) BB EE (3% 26) 6,049,468 4,690,555
Loss before income tax from TR B R EH
continuing operation K Fr15%7 Bl & 1a (1,012,296) (457,981)
Finance income (Note 29) BAFSUR A (M5 29) (49,248) (17,490)
Finance cost (Note 29) B E B (H5E29) 187,997 403,951
Depreciation, depletion and WE - iR
amortisation 489,863 363,860
EBITDA EBITDA (383,684) 292,340
Debt over EBITDA ratio BEI54EZEE EBITDAM LR (15.8) 16.0

The Debt over EBITDA ratio decreased from positive 16
to negative 15.8 was mainly due to the increase in the
loss by Group for the year ended December 31, 2017
as compared to December 31, 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial assets and liabilities

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at December
31, 2017 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

3. MBEREE(E)

33 &

REEMGE

ERMEENTHEAE

(i)

RAAEEER

TERBBEETFIHEAALEED
iy (B BT R BT IE AR B A 8 A
WER DT AEER=F
—tF+=-A=+—8%2
AEEAENESMIA--&E
g AR AR BEERE
HAMTN=]E :

o AREERABEEE
451 98 (B (R 3B
2 (E—) -

o BT E-EMBRENR
BN ZBEMAEBD
AERMEMmEA A
AEE BIFIaER) 5
Mz (REER) (5
ZfE) -

s AEMAMWIERET
BRTSBENE A
(BIERIER SR & A) (2
=) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3. MBEREE(E)

33

D AEEMGE ()
CREENSHAE (A

(i) RREEERE)

The following table presents the Group's financial TRENAREFBR -_ZE—+
assets that are measured at fair value at F+-_A=1+—BUARE
December 31, 2017. B ENERMEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%-E 5-FE F=E @zt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®Tr AR%®TRT AR%®TR
Assets BE
As at December 31, 2017 RZE—+4
+=A=t+-A
Available-for-sale financial assets: [t HELREE :
— Equity investments (Note 12)  — 25384 (Ff:E12) 111,507 - 61,768 173,275
— Debt investments (Note 12)  — ESIZE (fizF12) - - 5,085 5,085
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4@ T A
— MAST index Linked — BEMESREN
investment (Note 13) % & (F15513) - 293,798 - 293,798
— Commodity swaps contracts ~— EIREHRAR
(Note 13) (FizE13) - 74,617 - 74,617
111,507 368,415 66,853 546,775
Liabilities BE
As at December 31, 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=1-8

Financial liabilities at fair value ~ LAAABEE 2 B EEH
through profit or loss (Note 14)  StABEIEZRNSRERE

(MizE14)
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 £/ T A
— Commodity swaps contracts ~ — AR EHEAR
(Note 13) (Mi7E13)

- 1,067,626 1,067,626

14,774 - 14,774

14,774 1,067,626 1,082,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i)

3. MBEREE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AAEEME (E)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) tREENEREE (E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) AR EEERGE)
The following table presents the Group's financial TRENREFBR-Z— X
assets that are measured at fair value at FH+_A=1+—"HUAIAE
December 31, 2016. BifE2MEemEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—E F_E F-E st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFT AR®FT ARETR
Assets BE
As at December 31, 2016 RZE—REF
+-A=1-H
Available-for-sale financial assets: A/t HESREE -
— Equity investments — R 15,685 - 42,246 57,931
— Debt investments — EBRE = = 5,399 5,399
Derivative financial instruments T4 4@ T A
— MAST index Linked — BEMIEEIREN
investment BE - 90,325 = 90,325
15,685 90,325 47 645 153,655
Liabilities BE
As at December 31, 2016 R-ZE—RF
+-A=t+-8
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£$BTE
— Oil options — [Rom = 20,576 = 20,576
- 20,576 - 20,576

There were no transfers b
and level 3 during the year.

etween level 1, level 2

RERFEFE—ER F_B
BARE=EH Bk -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BKERER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREBEMES(E)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

TRHEENSREE (H)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Financial instruments in Level 1

(i) RREEERE)

(a) @) HEE—ERNSHIA
The fair value of financial instruments traded EERMIZRRI50NE
in active markets is based on quoted market BT AEMRESHRHA
prices at the end of reporting period. A REERE IRV TSR
market is regarded as active if quoted prices B MmSRESINE
are readily and regularly available from an B SAT - &58HH
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, LA TTEHE T
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and 1B AR 75 #1585 BX BE 5 1
those prices represent actual and regularly S AZEBRERE
occurring market transactions on an arm's MGREBEREENT
length basis. The quoted market price used HR5 - AZMERE
for financial assets held by the Group is the RS - AEEEFE
closing price as at December 31, 2017. HemEEMERNT
These instruments are included in level 1, BHREII _ZE—+F
and represent equity investments listed on +-A=+—HrHUE
NYSE, which are classified as available-for- B -E2LemT AAR
sale. MRET ET A E SR

B pEAIMHEE -
GERE—ER -

(b)  Financial instruments in Level 2 b) EFE-_EBANSEITA
The fair value of financial instruments that BREEERMBEER
are not traded in an active market (for S rt T A (B 5N T
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is ETHEANAREEF

determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation technigues maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BERER(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3 AREEME (E)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

TRHEENSREE (H)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) AAEEERE)

(c)  Financial instruments in level 3 ) HEE="ErNHSHIA
With respect to the level 3 fair value HRALENL AR EBEAE
measurement for the Group's financial FTEMESRMEEFRIUE
assets at fair value that are unlisted equity —EBARBEERER
investments and debt investments with no REEMNIS  AEE
active market exists, the Group's finance FEETHESKREME
department benchmark to the market price FEIGE - EERTIER
of certain comparable listed companies T AREEFSIHMAE
within the same or similar operation/industry HHZE THER AR
and apply certain adjustments/discount for 7%/ EEEANA
non-marketability. At December 31, 2017, FHRARIKNTE S TE
the directors of the Company are of their EEmiZr R S MHED
opinion that there is a wide range of possible BERARE g - N=
fair value measurements and cost E—t+FF+A=1—
represents the best estimate of fair value B ARBIEFERAE
within that range. AR AR BEGTE

—ERKER - EItE
MAKARAIREEAR
EEMEIEMET °

(ii)  Valuation techniques used to determine fair (i) AUFELIALBENEES

values i

Specific valuation techniques used to value AUEESRTENEER

financial instruments include: ERfTeE :

the use of quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments

the fair value of the remaining financial
instruments is determined using discounted
cash flow analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Estimation of proved and probable reserves

Proved reserves are those quantities of petroleum
that by analysis of geoscience and engineering
data can be estimated with reasonable certainty
to be commercially recoverable, from a given date
forward, from known reservoirs and under defined
economic conditions, operating methods, and
government regulations. Economic conditions
include consideration of changes in existing prices
provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.
Proved developed producing reserves are
expected to be recovered from completion
intervals that are open and producing at the time
of the estimate. Proved undeveloped reserves are
quantities expected to be recovered through
future investments: from new wells on undrilled
acreage in known accumulations, from extending
existing wells to a different (but known) reservoir,
or from infill wells that will increase recovery.
Probable reserves are additional reserves that are
less certain to be recovered than proved reserves
but which, together with proved reserves, are as
likely to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

The Group's reserve estimates were prepared for
each oilfield and include only reserves that the
Group believes can be reasonably produced within
current economic and operating conditions.

Proved and probable reserves cannot be
measured exactly. Reserve estimates are based
on many factors related to reservoir performance
that require evaluation by the engineers
interpreting the available data, as well as price and
other economic factors. The reliability of these
estimates at any point in time depends on both
the quality and quantity of the technical and
economic data, and the production performance
of the reservoirs as well as engineering
judgement. Consequently, reserve estimates are
subject to revision as additional data become
available during the producing life of a reservoir.
When a commercial reservoir is discovered,
proved reserves are initially determined based on
limited data from the first well or wells.
Subsequent data may better define the extent of
the reservoir and additional production
performance. Well tests and engineering studies
will likely improve the reliability of the reserve
estimate. The evolution of technology may also
result in the application of improved recovery
techniques such as supplemental or enhanced
recovery projects, or both, which have the
potential to increase reserves beyond those
envisioned during the early years of a reservoir’s
producing life.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

In general, changes in the technical maturity of
reserves resulting from new information
becoming available from development and
production activities and change in oil and gas
price have tended to be the most significant cause
of annual revisions.

Depletion, depreciation and amortisation of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

In addition to the depletion, depreciation and
amortisation of oil and gas properties, mining
extraction and mining rights using the unit of
production method (Notes 2.6 and 2.7) based on
the estimated reserves as disclosed in Note 4.1(i),
management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
and amortisation charges for other property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions, or
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations according to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of intangible assets.

Management will adjust the estimated useful lives
where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on
existing knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial year that are different from
assumptions could require material adjustments
to the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iii)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and
gas properties, and intangible assets are reviewed
for possible impairments when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to
whether and how much an asset is impaired
involve management estimates and judgements
such as forecast crude oil prices, forecast
production volumes, forecast operating costs and
capital expenditures and discount rates. However,
the impairment reviews and calculations are
based on assumptions that are consistent with
the Group’s business plans. Favourable changes
to some assumptions may allow the Group to
avoid the need to impair any assets in these
years, whereas unfavourable changes may cause
the assets to become impaired.

4. BARSEHETRHE (&)

4.1 BIREFHAFRER(E)

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

Provision for remediation and restoration

Provision for remediation and restoration included
environmental remediation costs, assets
retirements obligation and similar obligation in
relation to the Group’s operations. Provision is
made when the related environmental disturbance
and present obligations occur, based on the net
present value of estimated future costs. The
ultimate cost of environmental disturbances, asset
retirement and similar obligation are uncertain and
management uses its judgment and experience to
provide for these costs over the life of operations.
Cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors including changes to the relevant legal
requirements, the Group's related policies, the
emergence of new restoration techniques and the
effects of inflation. Cost estimates are updated
throughout the life of the operation. The expected
timing of expenditure included in cost estimates
can also change, for example in response to
changes in reserves, or production volumes or
economic conditions. Expenditure may occur
before and after closure and can continue for an
extended period of time depending on the specific
site requirements. Cash flows must be discounted
if this has a material effect. The selection of
appropriate sources on which to base calculation
of the risk free discount rate used for this purpose
also requires judgment. As a result of all of the
above factors there could be significant
adjustments to the provision for close down,
restoration and clean-up costs which would affect
future financial results.
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4.1 BRETHAFRER(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Provision for remediation and restoration

The Group currently operates mainly in PRC and
Canada. The outcome of environmental and other
similar obligations under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot reasonably be
estimated at present, and could be material.
Under existing legislation, however, the directors
of the Company are in their opinion that there are
no probable liabilities that are in addition to
amounts which have already been reflected in the
financial statements that will have a materially
adverse effect on the financial position of the
Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is still
subject to finalisation. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.
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4.1 BIREFHAFRER(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(vi)

Purchase price allocation for business
combination

Accounting for business acquisitions requires the
Group to allocate the cost of the acquisition to the
specific assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their estimated fair values at the date of
acquisition. In connection with the acquisition of
the Group, management undertakes a process to
identify all assets and liabilities acquired, including
any identified intangible assets where appropriate.
The judgments made in identifying all acquired
assets, determining the estimated fair value
assigned to each class of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, as well as assets useful lives,
may materially impact the Group’'s financial
position and results of operation. In determining
the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, a valuation was conducted
by an independent valuer and estimated fair
values are based on information available near the
acquisition date and on expectations and
assumptions that have been deemed reasonable
by management.
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4.1 BRETHAFRER(E)
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ISR R (8)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors of the
Company that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business performance
of the Group from a geographic perspective being the PRC
and North America. The PRC segment derives its revenue
substantially from the sale of oil. Revenue is realized from the
sale of the Group’s share of crude oil to PetroChina pursuant
to respective PSCs (Note 9).The North America segment
derives its revenue from the sale of oil and natural gas in
Canada, and the sale of shale oil and gas through working
interest in the Niobrara asset in the USA and its share of
profit from the investment in associate in Canada.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s operating
result.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SIEE(HE)

The segment information provided to the Board of Directors
for the reportable segments for the year ended December

HE-_T—+tF+_A=1+—HIEFE
MESSRENKEDEEEMT

31, 2017 is as follows:

North Corporate
PRC America and others Total
HE k% BEREf @t
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBT
Segment revenue pakill 6 657,365 468,617 - 1,125,982
Depreciation, depletion and WE - mEREE
amortisation (349,853) (139,829) (181) (489,863)
Exploration and evaluation expense ~ EIERFELERBER - (10,737) - (10,737)
Taxes other than income taxes I (PEHERIN
(Note 28) (st 28) (35579) - (10,635) (14,214)
Employee benefit expense BTHMKA (65,721) (87,886) (52,903) (206,510)
Purchases, services and RE - RER
other direct costs EMEER R (98,398) (202,037) - (300,435)
Distribution expense HEX M (17,055) (38,634) - (55,689)
General and administrative expense B2 EH (20,426) (69,261) (81,330) (171,017)
Impairment charges BERERK (2,000) - (33,524) (35,524)
Other (losses)/gains , net Hiv(1B%) Wizs %A (78,290) 53,521 (627,748) (652,517)
Finance income BB 366 1,284 47,598 49,248
Finance costs BBER (57,618) (149,771) 19,392 (187,997)
Share of losses of investments in ZEBECEREN
associates B - (63,023) - (63,023)
Loss before income tax WA B AEE (35,209) (237,756) (739,331) (1,012,296)
Income tax (expensel/credit FEH (BR), s (105,267) 18,303 (216) (87,180)
Loss for the year rEEE (140,476) (219,453) (739,547) (1,099,476)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZSEEE(HE)
The segment information provided to the Board of Directors HE_ZE—+F+-_A=+—HIEE
for the reportable segments for the year ended December FEESRENEEDBEELT(E) :
31, 2017 is as follows (Continued):
North Corporate
PRC America and others Total
HE % AR EM @t
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR®ETR AR¥ETR
Total assets BEQAE 1,991,778 1,375,871 1,940,694 11,308,343
Total assets includes: BEGABOE:
Property, plant and equipment THE  THRRE 1,788,647 5,930,102 1,110 7,719,859
Intangible assets B EE 3,047 705,146 - 708,193
Investments in associates Batzfg - 182,541 - 182,541
Additions to non-current assets EnRBEEEM (617,851) 6,629,195 (99) 6,011,245
Total liabilities EEAE 1,160,834 6,354,276 4,061,694 11,576,804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEEE(E)
The segment information provided to the Board of Directors BE_ZT—XRFt+-A=1t—RBIEE
for the reportable segments for the year ended December AMESSREAKSE DS

31, 2016 is as follows:

North Corporate

PRC Kazakhstan America and others Total
HE RERIE tE BBkt FEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETR ARRTT ARBTT ARETR

From continuing operations  FRIFERE

Segment revenue pak 530,908 - 4,066 = 534,974
Depreciation, depletion and WE - mHEREH

amortisation (360,141) - (3,258) (4671) (363,860)
Taxes other than income taxes  HI& (FTEH KM

(Note 28) (P3E 28) (2,935) - - (10479) (13,414)
Employee benefit expense ETHMBA (65,683) - 2,019) (65,589) (133,291)
Purchases, services and R R REM

other direct costs BB (102,017) - (3,556) - (105,573)
Distribution expense HEX (18,172) - - - (18,172)
General and administrative EEER

expense (20,495) = (2,687) (44,484) (67,666)
Impairment charges BERBEREK (150,245) - (3,083) (81,339) (234,667)
Other (losses)/gains , net Efh (%), W - FE (133,952) - (6,188) 437,989 297,849
Finance income BB 700 = 3277 13,613 17,490
Finance costs B5EH (24,724) - (43) (379,184) (403,951)
Share of profits of investments ~ ZEE & MPEREH)

in associates FEinE = = 35,682 - 35,682
Share of losses of investments ~ ZHAZREREH

in joint venture BEhE = = - (3,382) (3.382)
(Loss)/profit before income tax FRFTEBIAT (1) /i3 (346,756) - 22,191 (133,416) (457,981)
Income tax expense FERER (29,503) - (52) (117,611) (147,166)
(Loss)/profit for the year from ~ REFFELEETE

continuing operations (B#8),/ W (376,259) - 22,139 (261,027) (605,147)
From discontinued operations BRI &%
Loss for the year from RELIHESREER

discontinued operations - (717,086) = = (717,086)
(Loss)/profit for the year RE(FR) /8 (376,259) (717,086) 22,139 (251,027)  (1,322,233)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZEEE (&)

The segment information provided to the Board of Directors
for the reportable segments for the year ended December FEESSRENKESHEEWNT(E) :
31, 2016 is as follows (Continued):

North Corporate
PRC America and others Total
H Bl BERAM FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARBTT ARETTT ARETTT

Total assets EEAR 2,998,635 9,750 2,839,243 5,847,628
Total assets includes: BEGABOE:

Property, plant and equipment THE  THRRE 2,400,696 6,053 1,209 2,407,958
Intangible assets BREE 8,849 - - 8,849
Investments in associates BErERE - 246,667 - 246,667
Additions to non-current assets EREBEEM 531 1,393 14 1,988
Total liabilities BEME 303,611 3,972 4,900,258 5,207,841

All segment information above re-presented segment results
after elimination of inter-segment transactions, which
primarily include interest income or expense from intra-group
accounts and loans.

The revenue reported to the Board of Directors is measured
consistently with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The amounts provided to the Board
of Directors with respect to total assets and total liabilities are
measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the
physical location of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Entity-wide information

Analysis of revenue by category
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2017 2016
—E—tF ZT-KRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Sales of oil and gas SHE Rl R RAR 1,077,965 524,331
Provision of services AR 48,017 10,643
1,125,982 534,974

For the year ended December 31, 2017, total revenue from
crude oil sales in the PRC amounting to RMB652.2 million
(2016: RMB519.6 million) are derived solely from PetroChina.
Crude oil sales revenues from PetroChina accounted for
57.9% (2016: 97.1%) of the Group's total revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6. THE  IHERE

Vehicles, office,
production
Exploration equipment
and evaluation Oiland gas  Buildings and and  Construction
assets properties  improvements turnarounds in progress Total
"B RAE
BRR R £ERE
FEEE HREE  BEURRE RAERE EEBIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Year ended December 31, BE-8-XE
2016 +TZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 90,658 4,781,034 22,573 44,661 694,750 5,633,576
Exchange differences EHER 9,993 102,433 702 838 33,625 147,591
Additions #0 11,527 6,698 159 1,237 60,616 80,237
Disposals RE = - - (344) - (344)
Reclassification EL] - - - - (134,030) (134,030)
Disposals of subsidiaries REFAA (215,833) (1,652,241) (11,568) (12,337) (601,029) (2,493,008)
Transfers B 103,755 (72,400) - - (31,355) -
Depreciation charge HEER = (492,251) (3,307) (9,265) = (504,823)
Impairment charge FEBX
— Continued operations —RiEaE - (153,288) - - - (153,288)
— Discontinued operations — R g - (161,510) - - (6,443) (167,953)
Closing net book amount FREREE - 2,368,475 8,659 24,790 16,134 2,407,958
At December 31, 2016 RZB-RE
t=Az1-8
Cost KA = 8,819,467 10,375 74,582 33,146 8,937,570
Accumulated depreciation REERAE
and impairment = (6,460,992) (1,816) (49,792) (17,012) (6,529,612)
Net book amount REFE - 2,358,475 8,559 24,790 16,134 2,407,958
Yearended December 31,  BZ=B—+#
2017 TZA=T-HLEE
Opening net book amount EREFE - 2,358,475 8,559 24,790 16,134 2,407,958
Exchange differences BRER (23,684) (137,110) - (3,096) - (163,890)
Additions b 8,275 12,047 - 18,822 45,654 84,798
Acquisition through business (> AGHEH A
combination (Note 37) (MizE37) 897,439 5,190,977 - 113,646 - 6,202,062
Disposals RE - (1,237) - - - (1,237)
Disposals of subsidiaries REFAA - (308,784) - (3,414) (3,988) (316,186)
Transfers a4 - 53,507 - - (53,507) -
Depreciation charge FEEA - (467,081) (1,038) (14,790) - (482,909)
Lease expiries Gisbop b (10,737) - - - - (10,737)
Closing net book amount EXREESE 871,293 6,700,794 7521 135,958 4,293 7,719,859
At December 31, 2017 Rog—tE
+=A=+-A
Cost WA 871,293 11,848,183 10,375 188,716 4,293 12,922,860
Accumulated depreciation ZEHERNE
and impairment - (5,147,389) (2,854) (52,758) - (5,203,001)
Net book amount BEE 871,293 6,700,794 7521 135,958 4,293 7,719,859
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6.

(a)

(a)

TEE ITHRREE)

(b)

(c)

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
Depreciation charge is recognised as:  #T& & AR
Charged to loss for the year FFAREEE 467,439 487,866
Capitalised into oil in tank =N N 15,470 16,957
482,909 504,823
(b)
2017 2016
—E—+F NS
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
Recognition of charges relating to RNEEEERT
asset retirement obligations
— Additions of oil and — ey B R E E (FisE25)
gas properties (Note 25) 206 1,354
— Acquisition through business — ESHE AL M
combination 1,136,864 =
1,137,070 1,354
(c)
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTFT
Assets directly used in and operated & E B AHE] S M E &
under the Group's PSCs with DA REETAERR
PetroChina in the PRC RIENEE
— Cost — B 6,646,007 8,694,370
— Accumulated depreciation — BEHITEXRE
and impairment (4,864,902) (6,302,272)
1,781,105 2,392,098

226 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(d)

Impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of oil
and gas properties of the Group amounted to
RMB6,700.8 million. Management has reviewed
whether any indicators exist for possible impairment on
the carrying amount of oil and gas properties at each of
the cash generating units (“CGU") in the PRC and
Canada.

When indicators of impairment are identified,
management therefore performed impairment
assessment at the relevant CGU. The carrying value of
the CGU is compared against respective recoverable
amount, which is estimated based on value-in-use.
Value-in-use is calculated based on pre-tax cash flow
projections which is consistent with the financial
budgets as approved by the Board of Directors.

In performing the impairment assessment, key
assumptions adopted by the management include
forecast crude oil or gas prices, forecast production
volumes, forecast operating costs and capital
expenditures and discount rates. Management
determined the forecast crude oil prices based on the
approved financial budgets and also bench-marked
against a range of price forecasts published by various
reputable banks and industry organisations. The
forecast production volumes were based on
management’s production plan and forecast production
volume for the remaining concession periods as set out
in the reserve reports. Management determined the
forecast operating costs and capital expenditures based
on its financial budget and business plan. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant business.

6. TEE TRK&HRMEE)

(d)

AT

R-B—+E+-_A=+—H" 'K
SEHREEREEAARK
67008 &L EEEEEXRT
FREENEASHEGEERGED
BAREERABERSLSFERE
PR o

ERERENSE  BEEREIAE
MHEARE ELE BT EITRIERE °
ReEEBMMNRmEEERNA
WESEETLE  JORESER
RBEREBETRE - EREE
=RERESSHENTEEER
—HAOBRARSRERRFER -

FEETREREE - EIEEMRA
HMEREBREERHEBMRAR
B - FBRES - FRRARIEERN
BRESXHARIEIRE - K FIR
JE AR B AL/ A B 75 TR B SR FE ORI R
HER - WRASBAZARITH
TEABE MO R hEREE
ET2E - MANEERRERHE
WET 2 HORBERHNER
HEESIMBRAESETRA - &
B B RIEE M A5 TR E M X555t 81l
EFRRIRIEBERMBE A - PIfE
RMBER R RHATAER X - WAN
A REIR R A [ AR 8277 AR RR RO RE
JEN

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k

227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. BREEE
Mineral
extraction Mining
Software rights rights Total
at  BERRE PRt st

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARBTR

Year ended December 31, BE-—Z2—Xi&

2016 TZA=t—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE 16,008 767 342,820 359,595
Additions =0 251 - - 251
Disposals of subsidiaries BE AR (1,107) - (185,037) (186,144)
Amortisation charge (Note 30)  #$58 M (Fi{530) (6,364) (747) (4,137) (11,248)
Exchange differences PN =% 61 20 14,015 14,096
Impairment charge MEEL

— Continuing operations —REgE - (40) - (40)

— Discontinued operations — R R = - (167,661) (167,661)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,849 = = 8,849
At December 31, 2016 R=B-—R%§

+t=A=t+—H

Cost [B#N 34,459 20,555 - 55,014
Accumulated amortisation 2T #ERRE

and impairment (25,610) (20,555) = (46,165)
Net book amount REFEE 8,849 - - 8,849
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 7. EBREE(E)
Goodwill Mineral
extraction
rights Software Total
BE EEMRE Liges @5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARETR AR®TxR

Year ended December 31, BE=-ZE—+t&

2017 TZRA=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE - - 8,849 8,849
Acquisition through business TEAHER

combination (Note 37) o (fFzE37) 724,262 - - 724,262
Disposals of subsidiaries BRETFAT - - (335) (335)
Amortisation charge (Note 30)  #k3% & FH (Fi13E30) - - (5,467) (5,467)
Exchange differences PN =% (19,116) - - (19,116)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 705,146 - 3,047 708,193
At December 31, 2017 R-Z—tF

+=RA=t+—H

Cost [B#:N 705,146 19,362 28,960 753,468
Accumulated amortisation R HERRE

and impairment - (19,362) (25,913) (45,275)
Net book amount REEE 705,146 - 3,047 708,193

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 8. HELERE
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRET ARETET

At January 1, n—BA—H 246,667 -
Additions 340 33,490 283,677
Share of profits for the year FRNERENFEHEE (63,023) 36,115
Impairment (Note (a)(ii)) B (B EE (a) (i) (33,524) (81,339)
Exchange differences P& 5 == (3,722) 8,647
Others Efh 2,653 (433)
At December 31, HRt+=-—B=+—8H 182,541 246,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 8. HMELXERE(HE)

(a) Details of investments in associates (a) BELEREFHE:
% of

Place of business/ interest

country of held Measurement
Name of entity incorporation Principal activities indirectly method

LeEnwy/ MRS
NGRS EE i TEER RS REFE
Palaeontol B.V. (“PBV") Netherlands Exploration and production 40.0%  Equity

ol of oil in Kazakhstan EmE

through associate

BEBECFT B R AE

EERLERM
Journey Energy Inc. Canada Exploration and production 31.9% Equity
("Journey”) nex of conventional, oil- s

weighted assets in
western Canada

EMERFERETAMAEH

FHREENBRNFEE
PetroBroad Copower Limited ~ PRC/Hong Kong Exploration of petroleum 34.0%  Equity
(“PetroBroad”) R B products in the northern part Rk
of the South China Sea
pursuant to the PSC
with CNOOC

WA BERERRETNERD K
BRAEET BRSNS
48 EAMARETHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Details of investments in associates (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Journey

As new shares was issued by Journey, as at
December 31, 2017, the Group's equity interest in
Journey is 31.9% .

PetroBroad

As of at December 31, 2017, amounting to
RMB114.9 million investment in PetroBroad was
provided by the Company, for the year ended
December 31, 2017, amount of investment in
PetroBroad is RMB33.5 million (2016: RMB81.3
million)

As indicated by the accumulated loss incurred in
PetroBroad and the current result from its
exploration activities, the Company has provided a
full impairment provision on the investment in
PetroBroad of RMB33.5 million (2016: RMB81.3
million) in 2017.

Fair value

PBV and PetroBroad are private companies and there

are no quoted market price available for its shares.

As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of the Group's
interest in Journey was C$28.9 million, (equivalent to

RMB150.6 million) (2016: C$45.8 million, equivalent to
RMB235.4 million).

8. HMELERE (M)

(a)

(b)

BECERREFE(E)

(i) Journey

B Journey EETTHTAR - A=

TE—+F+_A=+—8"

& E ¥ BJourney % 5 B

31.9% °

(ii) PetroBroad

Bz_ZZ—+tF#+ = A8

=+—HB G AFCRHLHE
BARE1149BETHERE

% PetroBroad © & = — &
—tE+t-A=t—HLF
B REARHNIKRERAR

B3IBLEAET(ZE—RF:

AREGIZAEEBTT) °

1R $5 PetroBroad #y 2 £ 18 4

NEBRIHERER AT

BT FHEREHA
R#3B5ESHETL(ZZE— X
F:AREBI3FET)NE

EBEHHRAE -

[REE

PBV X PetroBroad &3E FH A Al -
H it B8 B Al AR TISER -

R-B—tHF+-_A=+—HB &

& B A 8 Journey B& 15 B A b
EANME29FETL(HEKRAR
#1506 B&E L) (ZF—7RF - N

MAb8AE L T ARKE2354

BET) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(c) Accounting policies

Major differences in accounting policies between the
Group and Journey are listed as below:

° Journey adopts full cost method for its gas
exploration and production activities. Under this
method, all costs incurred in exploring for,
acquiring and developing oil and gas reserves are
capitalised, regardless of whether the results of
specific costs are successful, as exploration and
evaluation assets and will be transferred to oil &
gas properties, and ultimately being depreciated
on the unit-of-production basis upon production
phase of the project in future.

o The Group adopts successful efforts method, and
certain expenditures incurred and capitalised by
Journey would not be qualified for capitalisation
under successful efforts method; therefore, such
expenditures were expensed off to ensure
consistency with the Group’s policies.

(d) Contingent liabilities
As December 31, 2017 and 2016, there are no

contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in
its associates.
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8. H&

Journey T EL R ARFAR K &
EEEIRA T2 K AKX
BoRZAET BiIFE- &
BAMEAZEAARRXARHS
BAEMTAERAE  TwmELE

RERY  HRELERE
AL EE A B R AN 7 B B EE
WA REERRERAE
RIEBLEERBIRBEMNESR
EHEITITE -

e AEERBRREZE &
ZAET 0 Journey BB B4
WERNMEHBELHTFE
BRI REAREERK
REEF B ZELB
2E8AL-

REEE
RZZE—tFNM=_Z—A"F+=A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

8.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 8. HMELXERE(E)

(e)

Summarised financial information (e)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

BEMBERWT :

EL I ON S

Year ended December 31, 2017
BE-Z—tH+-A=+—-HLEE

Palaeontol B.V Others Total
PBV Hith st
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AR¥T T ARET T

Revenue WA 247,429 562,742 810,171
Depreciation and WERBHER

amortisation expense (69,253) (251,971) (321,224)
General and administration EIEER

expenses (18,824) (53,913) (72,737)
Taxes other than income taxes [RFTSFIINELAD (74,093) (2) (74,095)
Impairments charges mE (11,867) (135,828) (147,695)
Others BEMERL (208,945) (321,061) (530,006)
Loss before income tax BT BR AT K (135,553) (200,033) (335,586)
Income tax expense FriEHiE A (38,728) 2,360 (36,368)
Profit for the year KEBK (174,281) (197,673) (371,954)
Total comprehensive loss REGZEBRAE

for the year (174,281) (197,673) (371,954)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 8. HMELXERE(E)

(e) Summarised financial information (Continued) (e)

Summarised statement of financial position

As at December 31, 2017
R-EBE—+tF+=-A=1+—H

BEMBERDT : (&)

BREMBRR T

Palaeontol B.V. Others Total
PBV Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥T T AR®T
Current B
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 2,464 48,554 51,018
Other current assets EfmeEE 60,124 128,784 188,908
Total current assets REBEERRE 62,588 177,338 239,926
Trade payables e BR 5K (85,882) (168,958) (254,840)
Other current liabilities b= N=E (1,357,118) (590,994) (1,948,112)
Total current liabilities TEEEELE (1,443,000) (759,952) (2,202,952)
Non-current FERE
Property, plant and equipment B « T MR E 1,980,796 1,974,457 3,955,253
Other non-current assets HEMIEReEE 151,491 226,424 377,915
Total non-current assets EREBEELTE 2,132,287 2,200,881 4,333,168
Total non-current liabilities FERENEBEEEE (892,412) (1,049,328) (1,941,740)
Net (liabilities)/assets F(E8EB)EE (140,537) 568,939 428,402

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associates adjusted
for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the associates (if any), and not the Group’s

share of those amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR R (8)

(f)

(a)

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 8 HELERE(HE)
Reconciliation of summarised financial (f) BWEMKERWALS
information
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Total Total
et 5T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
At January 1, n—B—H 685,892 534,952
Profit for the year AN B A (371,954) 124,866
Currency translation differences SNEE T B = KR 114,464 26,074
Closing net assets FRFEE 428,402 685,892
Interest in associates Bt o eSS 182,541 246,667
Carrying value AREEE 182,541 246,667
9. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 9. BEZH
Joint operations (a) HEKRE
During the year ended December 31, 2017, through its HE_Z—+F+_-_HA=+—HIt
subsidiaries, the Group has the following joint FE - Li@,ﬁ\—?ﬁj AEBHR
arrangements which are accounted for as joint operation AT R & F IR R BRI 53R
in accordance with IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”. SEANF IR [GERF I EER
HEZLE o
Daan and Moliging PSCs RENEEEERSHER
The Group and Global Oil Corporation (“GOC"), a limited N EE B BB K F TR IRBR A A A 3
liability company incorporated in Bahamas, (collectively (AT RS [BR3xam]) - _%:&L_L
the “Foreign Contractors”), respectively hold a 90% RERSHNRF - (B8 TER
interest and a 10% interest in the foreign participating ENRALZREEE rﬁflﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁn
interest in each of Daan and Moliging blocks within the DKERBINE D EE RN D BIHF
Daan and Moliging oilfields located in Northeast region H90% K 10% K #E 2% - ﬁﬁ&%
in the PRC. These oilfields had been in the commercial BEERAMNPERIE J:L

production phase since 2005 and 2008, respectively,
the Daan PSC would expire after about 8 years in 2024,
whereas the Moliging PSC would expire after about 12
years in 2028.

MEERRESIE—SZTRFEM=

T N\FEAGEEER - Kﬁzéuu
AERERBR=ZZE_HFEHEH - &
EFIERE REB OB \F ﬁiﬁ
EmaKReaRBERZZEZN\FE
B ARFNBEXEEOET =
¢ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

9. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
(a) Joint operations (Continued)
Daan and Moliqing PSCs (Continued)

Pursuant to the respective PSCs with PetroChina the
annual gross production of the crude oil shall, after
payment for value added tax and royalty, be firstly
deemed as the cost recovery oil and shall be used for
cost recovery in the following sequence:

(i) Payment in kind for the operating costs actually
incurred by Foreign Contractors and PetroChina.

(i)~ The remainder of the cost recovery oil shall, after
payment for the operating costs, be deemed as
investment recovery oil. Such investment
recovery oil shall be used for the simultaneous
recovery of the pilot test costs and the
development costs incurred by Foreign
Contractors and predevelopment costs spent by
PetroChina in proportion of 20% by PetroChina
and 80% by Foreign Contractors. The unrecovered
costs of the parties shall be carried forward to and
recovered from the investment recovery oil in
succeeding calendar years until being fully
recovered.

(i) After all pilot test costs and development costs
incurred up to that time have been recovered, the
remainder of the gross production of crude oil for
that period is referred to as profit oil and shall be
allocated in proportion of PetroChina 52% and
Foreign Contractors 48%.

(iv)  The operating costs so incurred after the date of
commencement of commercial production shall
be paid respectively by PetroChina and Foreign
Contractors in accordance with the proportion of
oil allocated to each party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

9. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Joint operations (Continued)

Daan and Moliqging PSCs (Continued)

GOC is entitled to a 10% share of the Foreign
Contractors’ interest in property, plant and equipment,
income and expenses. The Group received income and
paid expenses on behalf of GOC, which has been
recorded in the relevant accounts with GOC (Note 38).

In December 2017, the Group completed the disposal
of the Moliging block, by way of disposal of all equity
interest of the relevant holding companies of the blocks.

9. BEZRY(E)
find

A

(a) HEZE (&)

ARRZNEEEERD RERE (H)

38) °

BREOHBENEINTARETS
E - THERE - WARHNE
FEI10% - AKBRZIRIRAH K
HUA - T3 it
REERNERER A A BARR B A (P FE

FHED

AEBR-_ZT—tF+-_AEKT
HERERBIER T AR MERRE
B AHERHEESTSERRAE

E o
10. SUBSIDIARIES 10. A H
Details of principal subsidiaries FTEFREFHE
Country of  Kind of Principal activities and Particulars of Proportion (%) of ordinary
Name incorporation legal entity Place of operation issued share shares held by
8 SREIEE EREREY FTRERREENE BIUIES YN -V Fris g BRI (%)
The The
Company Group
e £8
Gobi Energy Limited (“Gobi”) ~ Cayman Limited liability Production and sale of 100 ordinary shares of
HEHE company oil in the PRC 1USS$ each 100% 100%
BRAERAT ErEAERNERR 00EBR - BR—=T
Canlin Energy Corporation Canada Limited liability Production and sale of Registered capital of
JIEYN company Gasandoilinthe Canada  C$296 million 100% 100%
EBREAAA EMEXEERLE HMER296 BEME
ARR LA

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k

237



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11. €T A (ZER)

238

Derivative
Loans and Available- financial
receivables for-sale instruments Total
BERRk AHtHE TE
i€ CREE SBIA HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR®BTR AR¥TR
December 31, 2017 —E—+tE+=-A=+—H
Assets as per statement of BB BRAENEE
financial position
Available-for-sale financial AtEHESRE
assets (Note 12) & (fizE12) - 178,360 - 178,360
Trade and other receivables FEUBR AR B At FE U TR
excluding prepayments TEIETRR R
(Notes 15,16) (F4E15,16) 1,821,106 - - 1,821,106
Derivative financial instruments 4744 @ T A
(Note 13) (FiF5E13) - - 368,415 368,415
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEDY
(Note 19) (BFzE19) 132,172 - - 132,172
Restricted cash (Note 18) ZRRHIRE (HIFE18) 115,297 - - 115,297
2,068,575 178,360 368,415 2,615,350
Other
Liabilities at financial
fair value liabilities at Derivative
through profit amortised financial
or loss cost instruments Total
NARERE
FTERHSH Hitr
FTAEHER tREE T4
Heme s b 130N $RIA @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETR AR¥TR
Liabilities as per statementof ~ REHBRARNER
financial position
Borrowings (Note 26) &R (Fi7E26) - 6,049,468 - 6,049,468
Trade and other payables ERERRREAMER -
excluding non-financial TREEERERE
liabilities (Notes 24, 25) (Fif3+24, 25) - 3,647,741 - 3,647,741
Derivative financial instruments TESMTA
(Note 13) (F¥3E13) - - 14,774 14,774
Financial liabilities at fair value AR BETEEEES
through profit or loss AR HERNSRARE
(Note 14) (K5 14) 1,067,626 - - 1,067,626
1,067,626 9,697,209 14,774 10,779,609
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11. €T EGRER) (H&)
(Continued)
Derivative
Loans and Available- financial
receivables for-sale  instruments Total
Rk A& TE
FEWTR CREE SRIITE at

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETT ARBTT ARBTR

December 31, 2016 —E-RFE+=-A=t+—H

Assets as per statement of REHBRARNEE

financial position

Available-for-sale financial RN EEREE
assets (Note 12) (FEE12) - 63,330 - 63,330
Trade and other receivables TEUBR R R B At RN
excluding prepayments TEIEERNR
(Notes 15,16) (i3 15,16) 2,046,989 - - 2,046,989
Derivative financial instruments $T4 &g T A
(Note 13) (Ft5E13) - - 90,325 90,325
Cash and cash equivalents BeE KR EEY
(Note 18) (ft5E18) 904,961 - - 904,961
2,951,950 63,330 90,325 3,105,605
Other
financial
liabilities at Derivative
amortised financial
cost instruments Total
HAftb
TEAE PTE
REERAK AR ST A HaEt
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBTT ARETRT

Liabilities as per statement of REHBERIRNERE

financial position

Borrowings (Note 26) EENCIEY)) 4,690,555 = 4,690,555
Trade and other payables FENER R EMENR
excluding non-financial TREHSRAE
liabilities (Notes 24, 25) (K324, 25) 306,757 - 306,757
Derivative financial instruments T4 &/ T A
(Note 13) (Fft5E13) - 20,576 20,576
4,997,312 20,576 5,017,888
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

12. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 12. AHHEERMEE

2017 2016
—E—4E —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFT
At January 1, n—A—H 63,330 27,105
Exchange differences PEH =% (9,197) 4,845
Addition 10 203,989 39,044
Net gain transfer to equity (Note 22) SRUL R A RE RS (P3E22) 8,168 18,405
Impairment provision BB 2 (2,000) -
Disposal RE (85,930) (26,069)
At December 31, W+=—HA=+—H 178,360 63,330
Less: non-current portion B ERBED (67,132) (63,330)
Current portion BN D 111,228 =
Represent: BiE
Listed securities: FHES
— Ordinary shares — EER
— USA —XH 3,551 1,039
— Hong Kong — &8 91,659 14,646
— Australia — B KAH|m 16,297 =
Unlisted securities: ELETES
— Equity interest — IR E 61,768 42,246
— Corporate debenture — RAEfE 5,085 5,399
178,360 63,330
Market value of listed securities ERESETSER 111,507 15,685
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

12. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

(a)

12. AftHESRMEE ()

The carrying amounts are denominated in the following (a) FRESENTYIEBABEN
currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETIT
uss$ ETT 61,569 43,285
HKS T 96,744 20,045
AU$ SBAFEETT 16,297 -
RMB AR 3,750 =
178,360 63,330
The fair value of unlisted securities are based on cash b) FELEMEHFHNAABEEBERS
flows discounted using a rate based on the market MEFRAT SR KLIELETES
interest rate and risk premium specific to the unlisted BEMNRBRERRGE - ARE
securities. The fair value are within level 3 of the fair BEEARBEELANE =EA (K
value hierarchy (Note 3.3). $£3.3) °
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting ) EWMEBH - FARRNZESER
date is the carrying value of the debt investments AEAAHRHEEHRRENRAEE
classified as available-for-sale. =
None of these financial assets is past due. d FLiieREEHSECHE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

13. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 13. fT&E€mITE
2017 2016
—E—4E —ZE—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Assets BE

Current BB D

MAST Index Linked Investment (Note (a)) EEMIEEIEBIRE (Kt (a) 293,798 90,325

Commodity swaps contracts (Note (b)) @A A F (M (b)) 48,965 -

Non-current FERBBL

Commodity swaps contracts (Note (b))  FEmERE E (M (b)) 25,652 -
368,415 90,325

Liabilities af&

Current B

Oil options 5 B - 20,576

Commodity swaps contracts (Note (b))  FE@E A R (MiEE (b)) 9,200 -

Non-current FEREBBL

Commodity swaps contracts (Note (b))  EgFaE#4 R (M (b)) 5,574 =

14,774 20,576
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

13. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

MAST Index Linked Investment

On July 24, 2017, the Group entered into an investment
agreement with Lan Mu Limited (“Lan Mu"), pursuant
to which the Group purchased an investment that pays
a coupon linked to the 4% volatility target performance
of Merrill Lynch Multi Asset Strategy Index (the “MAST
Index"”) at an consideration of HK$351.0 million
(equivalent to RMB293.8 million) (the “MAST Index
Linked Investment”). The maturity date of the
investment is April 23, 2018. As at December 31, 2017,
the fair value of the MAST Index Linked Investment
does not change and no gains/losses was recognised
due to the changes in fair value.

On February 1, 2018, HK$351.0 million of the principal
of the investment was received.

Commodity swaps contracts

The operational results and financial condition of Canlin
are largely dependent on the commodity prices received
for its gas, oil and natural gas liquids production.
Commodity prices are volatile due to global and regional
factors including supply and demand fundamentals,
inventory levels, weather, economic and geopolitical
factors. During the year ended December 31, 2017, in
order to mitigate commodity price risk, Canlin has
entered into a number of financial derivative contracts,
including WTI Qil Contracts and AECO Gas Contracts,
which are accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss and not held for trading or speculative purposes.

The fair value of commodity swaps contracts are within
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

13. fTAESRMT A (&)

(a)

(b)

HEXMERAERE

—TE—tFELA1+HNAB AEE
HEEARAF(HAE ) RTIRE
ek - Bt AEBBAKE - Z
HERBHEHA% HEMRZITTEER
WS FE BOK B) B 12 M e b 8 ([ =MR3E
) £5AEBE3I51.088 LU
AEAR¥2038BHET) (EMIBEH
HEBIEE) - 2B A=F— N
FMAZ+=H - E=-_ZT—+F
+=—AB=+—8  Z=MIEHHEEH
RENARBELES  BERH
RARBEZCEEN RSB
WHERR ©

RZE-—NE_-_A—H  BK
351.0 BB Tk BEARALE WO -

BmEREE

Canlin By A% & X SR A 87 75 AR R R
BELEBURREFESERAR « [RH
MBI RARERNERER - B
WMERSZINOREHREEAT  &E
BTKE - JFiF - &FERMEBUESE
BLERRERZNTE - HE
—E—tFE+-A=+—BItF
€ CanlinBEB T — RIS BITE
THAR  BEAERERSER
SHARIAKRAECORARAR ° %
PTESRIANAREBEFEAEH
FEEtAZHER  TMEAR S
IZ B A o

ZEmERERN AR EERBR
NREESE _ERPIFEI3) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

14. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

14. UAREEFEEEEEBHTAE

HERNEREE

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARETR

FRBEME
A EIRE SR

Non-current liabilities
Convertible preferred shares

1,067,626

1,067,626

In connection with the Acquisition as described in Note 37, to
finance part of the purchase consideration, the Company,
Canlin and two independent subscribers (the “Subscribers”)
entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) on May 31, 2017. Pursuant to the terms of the
Subscription Agreement, Canlin issued an aggregate 204.0
million convertible preferred shares (the “CPS") at an
issuance price of C$1.00 per share for aggregate proceeds of
C$204.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB1,089.7
million) to the two Subscribers.

Pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Agreement, the
holders of the CPS (the “CPS holder”) is entitled to receive a
fixed preferential dividends of C$0.08 per share per annum
when declared by the board of Canlin.

Each issued CPS may at any time convert into 0.83 common
shares within the four years from the issuance date at the
option of the CPS holder and the Group may redeem at any
time the whole or from time to time any part of the then
outstanding CPS on payment at a redemption price as
stipulated in the Subscription Agreement. Upon full
conversion of the CPS, a total of 169.3 million common
shares will be issued, representing approximately 36.4% of
the enlarged issued share capital. Upon full conversion, Canlin
will remain to be a subsidiary of the Company, but the
Group's interest in the issued share capital of Canlin will be
reduced to approximately 63.6%.
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M FS7FTM B R IEM T - A
SBEEE - K27 Canlin R Z B
YRBEATRBEADRZ=ZZE—tFHA
=+—HiTRERE(REHED -
BIRRE R ZE AR - CanliniZB1TE
SRR INE1.00TEITEET204.08 B %
AR B o R ([ AT R AR B SR AR ) 45 M 5
REA - IBEESEAMNE204068
TTHTAKARE1,080.7E8TT) °°

RIRFRIE R 1 IR K - IR AB SR AR EF
BA(AIREREEREE AL B ERR
CaninE=EE RN EFEZRINE0.08
TCH)EE (& e A

RETEHMER - B BARE L
BEARRE SREBTHTRRKRE
2 B AT P {r) BF 1 8232 5 0.83 T i A%
BAREER AIRRBHE T ED EREE
{r] B 9 B [0 2 2B 2k B B B 0] & e ) R (2
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R R BB AT R ELERE - &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

14. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 14. UAREBEFEEHEEHTAE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The CPS is recognised and measured as financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss and the changes
in fair value should be reflected in the income statement.

As of the issuance date, the fair value of the CPS is C$224.0
million (equivalent to approximately RMB1,196.3 million),
after making reference to the valuation report prepared by an
independent professional valuer. The difference between the
issuance price and the fair value calculated by valuation
techniques as at the issuance date of C$20.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB106.6 million) would be
amortised on a straight-line basis over the 4-year life of the
CPS as estimated by the management. The amortisation
expense since the issuance date of C$1.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB6.5 million) is charged to other gains/
(losses), net.

As of 31 December 2017, the fair value of the CPS is C$224.0
million (equivalent to approximately RMB1,164.9 million). The
change in fair value of RMBO0.2 million since the issuance
date is charged to other gains/(losses), net.

The fair value of the CPS as of the issuance date and
December 31, 2017 are estimated based on the valuation
reports as of respective dates issued by an independent
professional valuer using an equity allocation model which
allocates the total equity value to each class of shares under
different scenarios.

In determining the fair value of the CPS, significant estimates
and judgements are involved in the process, including
probability of each scenario, risk-free rate, dividend yield and
volatility.

HESNTMEE (&)

A BB ERMTERARE
B EREZFHTAEHERNEHE
& AREEEFERREBRDZRTD -

HE%TH 2EBHIEEHEMRR
MEERESE AR EEAENE240H
ETXFERARK1,1963EET) ° %
TEREGAERMEZRTAFENAR
EENE200BET(TEXARE
1066 B &) 2N E%  RETEE
WA B IREREEATE NS - 5
BITERINE12EET(ERARE
65E BT BMEHEERAT ALME
K)/FE - FE -

R-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—8 "
BEBRNAREBEANE 224088 7T
(MERKARKE1,1649B&TT) ° BT
HRAABEZESHARBO2EET ' 5T
AHM(BXR)/FE  FE -

RETAM=_ZE—tF+=-_A=+—
B AIRELIRN AR EEENEY
BEETHAES TGRS B PERRE
HOEBRAERZBESEETREBR
TE—EREE-

EEEARBRELERNAAEER - %
B2 REANGFH A MHE - B3
BEBATHOME  EARMNE - KB
Wozs RAREYE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

14. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Valuation process

The Group has involved independent professional valuer to
perform the valuations as of the issuance date and December
31, 2017 for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. The external experts report directly to the chief
financial officer (“CFO"). Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the CFO and external experts
once every six months in line with the Group’s half-yearly
reporting requirements.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and
evaluated as follows:

° Probability of each scenario: conversion, liquidation and
redemption, estimated by management as of the
issuance date and December 31, 2017

o Risk-free rate with reference to the yield of Canada
government bonds & notes with similar maturity as of
the issuance date and December 31, 2017

o Dividend yield for common share is assumed zero as
Canlin is not expected to pay dividends for common
share in the foreseeable future as of the issuance date
and December 31, 2017

o Volatility is with reference with the historical data of
comparable companies as of the issuance date and
December 31, 2017

Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each
reporting period during the valuation discussion between the
CFO and external experts. As part of this discussion the
external experts presents a report that explains the reason for
the fair value movements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEITIE KM ()

14. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

14.

Information about fair value measurements using significant

inputs (Level 3):

Description

i

Fair value at

RT3IBHAAEE

31 December

2017
RMB'000
2-tF
+28
=+-§
ARBFR

Issuance
date
RMB'000

Bf1A
ARETR

Un-observable
inputs *

FUERSH*

SHER

31 December
2017

—§-tf
+=A=+-H

BLA R

LEESEAHSEAE

MERNSREE(H)

AR BEHEERNEABALE(E=
B :

Range of inputs

Issuance date

Bf1A

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FURRSBANAEENBE

Convertible
preferred
shares

AHRREER

1,164,924

1,196,345

Probability of each

Scenario: conversion,

liquidation and
redemption

MIEEERNEE

BE g5 58
MR

Risk-free rate

EREBRAE

Dividend yield
(common share)

LRk haX

Volatility

K&

Conversion: 90%
B 90%
Liquidation: 5%
EE 5%
Redemption: 5%
B 5%

1.81%

50.01%

* There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable

inputs that materially affect fair values.

Conversion: 90%

R

*

0%
Liqu\datlon 5%
EE 1 5%
edemption: 5%
B 5%

1.69%

48.78%

Issuance date:

Increased conversion probability (5%),
decreased liquidation and
redemption (2.5%) would
decrease the FV by C$1.9 million
(equivalent to RMB9.7 million).

Increased risk-free rate (1%) would
decrease the FV by C$1.7 million
(equivalent to RMB8.8 million).

Increased volatility (10%) would
decrease the FV by C$1.0 million
(equivalent to RMB5.3 million).

178

ERNERAR5%  FEABEMRRE
25% EHAREBRONE19BET
(ZERARBITEET)

BERTIEA D 1% BHALEERD
MB1TRET(SERARKSS
BET)

REEF=10% ERALEE
BOME10EE T (SERARKS3
BRET)

31 December 2017:

Increased conversion probability (5%),
decreased liquidation and
redemption (2.5%) would
decrease the FV by C$1.9 million
(equivalent to RMB9.7 million).

Increased risk-free rate (1%) would
decrease the FV by C$1.6 million
(equivalent to RMB8.3 million).

Increased volatility (10%) would
decrease the FV by C$1.5 million
(equivalent to RMB8.0 million).

E—+EFZA=1-H:

SRR E 5% + BEMEE R
20% SHARBERD K1 9Ean
(ZERAR®9TEET)

ERRNEAR 1% RN EEAD
ME16AET(FERARKSS
BET)

REXARF10% BHAL(ERE
AOME 1S EET(SERARKSO
BET)

FERTER 28 TN A E AR R E B R T 2
N ARBEEEERTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 15. MR - RE SR EALEKR

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—Z2—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREFIT
Amounts due from related parties JE Uk Ba B 5 R 0E
— Palaeontol B.V. (Note (d)) — Palaeontol B.V. (ff5E (d)) 926,495 935,998
— Others — HAh 210,269 223,530
Loans granted to third parties (Note (e)) T 5 =FHE R (3T (e) 243,527 293,224
Other receivables H At FEUFRIE 341,872 227,252
Consideration receivables from EWEE T ARK
disposals of subsidiaries TEEEE 506,177 320,675
Deposits RES 55,541 128,335
Interest receivable JE LR B 14,996 10,267
Advances to employees SETHERS 7,167 1,736
2,306,044 2,141,017
Less: impairment provision (Note (b)) B EEERZEME (BIEE (b)) (891,973) (197,596)
1,414,071 1,943,421
Prepaid expenses FEEA 63,471 6,568
Advances to suppliers TEfT R 154,180 153,107
Less: impairment provision (Note (b)) W SEERERE (MR (b)) (152,330) (151,871)
1,479,392 1,951,225
Current mE 751,426 1,131,001
Non-current ERH 727,966 820,224
1,479,392 1,951,225
(@)  The fair value of loans and receivables approximates to (a) EFRMEWESNALEEMEERE
their carrying amounts. E R -

248 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 15. FEAEIE - RBE R H e
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
(b)  Movements on impairment provision (b) IEERAE{EEE
2017 2016
—2-t& —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

At January 1, R—A—H 349,467 89,426
Impairment provision (Note 27) R AR (FsE27) 728,613 252,756
Disposals of subsidiaries HEFAH (6,000) (2,364)
Exchange differences PE L Z=%R (27,777) 9,649
At December 31, R+t=—BA=+—H 1,044,303 349,467
Provision and reversal of impairment provision have EREEERNHENER E BIEES
been included in ‘other gains/losses, net’ in the ek arh [ Humlzs 18
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. &L FEEIR -
The other classes within prepayments and other FE G H o pE Uk FhA 89 B A 28 B R
receivables do not contain assets made impairment BEEIREREEHLEE - RlE
provisions. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the B xAREAERKAD AN FE
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of LRI RIBIE R E b EW R R E
prepayments and other receivables mentioned above. BE -
Aging analysis of impaired receivable balance: DETIRERRE R IEM BRI ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Within 1 year 1 AR 339,304 22,717
Between 1 and 2 years 1-2 % 263,648 56,293
Between 2 and 3 years 2-3%F 52,757 13,874
Above 3 years 3FEME 388,594 256,583

1,044,303 349,467
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR AT ()

(c)

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 15. FAF#FIE  REE R EHEAMEWRS
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (#8)
The carrying amounts are denominated in the following c) BRESBEUTIEBLEN
currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT-KRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AERET T ARETIT
uss$ e 2,169,626 2,042,825
c$ pilik: 21,662 =
RMB AR 114,756 98,192
2,306,044 2,141,017
The amounts due from Palaeontol B.V. consists of (d)

shareholder loans and other receivables. The
shareholder loans are unsecured, bear interest ranging
from 4.9% to 11.9% per annum (Note 38) and maturing
in 2019 and 2036 respectively.

Loans granted to third parties bear interests ranging
from 9.0% to 13.5% per annum and repayable within
one year. Included in the balance was an amount of
RMB208 million, which is secured against 50%
shareholding of an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the borrower. The remaining balances are unsecured.
As of December 31, 2017, the remaining balances are
fully impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

16. FEWERRX

2017 2016
—E—tE —TE—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETIT
Trade receivables from: EUE SR

— PSC partners (Note 38) —EmaKERAEE
B (M13E38) 79,874 94,651
— Third parties —%=h 349,691 8,917
429,565 103,568
Less: impairment provision (Note (c)) B AR (5T (c) (22,530) =
407,035 103,568

(a) The fair value of trade receivables approximates their

(a) BUREFHAREEREERASHE

carrying amount. FEIT o
(b) Aging analysis (b) BRER DT

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETIT
Up to 30 days AHEEE30 H 195,149 101,771
31-180 days 31£180H 190,529 644
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 43,887 1,153
429,565 103,568
Past due and impaired BaHE RE 20,865 =
Past due but not impaired B M AR E 23,022 1,153
43,887 1,153
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16. FEWLERFX (%)

(c) Movements on impairment provision. (c) IEBRVEMHE
For the year ended December 31, 2017, all impairment BE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—H8HIt
provisions are provided by Canlin, consisting of FE 2 EREFHEER
provision based on aging analysis and certain Canlin ° FZIZBEREFH LD ENRER
receivables specifically identified by management’s EONTETIR  B— 3o —BIEEIR
assessment of collectability of account receivables. [ EL A 5 e Uk BR 30 mT Y 115 B9 B R4S
HERERIRE MR °

2017

—E—tF

RMB’'000

AR®T T

At January 1 Hn—HA—H -

Acquisition through business combination DESFEEREM 22,207

Impairment provision (Note 27) SR ERREE (M5 27) 1,503
Amounts written off %I ERR (592)
Exchange differences PE R == (588)

At December 31 Nt+=—A=+—A”H 22,530
(d) As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of RMB23.0 (d R-Z—+tF+-_A=+—H @

million (2016: RMB1.2 million) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a customer for whom there is
no significant financial difficulty and based on past
experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

HERERENERERSEAA
RE230BET(ZZE—7~F: A
R¥12885T) o Bt &9 EUER
IR P I EE A SRS
BIEAFAR  affemEa ik
Bl o 1t 0 FEUR AR XAV BR iR 9 HT 40
—|? :

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT—KF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Pass due up to 180 days BHIR B 180 H 14,477 568
Pass due over 180 days #HAFRIE 180 H 8,545 585
23,022 1,153
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(Continued)

The Group grants credit terms of between 30 days to

180 days.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts are denominated in the following

16. FEWARRR (&)
(d) (&)

AEEREEFNDERARR=1TE
—BNAtH-

R#ER - RANERERKO S
BHERW AR HREEE

AEBEW RFAEAERAERE
ﬁ o

(e) FREZBEAUTIEEREN :

currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tF  ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFIT
US$ ETT 258 487
RMB AR 86,273 103,081
c$ ik 320,504 =
407,035 103,568
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2017 2016
—EB—+F —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Oil in tank ETFH 6,344 9,666
Materials and supplies Yok K A e o 10,401 20,489
16,745 30,155
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

18. RESTRICTED CASH 18. ZRFBE
2017 2016
—E—4E —ZE—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Current (Note (a)) B (M3 (a) 72,012 =

Non-current (Note (b)) FER B (FHEE (b)) 43,285 =
115,297 -

Note (a): Bzt (a) -

Under the term loan facility agreement entered between the Group and a third R-B—+F+-A=+—0 RBAEHEERFE=

party on September 1, 2017, amounts deposited in certain restricted bank FR-Z—tFNA—BiUNEHEZTRE WS

account are US$11.0 million (equivalent to RMB72.0 million) as at December B3 FRAEESREFPNEEAZITINI0EET

31,2017. (ZERARKET20E8ET) °

Note (b): B (o) :

Under the term loan facility agreement entered between the Group and a third BEAEEEE=FR_ZE—+FESANBIIH

party on June 8, 2017, amounts deposited in certain bank account are US$6.6 EHERRMERS  ZERBREERPHRESE

million (equivalent to RMB43.3 million) as at December 31, 2017. BER R-_T—+tF+-_A=1+—8 RELH

ERET66ABT(ZENARBBIFET)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERREEZEY
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Cash on hand H4 - 38
Cash at bank RITIER 132,172 904,923
132,172 904,961
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19. REeRBRSEEY (&)

(@) Carrying amounts are denominated in the following (a) BEEEFEIATYEE AN -
currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

RMB AR 8,617 176,093
US$ e 119,015 698,691
c$ pilik: 4,504 1,464
HK$ T 26 28,712
Other currencies H g 10 1
132,172 904,961
20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. A&
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETTEHEEER
Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
BE B < BARE et

(Thousand) RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
T AREFT ARETT ARETFT

At January 1, 2016 and R=E—RF—H—H

December 31, 2016 E+=-—A=+—H 2,938,597 19,489 1,049,307 1,068,796
At January 1, 2017 and R—ZE—tF—HF—H

December 31, 2017 E+—A=+—H 2,938,597 19,489 1,049,307 1,068,796
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR AT ()

21.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Details of the equity-settled share option schemes, share
award scheme and cash-settled stock appreciation rights plan
adopted by the Company are as follows:

The share options, stock appreciation rights and share awards
granted generally vest over a two or three-year period
following a specified vesting commencement date. Typically,
the share options, stock appreciation rights and share awards
granted vest at each anniversary of the grant date within the
vesting period, subject to the participant continuing to be an
employee on each vesting date. The terms of share options,
stock appreciation rights and share awards granted will not
exceed ten years from the grant date.

(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”)

The Plan was adopted on November 20, 2009 with the
purpose of providing additional incentive to employees,
directors and consultants to attract and retain the best
available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility. The Company originally reserved
6,072,870 ordinary shares for issuance under the Plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

21.

(a)

SHARE — BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”)

(Continued)

(i)

Stock options under the Plan

Movements in the number of share options and
their expiring date and exercise prices under the

21. BB (&)

BROEBME 8 (AT ERE
[EH&1) ()

(a)

(i) =B ESHERE

&t B E RTTEERE
2H - HAHBRTEEN

Plan are as follows: BEIAT -
2017 2016
—Z-tf A
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options
Fi3 4
TRESR HikE IEETR HitE
AtJanuary1,and R—A—HR
December 31, +=B=+—H US$0.15 20,127,386 US$0.15 20,127,386
Expiry date EHA
November 20,2019 —Z— 4
+— H=H US$0.13 10,986,312 US$0.13 17,048,120
November 23, 2020 —Z-F4F
+—A=+=H US$0.25 3,079,266 US$0.25 3,079,266
14,065,578 20,127,386
Exercisable AT 14,065,578 20,127,386

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, all the Share
options were exercisable.

N=B—EFRZB—AF
—A=+—H"  FTE&ERX
FR BRI BRI TTERE

—|_/

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 21. B (&)
(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”) (a) RO EBHSTE (LT ERE
(Continued) [H&l]) (&)
(ii) Stock appreciation rights granted under the (i) ZEFEREESHRMIGERE
Plan

Movements in the number of stock appreciation
rights and their expiring date and exercise prices
under the Plan are as follows:

2017
—E—tF
Average Stock
exercise price  appreciation
per share rights

TRESRK B EE

At &l B K RITER D
EEHE - EBHAE RT
ENESHIT

2016
NG E
Average Stock
exercise price appreciation
per share rights
TR B W in L E#E

At January 1 R—B—8 US$0.13 35,217,896 US$0.13 44,194,443
Lapsed B R US$0.13 (3,394,680) US$0.15 (7,446,547)
Exercised BT - - HK$0.01 (1,530,000)
At December 31 R+=—A=+—8~ US$0.13 31,823,216 US$0.13 35,217,896
Expiry date ZHA
November 20, 2019 —Z—hH4E
+—A=+H US$0.13 30,968,572 US$0.13 34,363,252
February 26,2020 —ZE_Z4F
—A=-+5H US$0.26 454,644 US$0.26 454,644
November 20, 2026 —Z - R4
+—A=+AH HK$0.01 400,000 HK$0.01 400,000
31,823,216 35,217,896

At December 31, 2017, all outstanding stock
appreciation rights were exercisable. (2016: all
outstanding stock appreciation rights were
exercisable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 21. BT (&)

(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the (b) BEBEREFE(ENRLTHRAE
Listing Rules (the“Scheme”) T+EE)( 58
The Scheme adopted by the Company was approved by BIEETARBNETEE - BRER
shareholders on November 27, 2010 in accordance with R T FEF+—HA=-t+tHW
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the NIRRT - BEIRET2IA B
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to HERTHASBIELERINEE
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their 8 TR TIEESSE -

contributions to the Group.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s ELEAFEITARRIBETI(BIEE
options under the Scheme held by employees (including F)EAENATTENESHEREZ =
directors) and movement in such holdings during each E—tFR_ZFE—XRKF+=H
of the two years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: =+—BItFERER R EEREA
HITREATR
2017 2016
—E—tF —EAF
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options
Fi91TEE FHTEE
ST HiRE gk HitE
At January 1 R—B—H HK$1.23 194,392,839 HK$1.61 108,947,705
Granted Sl - - HK$0.816 95,920,000
Lapsed BAB HK$1.33  (44,852,487) HK$1.40  (10,474,866)
At December 31 N+-_A=+—H HK$1.20 149,540,352 HK$1.23 194,392,839
Expiry date A
September 20, 2021 T
hA=+H HK$2.254 19,124,000 HK$2.254 26,962,334
March 20, 2024 —ECUE
=A=-+H HK$1.40 51,546,352 HK$1.40 71,510,505
December 8, 2026 “ECRF
+=ANE HK$0.816 78,870,000 HK$0.816 95,920,000
149,540,352 194,392,839
At December 31, 2017, out of the 149,540,352 options R-F—tF+_A=+—8 &
(2016: 194,392,839 options), 97,919,036 shares (2016: 149,540,352 3 AR 17 5t ) 5 B 8
73,168,943 options) were exercisable. (ZF—7X%F : 194,392,83913 )

97,919,036 ( = & — /X F:
73,168,943 1) AR 1T{E A4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(c) 2015 Share Award Scheme

Apart from above Plan and Scheme, to recognise the
contributions by certain grantees and to give incentives
thereto in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the
Group, the Board of Directors resolved to adopt the
2015 Share Award Scheme on January 6, 2015.

21. R#H < (&)
(c) ZZE-—HFROERE

B bt BR (7 SR BN < 5 B K R R
FTEILASN  ARREBEE S HIR
T -RAFE—ANHRERSA I
RZBE—RF+—A=t+HRZEE
712015 1D SEEIETEl - B ER
Al E AR AT E B4 T3
B AAEEMFEEEMERELE
BETEEREA TAREERHE—F
BERWSIEAAL -

2017 2016

—E—4E —TE—REF

Awarded Awarded

Shares Shares

B 5 BN (D

At January 1 m—HB—H 16,700,000 14,200,000

Granted KERT - 12,000,000

Exercise REBITE (14,400,000) (9,500,000

At December 31 Rt+t=—A=+—H 2,300,000 16,700,000
Expiry date 2H A

November 20, 2025 —E-RF+—H=+H 2,300,000 4,700,000

December 8, 2026 —E-XRFET-ANH - 12,000,000

2,300,000 16,700,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Fair values

Share options and stock appreciation rights

At December 31, 2017, the fair value of stock
appreciation rights outstanding is determined using the
Binomial Model. Their fair values and significant inputs
into the model are as follows:

21. B4 (&)
(d) DR{EE
BB IR RE & IR D 1L (B
RZE—+F+_A=+—8 K&
P IBERER A EERE —H
TEEEEANET  EAREBERE

ZRAZHIIRAT

2009 Grants 2010 Grants 2015 Grants
—EENE —E-EF —E-HF

B®F ®F B
Stock appreciation rights
B 47 18 B R

2017 2017 2017

—E—tF —E—tF —E—tF

Us$ Us$ HK$

EY EY Pt

Fair value per unit BEXTAAEE 0.00387 0.00066 0.55000
Share price at grant date BT BRE - - 0.95
Fair value per share at period end HARSR AL BEE 0.07 0.07 0.56
Exercise price TR 0.13 0.26 0.01
Volatility (%) AEER ) 40.82% 43.01% 62.63%
Dividend vyield (%) REE(BEHL) - - -
Annual risk-free rate (%) FEERRAME(EHL) 1.27% 1.31% 1.71%
Remaining term (year) FIEREAMR (5) 1.88 2.15 7.89
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

22. OTHER RESERVES 22. HitifE M
Repurchased Share Available-
shares held Currency hased Safety for-sale
bytrust  translation payment fund financial
(Note (al) reserve reserve reserve assets Others Total
Higir

EIERD e bl xd  WHHE

(M)  FEEE  XMER  EERE  oREE Et it

RVBO0D  RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBU00
ARBTT ARETL ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR

At January 1, 2016 RZE-RE-A-A (70,887) (114,786) 132,344 187,356 (24.857) (43,713) 65,457
Currency translation differences ~ JNEHTEES - [129976) = - - - [129976)
Change in fair value of avallable- I HESBEER L BRE

for-sale financial assets 28 (H12)

(Note 12) = - - - 18405 - 18405
Share of other comprehensive  SHEIRIEREABRHREN

income of investments A ARENHE

accounted for using the

equity method - = = = = 2,79 279
Employees stock option scheme ~ EE B E

—value of employee services  —(EERBEE = = 27330 - - - 27,990

— shares to settle SARs —RileRIMEEETET

under the Plan i 599 = - - - - 5%9
— shares transferred to the —EBLRBROHETE
Awarded Shares Grantees 6,707 = (6,707) - - - -

Shares purchased under Share  [Rf) REIEFEIFER D

Award Scheme (63,706) - - - - - (63,706)
Acquisition of additional interest ~ ESMREFAFER

in a subsidiary - - - - = (65,531) (65,531)
At December 31, 2016 WoR-AEtIAZt-B (028 QMTE) 15360 19I3 645D (0645 (143963
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

22. OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 22. Hhf#dE (&)
Repurchased Share Available-
shares held Currency based Safety for-sale
bytrust  translation payment fund financial
(Note (a]) reserve reserve reserve assets Others Total
ERER

EIR A e B 2 AftEE

(W)  FERE  xHER  BeRE  SHEE A #;

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB00  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARWTR ARBTR ARETR ARRTR ARETR

At January 1, 2017 R=E-t£-A-H (1272871 (244,762) 153,627 187,356 (6452)  (106,445) (143,963

Currency translation differences  SMEHEER - 166,660 - - -
Share of other comprehensive  SEIREREABRHREH
income of investment accounted  E iz AL (5

166,660

for using the equity method (3,758) (3,758)
Change in fair valug of available- A HESBEER DL BE
forsale financial assets (Note 12) 20 (3E12) - - - - 8,168 - 8168
Employees stock option scheme  E BB kiE:E
—value of employee senvices  —[EBREERE - - 20,158 - - - 20,158
— shares transferred to the —BRRRBRORE T
Awarded Shares Grantees (B3 (o))
(Note (a)) 94170 - (9,470) - - - -
At December 31, 2017 R-E-tE+-A=t-H (117,817) (81,860 164,315 187,356 1,716 (106,445) 47,265
Note: BisE
(a) Shares repurchased under Share Award Scheme (a) B L EE B B BERR (D
During the year ended December 31, 2017, 23,900,000 shares held in BE-_Z—+tFt+-_A=1+—HLFEHH
trust under the 2015 Share Award Scheme has been transferred to the A+ 2015 1n SRENETEIIE TR EARFBH
Share Award Grantees, including 2,300,000 shares held by trust on 4 % 814 23,900,000 A% & A8 8872 45 A% 1) 12 B
behalf of holder (2016: 4,700,000). As at December 31, 2017, the W F & HH2,300000REZEARE
shares held in trust under 2015 Share Award Scheme is 2,300,000 HH(ZZT—/"F :4,700,000) - HE=F
shares (December 31, 2016: 16,700,000). —tF+=—A=1+—8 ' 2015 p EE=t 2

TE T2 A MBS A 2,300,000 8%
(Z2—X"F+=A=+—8 : 16,700,000
f%) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23. EIEFTEH
2017 2016
—E—4E —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Deferred tax assets: RIEBIEEE ©
Deferred tax assets to be recovered RS 12 18 A 18 Y [0l B9 IE T
after more than 12 months HIBEE 334 40,590
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFREEE :
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled B 12l B 1B E R IELE
after more than 12 months MEAE (589,281) (66,401)
Deferred tax liabilities — net FEERBE — 558 (588,947) (25,811)
(a) Movements of deferred tax account (a) ELEFTEHRARSE
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETFIT
At January 1, H—HB—H (25,811) (114,087)
Exchange differences PE =58 15,338 (4,728)
Acquisition through business EEMERAIL N
combination (Note 37) (Ff5E37) (581,796) =
Tax charged to continuing BRNSELCE B
profit or loss (Note 32) TR (M7 32) (90,047) (31,854)
Tax charged to discontinued BRI IS EIE S TER
profit or loss - 64,876
Disposals of subsidiaries BE TR 93,369 59,982
At December 31, Rt=—A=+—~H (588,947) (25,811)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR (8

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

23. EIEFEH (&)

(b) The movement in deferred income tax assets (b) EZEFIEEEHEBNEE (R
and liabilities, (without taking into EZEHERTEE —BHER
consideration the offsetting of balances within )
the same tax jurisdiction)

Deferred income tax assets BEFREBHEE
Base
difference
in property,  Accelerated Asset
plant and tax  retirement Tax
equipment  depreciation  obligations losses Others Total
T8E -
VT BiE EE
ERRAZR MEHE RERK B8 Hit @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETn ARETR ARET:k
At January 1, 2016 R-E-AE-A-H = 4,350 10,015 431,480 23,128 468,973
(Charged)/credited to (BR)/ WansELs
continuing profit or loss B2 - (4,073) 170 81,988 (58) 78,027
Credited/(charged) to i/ (B RE L
discontinued profit or loss B - - 174 (39,150) (18,134) (57,110)
Disposals of subsidiaries RETAT = - (6,897) (279,521) (4,187) (290,605)
Exchange differences ERZR - - 390 16,736 604 17,730
At December 31, 2016 R=E-R"E+ZA=+-H = 217 3,852 211,533 1,363 217,015
Credited/(charged) to s/ (BR) R EEE
continuing profit or loss BRER 1463 56 8,202 (29,240) (170) (19,689)
Acquisition through PEAMHERMEN
business combination 27,374 - 730,116 - 3,421 760,911
Disposals of subsidiaries RETATA - - (1,516) - (220) (1,736)
Exchange differences EHZESE (724) - (19,283 - (90) 20,097)
At December 31, 2017 R-B-tF+=f=t-8 28113 3 7237 182,293 4294 936404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(b)

23. EIEFEH (&)

The movement in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities, (without taking into

(b) EEBREERBBENEH (R
FERERTHER -BHER

consideration the offsetting of balances within HEH) (&)
the same tax jurisdiction) (Continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFREHEE
Accelerated Fair value
tax gains of
depreciations  mining rights Others Total
BiE R
mERE AAEEANE Hith @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At January 1, 2016 RZE—~"E—-H-H (481,782) (101,278) = (583,060)
Charged to continuing profit BN B S IRRNER
or loss (109,881) = = (109,881)
Credited to discontinued WS AR HE B2 TE R
profit or loss 54,241 67,745 - 121,986
Disposals of subsidiaries BRETAA 313,580 37,007 - 350,687
Exchange differences b =% (18,984) (3,474) = (22,458)
At December 31, 2016 R-B-AE
+-A=+-AH (242,826) = - (242,826)
Charged to continuing profit BN B S RNRER
or loss (54,176) = (16,182) (70,358)
Acquisition through business EASFERAEM
combination (1,342,707 - - (1,342,707)
Disposals of subsidiaries RETFAA 95,105 - - 95,105
Exchange differences BN =% 35,411 - 24 35,435
At December 31, 2017 RZE—+&
+ZRA=+-H (1,509,193) = (16,158) (1,525,351)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(c)

Deferred income tax assets not recognised

23. EIEFEH (&)

(c) ARERELEFREBHREE

2017 2016
—B—tE  ZFAF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Tax losses and temporary difference 7R FE AT P15 45 E Y

EEMEREER 975,097 851,912
Deferred income tax assets AERRIRILEFTSEHEE
not recognised 243,774 212,978

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that the realization of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable.

Tax losses without recognition of deferred income tax
assets can be carried forward against future taxable
income. These losses amounting to RMB253.7 million
(2016: RMB228.1 million) will expire in 2021.

HRBABERAENEREER
BRSELEMEREENEE T
ARIBAR AT BE2E AR O R R FE AR B A
B IR A AR RE IS F s FEaR o

REERRIEFTIS I E E MR IGIE R
A AR R EATLATSHE - K
BiEeBEARB2237EET(Z
T—RF: AR¥K2281BET)H
RZTZ—F5H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLE 24, ERERARENE
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Trade payables FETERER 419,513 88,360
Less: non-current portion of trade payables i : 3ERENETBR X (26,529) (14,161)
Current T 392,984 74,199
(a) Aging analysis (a) BR¥ERZ AT
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Up to 6 months TiBB6EA 382,575 52,262
6 months—1 year 6EAZ=14 13,589 4,727
1-2 years 18226 6,202 8,184
2-3 years 2Z 34k 3,300 16,596
Over 3 years Z3F 13,847 6,591
419,513 88,360
(b) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following (b) BRESFEUATIIEKREN :
currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tE —T—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFT
RMB AR 129,303 87,940
uss$ E 1,305 420
C$ hn& 288,905 -
419,513 88,360

(c)

The fair values of trade and notes payables approximate
their carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

25. PROVISIONS, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 25. i EARKHMERE

LIABILITIES
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Asset retirement obligations (Note (a)) BEEEES (M @) 2,672,886 15,757
Interest payable FEST R B 101,526 82,477
Salary and welfare payable FERTE & RAEF| 53,149 22,810
Withholding and other tax payable RANA TR B B FE AR 57,532 46,601
Advance from customers TEUWAR K 548 -
Other payables (Note (e)) H b e~ 51038 (B aE (e) 453,268 120,163
3,338,909 287,808
Less: non-current portion of W IERBE S 2
— Asset retirement obligations — BEEERG (2,567,526) (15,757)
— Withholding tax payable — RN EF (52,741) (45,052)
— Interest payable — ERFE (44) =
(2,620,311) (60,809)
Current mE 718,598 226,999

(a) Movements of asset retirement obligations

(a) BEEREZBKEHIIROT :

2017 2016

—E—+H ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

At January 1, K—HA—H 15,757 46,716

Additional provision RRINE 206 1,354
Acquisitions through business S EHRAIE N

combination 2,704,135 -

Disposals of subsidiaries BEFAT (6,065) (34,486)

Accretion expenses 1{E & A 42,375 2,644

Settlement of obligations BEEERBEE (12,080) =

Exchange differences PE 3 =R (71,442) (471)

At December 31, R+—-—H=+—8” 2,672,886 15,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

25. PROVISIONS, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) At December 31, 2017, included in salary and welfare
payable was stock appreciation rights liabilities of
RMBO0.1 million (2016: RMB4.2 million) both for the
Group and the Company.

(c) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following

25. 4  AREEMEE (&)

(b)

(c)

R-F—tHF+-_A=+—HB [
N kEMNTEsAEEMEAR
ANENBRNIZERSER/ARE
0LIBET(ZZE—RF: AR¥4.2

e —

BEIT) °

FRESBIA T E® BB

currencies:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB AR 32,488 116,306
US$ ETT 520,687 170,616
C$ ik 2,781,253 -
HK$ B 4,481 886
3,338,909 287,808

(d) The fair values of provisions, accruals and other
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

(e) Included in other payables was an amount of RMB65.3

million which was secured over certain available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

26.

BORROWINGS 26. &R
2017 2016
—E—tE —TE—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
Current TE
— Senior notes (Note (a)) — BERER (i) 1,185,328 =
— Secured bank loans (Note (b)) — R ITER(HEE (b)) 260,045 104,000
— Other loans (Note (c)) — HAER () 83,638 -
1,529,011 104,000
Non-current R
— Senior notes (Note (a)) — BRER (i) 2,034,974 4,586,555
— Secured bank loans (Note (b)) — R ITER(MEE (b)) 610,289 =
— Other loans (Note (c)) — HAER (M) 1,875,194 -
4,520,457 4,586,555
6,049,468 4,690,555
Note: BfsE -
(a) Senior Notes (a) BEER
Coupon rate Due date 2017 2016
EEAZE  FHA —EB—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBET T
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________}
2018 Notes 2018 E#& 6.875% February 6, 2018 —ZE-N\F=ZAH 1,185,328 1,363,390
2019 Notes 2019 Zi& 7.5%  April 25, 2019 —E-hFWNA=+HH 2,034,974 3,223,165
3,220,302 4,586,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

(a)

(Continued)

Senior Notes (Continued)

All Senior Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company repurchased
a portion of the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes pursuant to a tender offer
made to its note holders. The repurchase price paid to 2018 and 2019
Notes validly tendered and accepted by the Company was US$117.6
million (equivalent to RMB791.2 million). A gain of RMB388.2 million
arose by comparing the consideration paid to the carrying amount of
this portion of 2018 and 2019 Notes (Note 29).

On July 13, 2017, 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes repurchased by the
Company were cancelled. As at the date of cancellation, US$181.7
million (equivalent to RMB1,187.4 million) and US$315.9 (equivalent to
RMB2,064.3 million) in aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Notes
and 2019 Notes remain outstanding.

On February 6, 2018, the Company repaid in full the 2018 Notes remain
outstanding upon its maturity as described in Note 41.

Secured bank loans

On September 29, 2017, Canlin, the Purchaser, entered into a senior
secured revolving facility (the “Secured Revolving Facility”) agreement
with a syndicate of banks in an aggregate amount of C$210.0 million
(equivalent to RMB1,121.8 million) to finance the Acquisition as
described in Note 37. The credit facility consists of a C$185.0 million
revolving syndicated facility and a C$25.0 million revolving operating
facility.

Subsequently, on December 29, 2017, Canlin entered into an amending
agreement of the credit facility to repay the principal amount
outstanding under the syndicated facility by an amount no less than
C$50.0 million, and to reduce the revolving syndicate facility by C$25.0
million, on or before May 31, 2018. After such reduction, the credit
facility will consist of a C$160.0 million revolving syndicated facility and
C$25.0 million revolving operating facility.
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26. AR (&)

BT :

(a)

(b)

(&)

BERER (F)

BRZIEHC I E S
£ e

RBMBRAF

HE_Z—+tF+-_A=1t—HALEE &
RRIBBEAREZAE AEEOKEZLOE
BT HH2018ZEM20198E - A AAE
IR W Z M 2018 RIEFN 2019 R IR/ B
BEHEAXTINIABT(ZEBRARE
7912B &Jt) B Y EE2018F &M
2019 ZBNEEEANEZERRT REAR
#388.2 B &L (MizE29) °

—E—tELA+=0 AQTIE I
B8 792018 ZIZ M 20192 4k - E i B IK
EX AN EEEEAEAEITISIIA
BT(EBRARK1,1874EE7T) 2018
EERNFSRNEEEEEEAZE 31598
BT (ZEERARE20643FET)K2019
SWRIMEINGA -

RZZF-A\F-AKA  ARAEZHAE
2EEER2018FEMANREERTE - &
B R4 -

HEIRRITIEK
MRZZT—tFAAZ+NEB - Canlin([EF )

H—RBTHERT TRLSEAMNE210.0
BETHEREERERER((EERER
BEF) (ZERARE1,121.8587T) * AN
BUERKEREES  ABFRKZEI7TH
e WEAEREENE185.08 BITHIfE
REEERMME 20T ETHRBRELE

-
e

R=ZZT—+F+=A=1+NB  Canlink&
FA T EREROERGE  HEFR=F
—\FHA=+—BEEREEFETKRE
EASELNES0.0E &5t - RER DA B
RIBEEREENE 2068 - FEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

Secured bank loans (Continued)

The revolving period of the Secured Revolving Facility will end on
September 28, 2018 and can be extended by an additional 364 days at
the request of Canlin subject to the approval by the syndicate of banks.
If the Secured Revolving Facility is not extended, the aggregate principal
amount will convert into a one year non-revolving term loan and any
remaining undrawn portion will be cancelled.

The Secured Revolving Facility provides advances by way of Canadian
prime rate loans, US base rate loans, LIBOR based loans and bankers’
acceptances. For the year ended December 31, 2017, Canlin drew loans
bearing interest at 4.45%, being the Canadian prime rate plus applicable
margins determined by Canlin’s certain financial ratios when drawn
down.

The Secured Revolving Facility is secured by a demand debenture of
C$375 million providing for a first ranking security interest and floating
charge over all the assets and properties of Canlin.

The Secured Revolving Facility contains standard commercial covenants
for credit facilities of this nature and does not have any financial
covenants. Breach of any covenant will result in default which, if not
remedied within specified time, all principal and interest obligations on
the Secured Revolving Facility will become due and payable
immediately.

The total interest and fees on the Secured Revolving Facility was C$3.4
million (equivalent to RMB17.7 million) and charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Other loans

Other loans were borrowed from third parties to fund the general
working capital requirement of the Group. The loans bear effective

interest rate ranging from 7.70% to 30.00% per annum.

As of December 31, 2017, the other loans were secured as set below:

. Share charge over the entire issued share capital of Gobi held by
the Group

o Pledge over the Group's interest under the Daan PSC

. Pledge over the Group's account receivable amounting to

RMB79.9 million under the Daan PSC

26. f&K

BT -

(b)

(&)
(90
AR TR ()

BERBREFNERBRR_ZF—-N\FAH
AZ+N\BE - ECanlin W EKT » ££5R
EHLE - BERAERICAK - MRBEREE
HEAKEY - BERBEREFNA LA
HEA—FRIHNERROEHEN - A
ZEREARIZRED 1 2 JPRBUH

EERBRERBANEXNESHE X6
EEFRER - MBERTHEFBERFRER
MPTRASEZEFARBEBEAR - BE=
T—+tF+=ZA=+—HIFE ' Canliniz
WMTER EFEE445%  BIINIEARRKE
HFIER 0 _E Canlin 45 5E B9 81 75 Lt R 7 E #9 i8
FARFIE -

ZERRBREFERLEANMEIS0E
BILE —FMERAGE L AA Canlin K FT A
BEMYEMERZEIERER -

BERBREEEEESEREEEFERE
B AR 7 25 IR R BOR B AT B A 46K - 20
REHFEAERERRARY - BRRE
REEEFNMANASMFSKEHILH
SIEMER - BRI

BHE_ZT—+HF+-A=+—BILFE &
EREREZRNINEMERSEAMEI4
BEBT(EERARB177BET) LER
BRI

HA &R
Hife R RA S BN —REEFTHRREHEE
T HMERNEBFERMNKAB7.70% =

30.00% -

HE-_ZT—+tF+A=1+—8  HipfEX
TR TSR -

U REERA N KEE 2 FARA

° AEBEAZEMRD KA FTAERE

RER
. AEBARZERDKARTHARKE
SERT79.9B BTN RERFIESTE

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

26. fa (%)

Note: (Continued) s : (&)
(c) Other loans (Continued) (c) E gk (5)
Share charge over certain issued share capital of certain . ARKESERENMEBEENFRAIHN
subsidiaries of the Group used for investment holding purpose 2 ERRR AR
Share charge over certain common shares of Canlin held by the . AREEEA B Canlin B 1TH D L@
Group AR AR AR
. Personal guarantees provided by Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Ms. Zhao . RIGFRSC A BIIR K+ RETHE
Jiangbo and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei for certain loan facilities FRAEEBS ERREBAER
borrowed by the Group
3 Share charge over certain issued share capital in Journey held by . A& E#FE R Journey & BBAE AR
the Group
. Share charge over certain issued share capital in PetroBroad held . 7R & B# A #) PetroBroad A 2 ZBAR 7R
by the Group
. Account charge over certain accounts of the Group to ensure . REBRBOERES - AUERE
the payment of interest and principal when due RBIBMNAE LA R
(d) Effective interest rate and estimated fair value (d) BERFEA RGO AREER
Secured
bank loans Senior Notes  Other loans Total
KHRITER BEERE H At &K #Et
Effective interest rate: EERF®
As at December 31, 2017 R-ZT—+F+_A=+—H 8.86% 7.70% 4.45%
4.45% t0 8.99% to 30.00% t0 30.00%
As at December 31, 2016 R-ZT—XRE+-_A=+—H 8.86% 4.79%
4.79% t0 8.99% - t0 8.99%
Estimated fair value: BT AREE -
As at December 31, 2017 R-_E—+&+-_A=+—H 870,334 2,616,849 1,958,832 5,446,015
As at December 31, 2016 R-ZT—XRFE+-_A=+—8H 104,000 3,486,007 - 3,590,007

BEZENAABERSENEETNEE S
RBABERREME - TREBRAREE
F—ER : MEFRTERRERERFIER
445%  UHBRAABEEER : Ef
IR E R ERFE7.70% £30.00% * I
BEBRAABEE=ZER -

The fair values of Senior Notes are based on its closing prices quoted
on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and are within level 1
of the fair value hierarchy; The secured bank loans are based on the
borrowing rate at 4.45% and within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy;
The secured loans from other parties are based on the borrowing rate
from 7.70% to 30.00% and within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

EEREHEEHEET - BTHHEED
D -

The Senior Notes which bear fixed interest rates are not subject to
interest rate changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

(e)

(Continued)

The Group's borrowings were repayable as follows:

26. B (&)

BfeE - ()

(e)

AEENBRFREENSTN TR

Secured bank loans Senior Notes Other loans
EHFBITER BEES HtifE®
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
—E—tF —E—REF —E—tF —E—RE —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT ARMT T AREFT AR®T
Within 1 year 1 AR 260,045 104,000 1,185,328 - 83,638
Between 1 and 2 years 1824 - - 2,034,974 1,363,390 932,185
Between 2 and b years 2E5F 610,289 - - 3,223,165 943,009
870,334 104,000 3,220,302 4,586,555 1,958,832

Carrying amounts are denominated in the following currencies: (f) BRESENNTEE RBAL -
2017 2016
—E—tF = —RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARKTT
RMB AR - 104,000
USs$ EV 4,780,283 4,586,555
C$ s 870,334 -
HKS$ e 398,851 =
6,049,468 4,690,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

27. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 27. Ht(BX) K8 — B8
2017 2016
—E—4E —TE—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETIT
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary BETRAAFE 46,318 526,132
Provisions for receivable STHERE W TR B B AR A 1 (730,116) (252,756)
Gains arising from acquisition Lo e it o 1D SE EE AR UM AR
of an associate - 29,798
Gains/(losses) on financial instruments SHMT ARG (38K) 45,737 (19,595)
Others (14,456) 14,270
(652,517) 297,849
28. TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES 28. BiIE (FTBBIBRIM)
2017 2016
—ZT—+tfF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
PRC:
Urban construction tax and WER BB M NE
education surcharge 3,488 2,839
Others 91 96
3,579 2,935
Corporate and other segments: HEES R A 35 -
Withholding tax and others (Note) RANABFR B E A (FI5E) 10,635 10,479
14,214 13,414
Note: BdaE -

During the year, all (2017: all) withholding tax is related to interest expenses
arising from the intra-group loans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

29. FINANCE COSTS — NET 29. MIKER — FE
2017 2016
—E—tE —TE—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Finance income B WA
Interest income on deposits B YA 49,248 17,490
Finance costs MBER
Interest expenses at coupon e &R (GEREmRFZERM
rates/bank rates IRITFEAZH) (427,886) (369,061)
Amortisation of discounts B 2R 3 6 (127,505) (52,066)
Gains on repurchase of Senior EBEEZEN KRG
Notes (Note 26) (P 5E26) 388,229 41,5692
Other fees HEHmEMA (25,387) (558)
(192,549) (380,093)
Exchange gains/(losses), net (Note 35) PE 5 Uzt (185k) » JFEE (Ff7E35) 4,552 (23,858)
(187,997) (403,951)
Finance costs — net BRER — FE (138,749) (386,461)

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

30. EXPENSES BY NATURE 30. #MELSENER
2017 2016
—E—4E —ZE—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Employee benefit expense (Note 31) B TH MK (F15E31) 206,510 133,291
Depreciation and depletion of property, THE ITHEEENRER

plant and equipment (Note 6) P (FI3E6) 484,396 356,873
Exploration and evaluation expense HEMEEEHEBAER

(Note 6) (PfF5EB) 10,737 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 7) #fZ& &= #85 (3£ 7) 5,467 6,987
Impairment charges on property, TEE - TREEERREERL

plant and equipment (Note 6) (FF&E6) - 153,288
Impairment charges on investments B PR ERE

in associates (Note 8) (FF&E8) 33,524 81,339
Impairment charges on available-for-sale  AJ{t & 4 & & R ERE

financial assets (Note 12) (FFEE12) 2,000 =
Impairment charges on intangible EF A ERER %

assets (Note 7) (M$3E7) - 40
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B B 3 A
— audit and audit related services — Fet MEHEBRT 7,183 4,655
— service in connection with — UG BE AR RE AR 7S

the Acquisition 8,318 -

— non-audit services — BT RS 665 604
Operating lease expenses LEHEER 15,802 11,264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

31. ETHMMRA

2017 2016
—ZE—tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREFT
Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - ¥He loER 158,028 92,959
Housing subsidiaries F ek 2,137 2,166
Share options — value of employee BE — EERKER
services (Note 22) (MF5E22) 16,491 18,242
Awarded shares — value of employee RERD — EERGEE
services (Note 22) (PfF5E22) 3,667 9,748
Stock appreciation rights expenses %D G (ERE & A (4,238) (7,414)
Pension costs — defined contribution BAREKA — RERTTE
plans (Note) (BfF3E) 15,639 11,106
Welfare and other expenses wAEEMER 14,786 6,484
206,510 133,291
Note: BfsE -

The Group is required to make specific contributions to the state-sponsored

retirement plan at a rate of 20% (2016: 20%) of the specified salaries of the

qualified employees in the PRC. The PRC government is responsible for the

pension liability to the retired employees.

Post-employment benefit plans provided by Canlin are formal or informal

arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits for

one or more employees.

AEETRAERPHEEIRELEN20% (=T
— " 20%) MVERIAS N T BISRARE OB TR
a8 - PEBRNARZFRREINRELRE -

Canlin B s &9 B B & 18 A 5H B R AR IR IERX HIFER
Mz AABAR—RUZHE TIRHEMBERRE

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 31.

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

ETHMAA (&)

(a)

hEERSHEAL
AEBHZ-_ZT—+HFR-_FT—X
F+-A=t+—RHItFEERELES
FALTHT :

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—REF

Directors 2=
Non-director individual FES=ALT

The details of emoluments paid to the five highest
individuals who were Directors of the Company during
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 have
been included in Note 39. Details of emoluments paid
to the remaining non-director individual are as follows:

ARARE-T—LER-T X
FH=A=T—BILFEEMNES
BEFALTHARDVEEOMHS
FEIN B ERTEES0SIR - BT

FEZALTHENSFFBOT ¢
2017 2016
Bt —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Salaries and allowances e RER 4,397 3,267
Discretionary bonuses BiERe 1,244 =

Pension costs — defined BREKA — BT
contribution plans R1FeT 3 145 -
House allowance and other welfare = f R R EMAE T 183 =
Awarded shares expenses EENIE (7 B A 3,667 -
Share options expenses EREER 9,839 =
19,475 3,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

31. ETHMAAE (&)

TEBREHAL(E)
HEHFMETIEARENR -

Number of individuals
AE”
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTRF

Emolument bands (in HK$) N E (BT)

HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 3,000,001 7% 7T — 4,500,000 7% 7T

=

HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 87T — 5,000,000 7% 7T 2 1
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 #7T — 6,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 7T — 7,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$9,500,001 — HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 7T — 10,000,000 % 7T 1 1
HK$10,000,001 — HK$15,000,000 10,000,001 #7T — 15,000,000 77T 1 1

5 5

During the financial year ended December 31, 2017, (b)
none of the directors of the Company and the five
highest paid individuals:

(i) received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement upon joining the Group;

(i) waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments.

REBEE-_FT—tF+-_A=+—H
IEWF B FESE - BERRAF
EXXAEREHALERTIZ
=

() WEEAMEERIMARSE
[y ) B2 R

(i)  HEHFABHEEM R -

MI BERIZR B R D A / 2017 53R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)

(c) Senior management remuneration band (c)

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for
the year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in Note
39. The senior management’s remuneration for the year
ended December 31, 2017 is within the following

bands:

31. ETHMAAE (&)

EREEEFHREASHESR
]l

EEEHE-_T—+tF+=A
=+ — B FENFIEBER N
H39 - BE-_ZT—tHF+ A
=+ HLEFERREEABNT
EHEEE T

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF

Emolument bands (HK$) N E (BT)

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T — 1,500,000 78 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T — 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7T — 3,000,000 /& 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T — 3,500,000 78 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 77T — 5,000,000 78 7T 2 -
5 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 32. FIBHER
2017 2016
—E—tE —ZE—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥BTRT AR¥TET

Current income tax B HARTS R (2,867) 115,312
Deferred income tax (Note 23) EIEFTS R (FiaE23) 90,047 31,854
87,180 147,166

(a) Taxation has been calculated on the estimated (a) REIEBRANFEAFTERT A ER
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation G EER A EE LSBT
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. EBRRAIBITHE -

(b)  The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the (o) AEEFBRTAIFBEARIE - EHiE
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted FA & fF 2 B8 F) B 38 AR /0 39 A
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated EMEEENERHEENEZE W
entities as follows: ™

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT AR®ETET

Loss before income tax BREF B F A EE (1,012,296) (457,981)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EZEBBREROAERER
applicable to profits in the S i R e+ E R R IR
respective countries 50,356 (90,440)
Tax effects of: MIAFZ
— Income not subject to tax — BEHEFIA (205) (622)
— Expenses not deductible — PRI H
for tax purposes 4,026 10,641
— Tax losses and temporary differences — RIERIEIE TS EEH
for which no deferred income BiSEE R EER
tax asset was recognised 30,796 163,027
— Adjustments in respect of prior years — LABTSE [ % 2,207 757
— Others — HAh - 63,803
Tax charge FuELZH 87,180 147,166
The weighted average effective tax rate was negative 9% HE_Z—+HF+-_A=1T—HILFE
(2016: negative 32%) for the year ended December 31, 2017. ZMEFHBUREREI% (ZE—N

F ESZ%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

33. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not propose dividend for the year (2016: Nil).

34. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

33. &K

ARAEBFREAFENRERF(=ZF
—NEFCE) -

34. BREE
(a) ER
HEAFRWEERIERARRMEH

BT - BIAREENE %1
BRI TR 3 -

2017 2016
—E—4E —ZE—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Loss for the year attribute to owners ~ ZRERRQ T FTE & E(GEE

of the company arising from: M EE
— Continuing operations — BERE (1,099,476) (605,367)
— Discontinued operations — R - (717,086)
Weighted average number of Ik HEmiREE (TR

ordinary shares (thousands)

2,813,638 2,860,410

Basic loss per share AERGKEE
— Continuing operations — FELE (0.39) (0.21)
— Discontinued operations — R - (0.25)
(0.39) (0.46)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

34. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share
options outstanding which are potentially dilutive. A
calculation is performed to determine the number of
ordinary shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company's shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the
weighted average number of outstanding share options.
The number of ordinary shares calculated above for
basic earnings per share is increased by the number of
ordinary shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options at the date later of
beginning of the relevant period or the date of issue.

34. SREE(E)
(b) R

FhmBR SRR AWML
BRRELRE  EEBDETE
B INE T HBEE - AREH
ARTEZBERELBBERER
FE - ENMBAHE - RIBRITEER
R IO BAHI R B B
BE BEEAREERAABEE
ARB RO FEFEETRE)BA
M ERAREE - A EEARERI
@A ERNEERREE - FL
BRRBIEN AR PR R RER
BITAME 2 P& A BHETER
EHMMBITOLRRHSE -

2017 2016
—2—tF —ERF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Loss attributable to owners of the ARETgRmEKER
Company used to determine RARIFTEENERK
diluted earnings per share:
— Continuing operations — BFERE (1,099,476) (605,367)
— Discontinued operations — R P - (717,086)
Weighted average number of IEESEERER (TR)
ordinary shares (thousands) 2,813,638 2,860,410
Weighted average number of diluted  AztE SRR R
potential ordinary shares for diluted BT B I I E (T AR)
earnings per share (thousands) 2,813,638 2,860,410
Diluted loss per share WEEREE
— Continuing operations — BELE (0.39) (0.21)
— Discontinued operations — R b - (0.25)
(0.39) (0.46)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FIE RN ()

35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

. RETHELENRS

Year ended December 31,

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Loss before income tax FREFSEI AT AR (1,012,296) (457,981)
Adjustments for: HEE
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 27) R& F A &l 15 (FtzE27) (46,318) (526,132)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation  #T& - 77 M # 8 489,863 363,860
Interest expenses — net (Note 29) FAEZ M (FEE29) 143,301 362,603
Provision for receivable FTIRIEMUE R A 730,116 252,756
Impairment loss SE 1B 35,524 234,667
Share of (losses)/gains from investments Z B &R ER
in associates (E518) /FEm7a 63,023 (35,682)
Share of losses from investments in ZEAREEKREN
joint ventures EEn %R - 3,382
Gain arising from acquisition IR D E AR
of an associate U %5 - (29,798)
Share-based payment to employees FERREET 8 T B B IRFSA AR 20,158 27,990
Exchange (gains)/losses (Note 29) b i 182 (M9EE29) (4,552) 23,858
Gains/(losses) on derivative TEEmIA
financial instruments Cr&INE-ES (52,390) 19,595
Exploration and evaluation expense HEETEEEHNBEER 10,737 -
Others Hith 23,339 (14,270)
Changes in working capital: LIEESEE
Trade and other receivable JRE UK e L Ath i WS R (18,032) (123,015)
Trade and other payable FEA R ELAb FE S 3R 76,722 65,516
Inventories yeacy 6,185 (4,607)
Cash generated from operations CEEARIR S 465,380 162,742
Cash flows from operating activities %“Eiﬁ&iﬂﬁiﬂﬁmg
Cash generated from continuing BEEEENRS
operations 465,380 162,742
Interest paid EATFE (422,038) (382,997)
Income tax paid BEATPTEH (2,401) (69,567)
Cash generated from/(used in) RIS EL S
discontinued operations (ER)RRE - (81,057)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KESTEIESE(EH) M
operating activities HEEE 40,941 (370,879)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING 3. KRETHELENERS (E)
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the BEE DT TR A BN DA RESE
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. HIF S aEaNES o
2017 2016
—E—tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETIT
Net debt FAE
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEY 132,172 904,961
Liquid investments mENRE 111,228 -
Borrowings — repayable within B — —FUAREE
one year (including overdraft) (BEELL5E) (1,529,011) (104,000)
Borrowings — repayable after one year  f&3k — —F LA HEE (4,520,457) (4,586,555)
Net debt FAE (5,806,068) (3,785,595)
Cash and liquid investments B EnaikE 243,400 904,961
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEE— BEMNX (6,049,468) (4,690,555)
Net debt AR (5,806,068) (3,785,594)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HittEE METHELENEE
Cash and Borrow Borrow
cash Liquid  due within due after
equivalent investments 1year 1 year Total
Bek —&EHR —FLE
REZEY REBRE S B st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR¥®Tn AR¥Trn AR¥Tr ARETx
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Net debt FaE
At January 1, 2017 R-=—t&-F—H 904,961 - (104,000) (4,586,555) (3,785,594)
Cash flows ReR (757589) 134609  (154,560)  (1,876,228)  (2,653,768)
Foreign exchange adjustments  SMEITE = 2 {% (15,200) (18,452) 78,819 139,091 184,258
Other non-cash movements ~ Ef3EIR S IEEE) - (4,929) (1,349,270 1,803,235 449,036
At December 31, 2017 N-B—+t&
+=-HA=+-—-H 132,172 111,228 (1,529,011) (4,520,457) (5,806,068)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 36. AHXBERREFAMR
(a) Commitments (a) &7
(i) Capital commitments for the purchase of i) BELAHE r - IHERXREZ
property, plant and equipment EARMAEEE

As at December 31,

R+=—HA=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Authorised by the Board of EESCHEEREL
Directors but not contracted for 89,856 131,563
Contracted but not provided for BENEREE 121,692 =
211,548 131,563
(i) Operating lease commitments (i) REFEHEE
The Group has operating lease commitments AEBEREKLEHE B A=
related to its non-cancellable operating leases for HEMES T RENLEE
offices and vehicle. The future aggregate M &E#H - LKEHEEBETH
minimum lease payments under these operating RIR KA E R A R a0
leases are as follows: s
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+—A~
2017 2016
—E—4E —E—NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Less than 1 year PR—&F 25,791 8,846
Within 1-2 years —ZEWF 9,826 4,235
Within 2-5 years S saaE 3,177 472
Over 5 years RELE 811 =

39,605 138,658
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR (8

36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(Continued)

36. AHBERIBEME (F)

(a) Commitments (Continued) (a) &z (&)
(iii) Firm transportation commitments (iii) 2 FE&AE
The Group has firm transportation commitments REBFERNRER AR
which are pipeline transportation commitments HAEE =5 KT EE R
with third parties. The future aggregate minimum oo EIEIB A N ARK
payments under these pipeline transportation are RIEBNFEINAOT :
as follows:
As at
December 31,
R
+=ZHBA=+—H
2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AR®Tx
Less than 1 year PR —5F 108,696
Within 1-2 years —EMF 87,827
Within 2-5 years —ZEhEF 139,867
Over b years HEMNE 13,615
350,005
(b) HEEE

(b) Contingencies

The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of claims
or other legal procedures arising in its ordinary course
of business from time to time. As at December 31,
2017, the directors of the Company did not anticipate
that any material liabilities will arise from the contingent
liabilities other than those provided for in the financial

statements.

AEEEARRGTRME R AR
REFEMEZRFHBNLA R
E-R-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—
B ARREFEHMRENMBR
RPBEN  TEFEEAREAE
BEKNERABNER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a)

Summary of the Acquisition

On September 29, 2017, the Group acquired 100% of
the partnership interests of CQ Energy for a purchase
consideration of approximately C$699.4 million
(equivalent to RMB3,735.9 million) from two
independent vendors. The CQ Energy owns a diverse
base of producing, reserve and infrastructure assets
located throughout Alberta, Saskatchewan and British
Columbia in Canada. As a result of the acquisition, the
group is expected to increase its presence in its North
American segment.

The total purchase consideration was paid in cash to the
vendors upon completion of the Acquisition. The
purchase consideration was financed by the cash
proceeds from: (1) the issuance of CPS of RMB1,067.6.
million by Canlin as described in Note 14; (2) net cash
proceeds of the Secured Revolving Facility provided by
a syndicate banks of RMB1,068.4 million to Canlin as
described in Note 26 (b); (3) net cash proceeds from
internal resources and other general borrowings
undertaken by the Company.

Upon completion, a goodwill of C$135.6 million
(equivalent to RMB724.3 million) arose from the
acquisition, attributable to acquired customer base and
the synergy expected from the integration of the
Group’s commercial and production resources in North
America. None of the goodwill recognised is expected
to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for CQ Energy, the fair value of assets acquired,
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.
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37. o¥ESH

(a)

WiEERER

R=_F—tFNLA=-1+NB &&
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Energy100% & ##m - WHEHE
HAEMEERIEET(EBRA
K#3,735.98 &7t) ° CQ Energy
HEEMRME A AES @ EE
BOBEMTIET ML EE A
B REMEARREEE - W
& - AEEBEEIEMEEILES
B TG HAL ©

EWETRA  AREERRBRES
FEAZHGEE - WEEEBEN
TEIBBBRERS - ()AME14F0
i+ Canlin 377 ] 824848 5o B FT 1S
FIEEHEAEARE10676BETT
(2) 4P FE 26 (b) Bl - FRER B 42
% Canlin 5 FEREIR E TS A
CHEOBARKE1,06848 &L
QBHEARRRENNIE S ME
SRS 5RIH ©

INEE R R - AR EEN R E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 37. DESG(E)
(a) Summary of the Acquisition (Continued) (a) WEBEEEHS(E)
RMB’000

AREFIT
Total consideration g 3,735,911
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets TARRANBEEEENRKIESSE

acquired and liabilities assumed KRR

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFSEEY 178,905
Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) TEpEE - TR M &4 (FisE6) 6,202,062
Current income tax liabilities BHFEHAaE (50,641)
Deferred income tax liabilities EESHAE (5681,796)
Trade and other receivables P U R L At JE LR 320,753
Trade and other payables FEAS K B b B A5 3R (3,057,634)
Total identifiable net assets RRFEERT 3,011,649
Goodwill (Note 7) 2 (fEE7) 724,262
There were no acquisition in the year ended December RZE—R"F+_A=+—HILHF
31, 2016. B miEEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b)

Purchase consideration — cash outflow

37. EEH (&)

WEEHE - RERH

As at
December 31,
n
+=ZA=+—8H
2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARETR
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, W T A RIMIR SR
net of cash acquired FrEVB IR & 558
Cash consideration B E(E 3,735,911
Less: Balances acquired B PTIER AV ERER
Cash B4 (178,905)
3,557,006

Acquisition-related costs of RMB34.0 million have been
charged to general and administrative expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2017.

The fair value of trade and other receivables is C$60.0
million (equivalent to RMB320.7 million) and includes
trade receivables with a fair value of C$44.6 million
(equivalent to RMB238.2 million). The gross contractual
amount for trade receivables due is C$48.8 million
(equivalent to RMB260.7 million), of which C$4.2 million
(equivalent to RMB22.2 million) is expected to be
uncollectible.

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income since September 29, 2017
contributed by Canlin Energy Corporation was C$89.3
million (equivalent to RMB456.4 million) and also
contributed loss of C$10.7 million (equivalent to
RMB55.7 million) over the same period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEITIE KM ()

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BEEARRS
The Group is controlled by Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL"), AR £ [E % Far East Energy Limited (JA T
which owns 48.13% of the Company’s shares and is also the 978 [FEEL)) B4l - FEELEEBE AR
ultimate parent company of the Group. FEEL is a limited AIMRARE) 48.13% » W H R AREBHHE

AR FEELA—REBBZMHOAR
EEQR HEKXEHABRERIEL
ISR ERBIRZT (RtEZ
BB - AT [RAAD o

liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate
benefit owners are Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Mr. Zhao Jiangwei and
Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang"”, Mr. Zhang's spouse).

(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a)
statements, the following transactions were carried out

with related parties:

B T BT RS E At J7 PRI R S
HEAB AR ZIIRITE ¢

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFIT
Transactions with PSC partners HERIBRERABHENRS
Global Oil Corporation (“GOC") IRICA
— Cash receipts from the PSCs — BEERIKERAE
received by the Group on LﬁTEE W ER Y
GOC's behalf HIA 74,903 54,161
— Advances to GOC = ?EHE&ITE/E A (41,319) (82,638)
— Repayment received from GOC — WEERE RS - 27,546
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred — BEEMSKERNKEK
on GOC's behalf RO BN EEEA (25,699) (21,087)
— Deposit paid on GOC's behalf 1&5&13‘6,&35&1‘ LB AT
[RBRIRE S (20) =
PetroChina MR
— Sales to PetroChina — HH A HANEERE 652,977 520,264
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred — BREBEERDKAERREKF
on PetroChina’s behalf AHEFYNEESER (179,909) (181,908)
Transactions with joint ventures HEZELENRS
SGE FURIE B
— Shareholder’s loan to SGE — RHFHRIAR WREER - (24,341)
Transactions with Associates HBFECENRS
— Accrued interest income from — JR4t T PBV MRS R ERFT
shareholder’s loan to PBV EANFEWMA 39,536 =
— Shareholder’s loan to PetroBroad — IRt % PetroBroad A& 2R
B (20,227) -
— Payment received from PetroBroad — U % PetroBroad B 20,227 =
— Investment in PetroBroad — ¥fPetroBroad FJ1% & (33,524) =
Other transactions HiR 5
Issuance of convertible preferred — [A CCGRF Gastown Limited
shares to CCGRF Gastown Limited 1T A EHA(E SR
(Note 14) (H=E14) 889,688 -
Standby fee to CCGRF Gastown — J&{F CCGRF Gastown
Limited Limited ZHE & 35,366 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Inaddition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following transactions were carried out
with related parties: (Continued)

38. MBS RS (&)

(@) BT MBmREMIETPTRESN
HEAE TR ZIIRMT - (&)

2017 2016
—E—-+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTRT

Transactions with controlling BER DT RAER A TER
shareholder of the Company’s BRJFAQATDRAKERAT

ultimate holding company and/or ERBRENBEAT ATH

a company/person related to the R5(*)
controlling shareholder of the

Company'’s ultimate holding

company (¥*)

— Purchase for oilfield services — BB EEHFRS (60,809) (70,015)
— Rental of vehicles and — RENEEMNHE

office premises (948) (946)
— Individual loan from Mrs. Zhang — RRABAEK 16,714 =
@ All amounts disclosed above re-presented gross amount = AR BENSEARNEETFAR(E

transacted between the Group’s subsidiaries, acting as operator
for Daan, and Moliging with Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development
Company and its subsidiaries, and Wide Reliance (Hong Kong)
Limited which are controlled by Mrs. Zhang. Besides, individual
loan was entered between the Company and Mrs. Zhang.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. B AR5 (&)

(b) Year-end balances with related parties are summarised M T R S FRBRERELNT

(b)

as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZEXF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETFIT
Included in ‘trade and other [EEWREMmERR] B :
receivables’:
Trade receivables from PSC partner ERERSKERBHEE SHHIE 79,874 94,651
Other receivables from PSC partners  Efth E U ZE fh 0 & RIE IR 205,757 205,837
Other receivables from Palaeontol B.V  E{th &% Palaeontol B.V FIE 112,764 112,781
Shareholder loans granted to % ¥ Palaeontol B.V AR &K
Palaeontol B.V 813,731 823,217
Other receivables from companies H A fE U SE AR BB ARIE R T
controlled by the controlling PERR AR R A Il ) A Rl HY RIE
shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company 1,393 19,365
1,213,519 1,255,851
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFIT
Included in ‘trade and other [ REMESTR] B :
payables”:
Trade payables to companies FEART SEAN R B S 445 B 75 12 AR
controlled by the controlling FRERIEH MR R E S IR
shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company 33,753 7,054
Standby fee to CCGRF Gastown &1 CCGRF Gastown
Limited Limited ZH: & 35,366 =
Others Hi 44 5,550
69,163 12,604
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Year-end balances with related parties are summarised
as follows: (Continued)

Other receivables from PSC partners represent
advances to GOC and PetroChina mainly from cash
receipts received by the Group on the behalf of GOC
and expenditures incurred from and for the respective
PSCs by the Group on the behalf of GOC and
PetroChina, respectively.

Trade payables to companies controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate
holding company represent payables for oilfield related
services from Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development
Company and its subsidiaries, Songyuan Guotai
Petroleum Technology Service Company and Jilin
Guotai Drilling Engineering Technology Service
Company.

At December 31, 2017, all (2016: all) cash call balances
are interest-free and unsecured, and the balances of
shareholders’ loans are unsecured, carrying nominal
interest rate of ranging from 4.9% to 11.9% per annum
(2016: 4.9% to 11.9%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. BBt SR 5H (&)

(c)

(d)

Loan to related parties

(c) TEBIER

2017 2016
—EB—tF ZT—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Loan to associates: FTHECEEN
At January 1/recognition date R—A—RB H&NREIZAH 823,217 809,472
— Addition —m 20,227 3,857
— Repayment — & (20,227) =
— Interest charged — F2WA 611 1,145
— Interest receivable — FEWF B 38,925 2,807
— Exchange (losses)/gains —EREE (49,022) 5,936
At December 31, N+=—B=+—8 813,731 823,217
The shareholders loans to associate as at December 31, R-E—+F+-_A=+—H &
2017 is unsecured, carries interest ranging from 4.9% EERTHECENBREERSE
to 11.9% per annum (2016: 4.9% to 11.9%). EHER  BRFHEEHERL4.9%
£2119%(ZF —RNF:149% %
11.9%) °
Loan from related parties (d) REHLEEER
2017
—E—t5F
RMB’000
ARETT
Loan from related parties ¥ BEE 5 fE X
At January 1, n—A—H -
— Addition — 3E90 16,714
— Interest charged — N EEA 44
At December 31, HNt+t=—BA=+—8H 16,758
The loan from related parties as at December 31, 2017 RZE—+F+-_A=+—H &
is unsecured, carries interest 8% per annum. EENBEHMAARSEREEEKRE

R BERFMERBY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

38. MBS RS (&)

(e) Key management compensation: (e) TEEEAEMEITRAT :

2017 2016

—e-tf T A%

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Salaries e 14,424 15,319

Bonuses ey 7,965 8,446
Value of share based payment &S eXE

— employee services — EERBEE 4,510 12,754

Benefits in-kind E b 1@ A 1,953 1,780

28,852 38,299

Bonuses fall due wholly within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period in which management
rendered the related services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EEMAENER(HEBC(AT
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 &)Y (56622 F) 553831k R A T
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (RBESIZER) RO (5
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622G E) R EMNHE)

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESREEHTEMS
The remuneration of every director and the chief HE-Z—tF+-A=+—H1F
executive officer for the years ended December 31, FE BUNEENEERITE O
2017 is set out below: SN
Employer's Stock
Salaries Share  contribution appreciation
and Discretionary  Housing options  to pension Other rights
Fees allowances bonuses allowance  expenses scheme benefits granted Total
BINGHE
Name of Director 3.2 e HEREY  BERE  BERN  BRESR NEIOR  HfBEM  REMER &3t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARRTR ARBTR ARRTR ARRTFR ARWTR ARRTR ARETR ARETR

For the year ended BEoE-tF
December 31, 2017 TZA=T-ALEE

Zhang Ruilin* T - 3,500 4,045 365 651 b 469 - 9,054

Zhao Jiangwei [ - 3,000 1,348 m 651 64 34 - 5,708

Mei Jianping o 2 - - - - - - (32) 28

Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 337 - - - - - - (32) 305

Guo Yanjun PEE 270 - - - - - - - 210

Xie Na Bl - - - - - -

Andrew Sherwood Harper**  Andrew Sherwood Harper** - 1,705 - - 128 - - - 1,833

Tian Hongtao** mitE - 589 - 3 7,054 2 13 - 7,689
87 8,79 5,393 649 8,484 108 856 (64) 25,097
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383

OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES

ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.

622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive officer for the years ended December 31,

2016 is set out below:

39.

EENAENER (HEB(AE
xHl) (55622 F) %383 xR 1 &l
(HBESMNZER) RO (5
622G &) SR ERKE) (&)

(a) EBSREFUTEMS (H)

BT RF+-A=t—HLt
FE BUEBERARENTE M
TEHOT

Employer's
Salaries Share Awarded  contribution
and  Discretionary Housing options Shares  topension QOther
Fees  allowances bonuses allowance  expenses  expenses scheme benefits Total
2B R
Name of Director R e HeREY WRE%e RERY BREBR  RGBR  MEIMR  ApEA &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETRL  ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR
For the year ended HE-E-AE
December 31, 2016 TZR=t-HLEE
Zhang Ruilin* i - 3,500 3,326 365 684 - PA] 456 8,354
Zhao Jiangwei BIR - 3,000 665 m 684 848 64 337 5,869
Mei Jianping fiha 266 - - - - - - - 266
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 33 - - - - - - - 333
Guo Yanjun IEE 266 - - - - - - - 266
Xie Na Hip - - - - - - - - -
Tao Tak Yin *#* RiEg
Dexter - 1,083 2,608 - - - 6 - 3697
Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood Harper = 3,267 = = 871 = = = 4144
Tian Hongtao mitE = 1,99 1,597 3 2,728 6,281 48 30 1271
865 12,846 8,196 667 4,973 7129 il 823 35,640
* Mr. Zhang Ruilin is also the chief executive officer. * REREENMABERITE ©

** Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017.
***  Resigned with effect from May 31,2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhang Ruilin, during
the year ended December 31, 2017 by a defined benefit
pension plan operated by the group in respect of Mr.
Zhang Ruilin’s services as a director of the company
and its subsidiaries is RMB23,550 (2016: RMB23,410).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
during the year ended December 31, 2017 by a defined
benefit pension plan operated by the group in respect
of Mr. Zhao Jiangwei’'s services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is RMB64,038 (2016:
RMB63,898).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Tian Hongtao,
during the year ended December 31, 2017 by a defined
benefit pension plan operated by the group in respect
of Mr. Tian Hongtao's services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is RMB20,195 (2016:
RMB48,468).

39. EENNENER (BER(QT
xHI) (55622 F) %383 xR 2 &l
(HEBEESANZER) /M) (F
622G E) RENHKE) ()

(b)

EEHERNKEF

BE-_ZT—+FE+-_A=+—HIt
FE - ARSEEZENRTER=R
Rt R REFREEREEAERR
AIREFARESRERBSMEE
SR IRAE T B A R 23,550
T(ZZE—RF: AR¥23410
JL) °

HE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HL
FE - AAEERZEENRTR=R
Rt BIAEISRTEREIEAER
AIREFARESRERS MR E
SRR R R B A R #64,038
T(ZE—R"F: AR%63,898
JT) °

Hz—Z—+tF+-_A=+—AH1t
FE - AASEELENRTERER
RErglmmBESEEREEAERR
AINEFARESRERBmMAE
SR RREF A ARK20,195
TL(ZF—RF: AR%48,468
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40. XA TMNEBIBEMRRARRFEESSH
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company ARA T B R AR R 3R

As at December 31,

Rt=RA=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KRF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B E AR®TRT ARETRE

Assets EE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THAERE 1,110 1,209
Interests in subsidiaries FArERS 3,032,188 3,846,254
Loans to subsidiaries FFRRIER 719,172 758,732
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJffEHE SR EE 5,364 21,084
3,757,834 4,627,279
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from associate i NI 86,184 174,903
Prepayments, deposits and B mRES K
other receivables H b fE Yk 553,664 778,444
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEHESRMEE 107,956 -
Cash and cash equivalents R RIRSZEY 115,380 724,919
863,184 1,678,266
Total assets EEHE 4,621,018 6,305,545
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of SFEBRAEQATMEE
the Company R
Share capital k&N 1,068,796 1,068,796
Other reserves E At a 1,378,911 1,428,398
Accumulated losses Z2:tEE (1,738,410) (1,091,227)
Total equity A 709,297 1,405,967
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company

40. XA RFNMBRRKRRRHEEE

(%)

R BB R F (&)

(Continued)
As at December 31,
R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
hg=a AR¥T T AREEFIT
Liabilities =K
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings EEN 2,433,826 4,586,555
Provisions, accruals and A TBIRK
other liabilities HEmaE 52,785 45,053
2,486,611 4,631,608
Current liabilities REBAE
Provisions, accruals and HfE - TERR N
other liabilities HuaE 186,592 193,253
Current income tax liabilities EHIFT SR AaE 53,190 54,141
Borrowings (EEN 1,185,328 -
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTAE - 20,576
1,425,110 267,970
Total liabilities BEAHE 3,911,721 4,899,578
Total equity and liabilities EEkEERAE 4,621,018 6,305,545

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on March 29, 2018 and
was signed on its behalf.

Zhang Ruilin
R IR R
Director

EF

RRRMBRARARER -_F—-N\F=A

“TNABREFEHE UKRKEFS

BE

o

Zhao Jiangwei
Fi-pAR o}
Director

EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40. XATMNMBMRRARRFEESS

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (#8)
(Continued)
Statement of financial position of the Company KA IR R R ()
(Continued)
(a) Other reserve movement of the Company (a) EATRWEHMEEEE
Repurchased Share Available-
shares Currency based for-sale
held by trust Capital translation payment financial
(Note 23(al) reserve reserve reserves assets Total
fEstiR
R AfHE
(GEZEE) ERfEs ERERE ROXAEE TRAE &t

RMB000  RMBIOOO  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTL ARBTLE ARETR AR%TR ARETR

As at January 1, 2016 R-E-~E-F-H (70,887) 1,366,956 (61,402) 119,161 (1,367) 1,352,461
Currency translation differences ~ JNEFE£% - - 109,397 - - 109,397
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AfitHE S BARE - - - - 1,657 1,657
Employees stock option scheme  [& 8 B fiiEzt 2l - - - 27,990 - 27,990
— value of employee services  — [EERHEIE
— shares to settle SASs —Ritite RN EE

under the Plan HETRG - - - 599 - 599
— shares transferred to the —ERLRREROE

Awarded Shares Grantees R¥%& 6,707 - - (6,707) - -
Shares purchased under Share  F&{3 205t 2l FES IR 17

Award Scheme (63,706) = = = = (63,706)

At December 31, 2016 W-Z-AE+=AZ+-8 (127886 1366956 795 141,003 20 142839
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)

(a) Other reserve movement of the Company

40. AN T B9 R HEIR 0L 2R K fe 4 2 B

(%)

AT IARMR & ()

(a) FDFNHMHESEE ()

(Continued)
Repurchased Share Available-
shares Currency based for-sale
held by trust Capital  translation payment financial
(Note 23(a)) reserve reserve Reserves assets Total
BRARE
B R G o e
(K 23(a)) ERfiE RERE ROXNEE SREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR%Tr  ARETR
As at January 1, 2017 RZE-tE-f-H (127,886) 1,366,956 47,995 141,043 290 1,428,398
Currency translation differences ~ SMEHTEZSH - - (64,313) - - (64,313)
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AT HESRERE - - - - (5,332) (5,332)
Employees stock option scheme & 2 Bk 2zt E
— value of employee services  — [EERHEE - - - 20,158 - 20,158
— shares transferred to the — ERRREROK
Awarded Shares Grantees R¥%& 9,470 - - (9,470) - -
At December 31, 2017 R=®-tE+=A=t-H (118416 1,366,956 (16,318) 151,731 (5,042) 1,378,911
vitgRERERAR 20076% 30D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

41. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

(a)

(b)

(c)

Repayment of the 2018 Notes

On February 6, 2018, the Company repaid the
outstanding balance in relation to the 2018 Notes in full
upon its maturity. The outstanding principal plus
accrued interest of the 2018 Notes as of the maturity
date was in the amount of US$188.0 million (equivalent
to RMB1,222.0 million). After the repayment, no
principal or interests in relation to the 2018 Notes is
outstanding.

Placing of convertible bonds

On January 26, 2018, the Company completed the
placing of a convertible bonds to independent placee(s)
(the "Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds is in
the principal amount of HK$340.0 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB280.3 million) and with an interest
rate of 5.0% per annum payable semi-annually. The
maturity date to the Convertible Bonds is January 26,
2021. The holders of Convertible Bonds have the right
to convert into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time, on or after 41 days after the completion date, until
10 days prior to maturity. Upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds, a total of 586.2 million shares will
be issued, representing approximately 16.63% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
impact of the full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.
The proceeds of the Convertible Bonds was utilised for
the repayment of the 2018 Notes.

Disposal of 24.8% interest in Journey

On January 22, 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Vendor”) and an independent purchaser
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a purchase and sale
agreement, pursuant to which, the Vendor agreed to
sell and the Purchaser agreed to buy 12.7 million
common shares in Journey (the “Sale Shares”) at a
consideration of C$21.3 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB110.8 million). The Sale Shares
represented approximately 24.8% of the equity
interests in Journey Energy.
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41. Hi& =1\

(a)

(b)

(c)

HE2018 B ERE

R-ZE—N\F-AB KR AR
BIHAR BB T 2018 B L EHR A
KREZEIHH S 2018 L 2R
REZBI DA S FFHREFN BEE
B HA £ AXTTLI188.0BB T
(FFAEARE122088T) &
It BE2018E AR B2 I EE
e o

B E T ERES

R-E—N\F—A=+/,"B &R
A)SER AR ABC & AT IR E 5 ©
([ ESR]) TRKREHFTE A
BEE3400E B (A& ARK
280.3BHEIL) c A MIREFHF
MEAH50%BFEFFEFELN -
ABREFISEEA T - —F—
AZ+7"8 - EFFEABERT
B BHEA 41 Bk 2% BH = 5 H
HAj10 B AR BE R A B AT AR (B
FRMBHIRR G - AIRKRESS
EEEIRN - SR IT4R5586.28
BREERK - AR RARARER
FiBE AR EHE B BITIRAEE
EAN1% 4E ) 16.63% © BE1T A #A
BEFMSREBBEEEISS
20181852 -

EE Journey 24.8%

RZFE—N\F—A=+=H AR
ANEEE2ENBAR (BH)HEB
VEH(BER)FINEEWH:=: - B
It BEAREBEREME S RENE
EM&E2138BT(TEARKE
110.8 B& L) #E Journey 12.7 8
BREBR(FERD) - BEER
B #1E & J5 Journey Energy 24.8%
HIARHE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

41. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Continued)

(d)

Proposed acquisition of 10% foreign
participating interest in Daan and Moliging
PSCs held by GOC

On December 21, 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Purchaser”) and GOC (the
“Vendor") entered into a purchase and sale agreement,
pursuant to which, the Vendor has conditionally agreed
to sell, and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
acquire, the 10% foreign participating interests under
Daan and Moliging PSCs held by GOC (subject to the
relevant provisions of the PSC) at a consideration of
US$55.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB357.5
million). Upon Completion, the Group shall own, among
others, 100% participating interest in the foreign
contractor’s entitlement and obligations under the Daan
PSC for the Daan oilfield. The consideration shall be
paid in cash by the Purchaser on the completion date.
As of the date that the financial statements are
approved, the conditions precedent to completion in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the
purchase and sale agreement have not been satisfied.

4. EREEE)

(d)

R BWBRRAHARAFEN
REREEEHMHERDKE
[E10% KN B B fE %

RZZE—tF+=A=+—H K
ARz 2EMBRAR ([EH])EHER
XERAR(ERFDITLEEH
#FBL BEAERUGRELE
MEHBKGREEEELS0EE
ET(AEAREEIBTSEETT) W
BRIKOBIFENALREETE
mAOKAR10% SN2 R RER (F
BRAERDKEBIEX) - RRE
B ANEEBES (AP EE) KL
SHAERDKER NINEER A2
M2 EERNET - EHBRT
BB S ZEHE - HEFHIR
RESGHAEZR  BEEEHZED
IRFRAUESE  Jo R R 1FEDR
E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

41. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Continued)

(e)

Proposed disposal of certain assets within the
Carrot Creek area located in central Alberta,
Canada

On March 23, 2018, the Group and an independent
purchaser entered into a purchase and sale agreement,
pursuant to which, the Group agreed to sell and the
purchaser agreed to purchase certain assets at a base
price of C$60.0 million (equivalent to RMB312.1 million).
The subject matter assets under this transaction are the
legal and beneficial interest held by Canlin in certain
petroleum and natural gas rights, certain tangible assets
and certain miscellaneous interests within the Carrot
Creek area located in central Alberta, Canada. The
consideration of this disposal is subject to any
adjustments pursuant to the terms of the purchase and
sale agreement.

This transaction is subject to fulfilment of certain
conditions. As conditions of this transaction did not
exist at year end, the corresponding financial impact will
be reflected upon completion of the transaction.
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41. HEREEE)

(e)

BEEVRMEXMBEEESE S
£B Carrot Creek it & fy F £ &
=3

R-E—N\EF=A=-+=H K&
EE-—XBUYNELTRTEEH
FBK AEERELEEES
FENEEEBRINE600RET
(ZEBRAREI21EEL)EBE
EE-ZBERXITHENEESR
Canlin £ i1 2 K B # {5 35 & & 2B
Carrot Creek i [ ¥ /5 #) X ££ 5
RARIEF - Bl EEEU R E A
HRFANEEER o L EHE
AREE B ARSEL AR -

RRXZFmR—ENGEE > AR
KRR ZOGHEEFERTFE - 1
e B MR T ERAER S TR
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